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Corporate Profile
NEIRFNT

China Saite Group Company Limited (“China Saite” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an
integrated steel structure and prefabricated construction
solution service provider headquartered in Yixing, Jiangsu
Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). It has been
operating for nearly 22 years. The Group's integrated
construction solution services are customised to meet the
quality, technical specifications and requirements of different
projects, and range extensively from design planning,
fabrication and assembly of steel structure components and
prefabricated construction, transportation to on-site installation
and after-sales services. According to an industry report
prepared by Ipsos Hong Kong Ltd., in terms of revenue, China
Saite was the second largest prefabricated construction service
provider and the third largest steel structure construction
service provider in Jiangsu Province in 2012.

The Group commenced undertaking prefabricated
construction projects in late 2010 and enjoys a first-mover
advantage in the PRC prefabricated construction industry.
Prefabricated construction is one of the advanced construction
methods deploying a majority of structural components pre-
produced and standardised in the factory, ready for installation
on site. The Group's prefabricated construction solution is
mainly provided for domestic high-rise commercial and
residential buildings as well as social security housing projects.

China Saite has been accredited as a Grade One Steel Structure
Engineering Contractor, the highest national qualification, by
the Ministry of Housing since November 2005. This enables
China Saite to undertake all kinds of steel structure projects
without limitation in category, contract sum, construction area
or total construction weight in the PRC. The Group has
participated in a wide range of steel structure projects,
including bridges, train stations, stadiums, exhibition centres
and factory premises.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xulin (Chairman) (appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Shan Hu (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Xu Fanghua
Mr. Liu Zhibo
Mr. Hua Gang (appointed as Chairman
on 29 October 2021 and ceased to be the Chairman
on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
(resigned on 29 October 2021)
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 17 November 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Yan Hualin

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (resigned on 21 March 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chang Kam Lai (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Mr. Pang Wai Ching (appointed on 1 July 2020 and
resigned on 1 February 2021)

Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina (resigned on 1 July 2020)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Xulin (appointed on 18 November 2021)

Ms. Chang Kam Lai (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Mr. Hua Gang (appointed on 29 October 2021 and
resigned on 18 November 2021)

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (resigned on 29 October 2021)

Mr. Pang Wai Ching (appointed on T July 2020 and
resigned on 1 February 2021)

Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina (resigned on 1 July 2020)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yan Hualin (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (resigned on 21 March 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed as Chairman on 21 March 2022)
(appointed on 29 June 2020)

Mr. Yan Hualin

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

Mr. Shan Hu (appointed on 18 November 2021)

Mr. Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021)

Mr. Wu Zhongxian (Chairman)
(resigned on 21 March 2022)

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (resigned on 17 November 2021)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Xulin (Chairman) (appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Xu Jiaming
Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Shan Hu (appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Yan Hualin (appointed on 21 March 2022)
Mr. Hua Gang (Chairman) (appointed on 29 October 2021
and ceased to be the Chairman on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
(resigned on 29 October 2021)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (resigned on 21 March 2022)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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HEADQUARTER AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 5 Peitian Avenue, Sugang Road

Economic Development Zone, Huaiyuan County
Bengbu

Anhui Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

22nd Floor of The Toy House
No. 100 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Messrs. BDO Limited
(appointed on 11 September 2021)

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG
KONG LAW

P.C.Woo & Co.
Robertsons

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
(Yixing Gaocheng Branch)

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Yixing Chengzhong Branch)

Jiangsu Yixing Rural Commercial Bank Co.,, Ltd.
(Gaocheng Branch)

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Cayman Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

STOCK CODE

153

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinasaite.com.cn
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of China Saite, | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For Year 2020, the Group's revenue amounted to approximately
RMB387.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB127.9 million or 25% as compared with Year 2019. In 2020,
gross profit amounted to approximately RMB92.1 million, while
the overall gross profit margin ("GP margin”) of the Group was
approximately 23.8% (2019: 17.5%), representing an increase of
6.3 percentage points as compared to that in Year 2019. Details
of the Group's results and future prospects will be discussed
under the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this report.

Since 2020, all walks of life around the world have faced
extremely severe challenges. Local and global business
activities have been severely disrupted due to the COVID-19
pandemic. Uncertainty over trade policies and geopolitical
tensions have also added to the turmoil in the global economy.
In response to this unprecedented unfavorable business
environment, the Group is currently undergoing asset
restructuring, including division of debts, disposal of non-
performing and/or non-core assets of the Group, subscription
of shares for capital injection so that it can continue to maintain
normal business operations, etc. The Board and the senior
management believe that through a series of reorganizations
and adjustments, the Group will achieve self-reform and
improve its internal management, so as to fully enhance the
Group's comprehensive competitiveness and achieve
sustainable and stable all-round development.

Looking ahead, the management will continue to prudently
respond to the market changes and challenges brought about
by the COVID-19 pandemic. Moreover, with the Group's strong
resources from reorganisations and adjustments, it will seize
the opportunities brought about by China’s macroeconomic
policies and explore more business diversification possibilities,
so as to diversify risks, drive business growth, and create more
value for shareholders.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to FTABRRESSHEMBS RO AEARNHEM
extend my sincere appreciation to our Shareholders, customers, HWRE - BF  HEELEEATHNEESF
suppliers and professional parties for their continuous support, FIRHSEESRC EEERAE I REZCT
as well as our Directors, our management team and staff for ERRHE AEBBERARESCERDE S
their hard work and dedication during the year. The Group will BIRERZEDREL -

work with you to meet various challenges in the business
environment in the future.

Li Xulin 2
Chairman 4B
Hong Kong, 18 April 2022 B 20226 4H18H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As an integrated steel structure and fully assembled
prefabricated structure construction solution service provider,
the Group offers integrated construction solutions to
customers according to the technical specifications and
requirements of different projects as well as the needs of
customers. The services include design, secondary detailed
design, production, installation, and after-sale services for
customers.

The Group's steel structure solutions mainly focus on
construction of large-scale public structures (such as sports
stadiums, convention and exhibition centers, airports, and
railway stations), bridges (such as railway bridges, highway
bridges, landscape bridges, river-crossing bridges and sea-
crossing bridges), large-scale factory premises, industrial park
zones, logistics park zones, etc. The Group's prefabricated
construction solutions are mainly used in construction of low-
income housing and public utilities during the process of
urbanisation initiated by the PRC government.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a decrease in revenue and gross profit for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year 2020") over the
corresponding period of 2019 (“Year 2019"). The management
of the Group adjusted its business strategy to deal with the
challenges faced by the Group at relevant times. In Year 2020,
the Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB387.5
million (2019: RMB515.4 million). Gross profit for Year 2020
amounted to approximately RMB92.1 million (2019: RMB90.4
million). The average gross profit margin ("GP margin”) was
approximately 23.8% (2019: 17.5%). Loss attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to approximately RMB214.5
million (2019: RMB6,091.5 million). Basic losses per share
amounted to approximately RMB7.1 cents (2019: RMB224.6
cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB B RAM

Steel structure

For Year 2020, the Group's revenue generated from the steel
structure business amounted to RMB342.6 million, decreased
by 26.0% from RMB462.8 million for Year 2019. The GP margin
for the steel structure business was 25.1%, increased by 7.8
percentage point from 17.3% in Year 2019 as the Group only
engaged in projects with higher GP margin.

During Year 2020, the Group's steel structure business were
mainly located in Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province, Shanghai,
Zhejiang Province and Jiangxi Province in the PRC for
construction of factories, highways, bridges and other private/
public structures.

Prefabricated construction

During Year 2020, revenue from the Group's prefabricated
construction business amounted to approximately RMB20.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately 61.1% from
RMB52.7 million in Year 2019. During Year 2020, revenue from
the Group's prefabricated construction business decreased
significantly as compared with that of Year 2019 due to the
impact of the restrictions on the development of the real estate
industry. GP margin was kept at constant level of approximately
20% compared to Year 2019.

10 China Saite Group Company Limited HEIZERHFEEAR AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Construction and installation works

During Year 2020, the Group expanded its source of income to
construction and installation works by setting up the operating
subsidiaries in Anhui Province in the PRC. Revenue from
construction and installation works amounted to RMB24.4
million with GP margin of 8.5%. The GP margin was relatively
lower than other type of projects due to different pricing policy
as the Group was new to this business.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2021, the business environment in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau improved gradually throughout the year until
the recent COVID-19 Omicron outbreak in certain regions.
However, the erratic global COVID-19 pandemic development
and mutant variants continues to impact market development
and economic recovery in general, so we expect the road to
recovery to be unpredictable and will depend on extent of
social distancing restrictions and effectiveness of measures
relating to the containment of COVID-19 pandemic.

Looking ahead, the Group will stay vigilant amidst these
uncertainties on the road to recovery and will strive to manage
its businesses with efficient senior management, disciplined
cost control and prudent risk management in 2022. The Group
will continue to focus on its steel structure business,
prefabricated construction and construction and installation
works by strengthening cooperation with state enterprises,
central government enterprises and multinational corporations
as well as consolidating its resources and improve internal
management to achieve better business performance. With
the goal of obtaining higher returns for its shareholders, the
Group will also pay additional attention to the development
and opportunities in the market, and devote to the exploration
of new revenue streams.

BEE R

BERRETR

2020 AEEEFRLZHER L ELEWNBE QR
REBERTETRE BAHWARR  BENK
THE TR A AR 244000007 EFR A
85% ° EFEMEENAEMBAEE - TTHAE
REEFHRZEBMEEBRTE -

AKRE

20214 - B KEE - BRI EERREEF
BHRE BETEE D MR IFEECOVID-19E R
BIHER o AT - TERE/EZIKCOVID-19% 15 3%
BERESERGTAITEH  SMIZERNBEELE
EEEKEE R RMERLCEERERTH
8 B I 55 B R 5 A 22 20 B IR B MR B N Bt
COVID-19 5% 15 FTERAE e /9 B UM -

RERK  AEBEBRBLG  BEHSHKEERA
ERNSEIMTEREZ  R202F  BFEBEW
RYSCHEE IR A - BRAE AR AN B 1A A R R
EETERER c AREBEET TNMERE
55 2RIEEEBHEENNBERTRIR -
pneR M« R BEAGMNAE WEAHE
BR TERNPER BERBONEBRE - K
EEEEARRENESNE®R Bl AEH
MEENBEITENERERES  BHRRTH
PN

Annual Report 2020 — T -~ TEFR 1



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For Year 2020, the Group's revenue amounted to approximately
RMB387.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB127.9 million or 25% as compared with Year 2019.

The following table sets out a breakdown of the Group's
revenue in terms of steel structure projects and prefabricated
construction projects for each of the periods indicated:

g A E)
Y25
PR20206F - ANEEH WL A A R E 387,500,000

JC * BR2019F /A4 A R 5 127,900,000 75 8K, 25% ©

TREJZATIHAEAEENIHGEBEEE 2R
FCTR B T2 5818 B My e AR AR ¢

2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
Revenue Revenue
percentage percentage
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
&3 WEs bt
ARET R (%) ARBTF T (%)
Construction of &
— Steel structure projects ~ — S 45HETE H 342,602 88.4 462,750 8938
— Prefabricated — 2R TRRE N
construction project EETEE 20,511 5.3 52,697 102
— Construction and
installation works — BENTETRE 24,402 6.3 - -
Total wEt 387,515 100.0 515,447 100.0

For Year 2020, revenue from steel structure projects
represented approximately 88.4% of the Group's total revenue,
while revenue from prefabricated construction projects and
revenue from construction and installation works represented
approximately 5.3% and 6.3% of the Group's total revenue
respectively.

Revenue from steel structure projects decreased by
approximately 26.0% from approximately RMB462.8 million for
Year 2019 to approximately RMB342.6 million for Year 2020. On
the other hand, revenue from prefabricated construction
projects decreased by approximately 61.1% from
approximately RMB52.7 million for Year 2019 to approximately
RMB20.5 million for Year 2020.

12 China Saite Group Company Limited HEIZERHFEEAR AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and GP margin

The following table sets out a breakdown of the Group’s gross
profit and GP margin in terms of steel structure projects and
prefabricated construction projects for Year 2020 and Year
2019:

k&EE n—_l- &ﬁ*ﬁ'

EFIREFZE
TR ST 72020 FF [ 2019 F A &= B 59 S 45475 18 B

KRR TRRB R R M EMNRENZAMA

2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
Gross profit  GP margin (%) Gross profit -~ GP margin (%)
EF EFIZE (%) EH EFIE (%)
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Construction of B4
— Steel structure projects ~ — 45 EIE R 85,864 25.1 79,920 17.3
— Prefabricated — PREERET
construction project FEETHE 4,182 20.4 10,494 19.9
— Construction and
installation works —BENTHETRE 2,082 8.5 - -
Total st 92,128 23.8 90,414 17.5

For Year 2020, overall GP margin of the Group was
approximately 23.8%, representing an increase of 6.3
percentage points as compared to approximately 17.5% for
Year 2019

GP margin for steel structure projects increased approximately
7.8 percentage point from approximately 17.3% for Year 2019
to 25.1% for Year 2020. The increase was due to the fact that
the Group only selected to engage in projects with higher
margin.

GP margin for prefabricated construction projects was constant
at level of approximately 20%.

GP margin for construction and installation works was 8.5%
which were lower than other segments due to different pricing
policy adopted as the Group was new to this industry in Anhui
province.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R

Other income, other gains and other
losses

The other income of the Group for Year 2020 was
approximately RMB4.5 million (2019: RMB2.0 million), derived
mainly from sales of scrapped materials, interest income on
bank deposits, government grants and rental income.

The other gains of the Group for Year 2020 was approximately
RMB22.5 million (2019: losses RMB76.4 million), derived mainly
from net exchange gain and effect of modification of corporate
bonds.

Selling and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses

The total selling, marketing expenses and administrative
expenses for Year 2020 were approximately RMB56.9 million
(2019: RMB64.4 million), represented a decrease of
approximately RMB7.5 million. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in commission and legal fee paid
for issuance of bonds.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs for Year 2020 was approximately
RMB68.4 million (2019: RMB99.6 million), mainly contributed
from interest expenses on short-term borrowings, interests on
corporate bonds. The creditors regarding the corporate bonds
and the short-term borrowings are independent third parties
to the Group.

Impairment losses on financial and contract
assets

The Group's impairment losses on financial and contracts
assets was approximately RMB182.8 million (2019: RMB5,933.5
million), mainly comprised of impairment losses on trade
receivables and other receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Remeasurement of financial guarantees
contracts

The financial guarantees contracts recognition made was
based on the valuation on the probabilities of default prepared
by an independent valuer engaged by the Company for Year
2020. The directors considered the expected payments to
reimburse the holder of the guarantees were no longer
recoverable from the borrowers and therefore recorded a loss
of RMB24.7 million in Year 2020 (2019: RMB53.0 million).

Loss for the year

Loss for the year attributed to the owners of the Company for
Year 2020 amounted to RMB214.5 million (2019: RMB6,091.5
million). The decrease in loss of the year compared to previous
year was mainly attributable to (i) decrease in impairment
losses on trade receivables and other receivables; (i) decrease
in loss of financial guarantee contracts; and (iii) decrease in
write-off of property, plant and equipment.

The Group’s basic losses per share for Year 2020 was
approximately RMB7.1 cents (2019: RMB224.6 cents).

Capital structure, liquidity and financial
resources

The Group's cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020
was approximately RMB41.5 million (2019: RMB40.2 million). As
at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB1,240.6 million (2019: RMB1,227.4 million)
and current liabilities of approximately RMB4,746.1 million
(2019: RMB4,489.2 million). The current ratio (which is
calculated on the basis of current assets over current liabilities)
was 0.26 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 0.27). Total deficit of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB3,411.3 million (2019: RMB3,196.8 million). As at 31
December 2020, the issued share capital of the Company was
approximately HK$302.1 million (2019: HK$302.1 million) with
approximately 3,020.7 million (2019: 3,020.7 million) shares in
issue. Total borrowings (including corporate bonds, short-term
borrowings, problematic loans and financial guarantee
contracts) were approximately RMB859.0 million as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB948.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged property,
plant and equipment with a carrying amount of RMB61.0
million (2019: RMB63.4 million) and leasehold land under right-
of-use assets with a carrying amount of RMB30.3 million (2019:
RMB31.2 million) to secure bank borrowings of the Group.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent treasury policy and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the year.
The Group strives to reduce credit risk by conducting ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to
time.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2020 and as at 31 December 2019, the
Group had deficits of approximately RMB3,411.3 million and
RMB3,196.8 million respectively. Calculations of gearing ratio of
the Group for Year 2020 and Year 2019 are therefore not
applicable.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group's businesses are principally operated in the PRC and
substantially all of its transactions are conducted in RMB and
most of the Group's assets and liabilities are also denominated
in RMB. The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate risk
arising from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other
than RMB. During the year under review, the Group did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its exposure to
foreign currency risk and did not adopt any foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital expenditures

During Year 2020, the Group's capital expenditure consisted of
additions to properties, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately RMB1.2 million (2019: RMB55.8 million).

Employees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 236
employees (2019: 258). The related staff cost (including
remuneration of Directors in the form of salaries and other
benefits) for Year 2020 was approximately RMB22.3 million
(2019: RMB25.6 million). The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. Competitive remuneration package is offered to retain
elite employees. Our package includes salaries, medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses, on-the-job training, other
benefits as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state managed retirement
benefit schemes for employees in the PRC.

Contingent liabilities

There was no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020
(2019: nil).

Final dividends

The Board does not recommend any final dividend payment
for Year 2020 to the Shareholders (2019: nil).

Events after the end of the reporting period

Details of events after the end of the reporting period are set
out to note 49 to the consolidated financial statements in this
report.

Saved as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any
material subsequent events after the end of reporting period
and up to the date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R

UPDATE ON WINDING-UP
PETITION

As of the date of this report, there is one outstanding petition
that has yet to be withdrawn or dismissed. In light of its
direction for convening the meeting (the “Scheme Meeting")
of the scheme creditors be convened for the purpose of
considering, and if thought fit, approving the Scheme of
Arrangement (with or without modification), the Court has
adjourned the winding-up hearing against the Company to 16
May 2022. No winding-up order has been made against the
Company and the winding-up petition has no material adverse
impact on the daily operation of the Company.

The Company is actively dealing with the remaining petitioners
and supporting creditors and targets to procure the withdrawal
or dismissal of the petition subject to the completion of the
proposed restructuring.

PROPOSED RESTRUCTURING

The Group is currently implementing a proposed restructuring
(the "Proposed Restructuring”) which comprises:

(i the reorganisation of the Group structure (the “Group
Reorganization”’) whereby, among other things, non-
performing and/or non-core assets of the Group would
be carved out by way of creditors’ voluntary winding up
of the relevant subsidiary(ies). The Group Reorganization
is aimed at, among others, carving out a majority of the
PRC-based indebtedness of the Group;

(i) the capital injection (the “Capital Injection”) comprising
(a) the issue of the Senior Notes in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$160 million to investors; and (b)
the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares at the
aggregate subscription price of HK$312 million to
investors. The aggregate gross proceeds of
approximately HK$472 million would enable the Group
to, among other things, effecting the Proposed
Restructuring as well as funding its general working
capital need, hence enabling the Group to continue
sustaining its normal business operations; and
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(iii)

Management Discussion and Analysis

the Scheme of Arrangement to be made between the
Company and its creditors in accordance with sections
670 and 673 of the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), pursuant to
which all claims of the creditors against the Company
will be fully and finally discharged by virtue of the
Scheme of Arrangement in exchange for cash and/or
new shares in the Company. The Group is currently
actively soliciting the requisite supports from its creditors
to proceed with the Scheme of Arrangement.

The Scheme of Arrangement was sanctioned by the
Court at the sanction hearing on 11 April 2022. The
Scheme of Arrangement shall become effective when an
office copy of the order of the Court sanctioning the
Scheme of Arrangement is registered by the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong under Part 2 of the Companies
Ordinance and the other conditions precedent set out in
the Scheme of Arrangement are duly fulfilled.

Further announcement(s) regarding the Scheme of
Arrangement will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERGSREERBRENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Li Xulin
Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Li Xulin ("“Mr. Li"), aged 55, was appointed as the chairman
of the Board and an executive Director of the Company on 18
November 2021. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Li graduated from the Party School of Anhui Provincial
Committee of CP.C (P £ &2 & & & %) with a postgraduate
degree with major in economic management in July 2011.

Mr. Li has vast experiences in the finance area. He worked in
the finance department* (B4 X FIT) of various districts in Huaiyuan
County, Anhui Province, the PRC (FF B & 81 & 1 & $%) from
October 1984 to April 1995. From April 1995 to April 2003, Mr. Li
was the Under Secretary for State-Owned Assets Administration
Bureau* (B B & = & ¥ B &l B &) under the Ministry of
Finance (84 X #B) of the PRC. From April 2003 to May 2005, he
worked in the Finance Bureau (B4 ) in Huaiyuan County, Anhui
Province with his last position as the Secretary for Supervision
Bureau* (5 B /B /& &).From May 2006 to December 2008,
he was the Officer of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Office* (Bl /5 & = & 12 #f & & £ f).
From December 2008 to August 2015, Mr. Li was the Deputy
Officer (&l F) and Deputy Secretary* (8| & 52 ) of the Huaiyuan
economic development area of Anhui Province* (%2 Il & 12 &=
FEPEFIEE[R ). From May 2006 to August 2018, he was responsible
for managing the Yuanchengtao Company* (8 ¥ #& 2 &J) and
Yuan Guarantee Company* (5 #& £& 22 &) with his last positions
as the chairman of the board (E 2% 4% ) of Yuanchengtao Company
and the responsible officer (& A) of Yuan Guarantee Company.
From August 2015 to August 2018, Mr. Li was the Party Branch
Secretary* (4B E 50 ) and Secretary for Finance Bureau® (B4 /B
fB1R) of Huaiyuan County, Anhui Province. Since June 2016, he was
the member of the County Committee* (82Z& % 8 ). Since August
2018, Mr. Li is the chairman of the board (2 2§ £%) of Hualyuan
Investment Group Co, Ltd* (2= % & £ B A R A 7). He was
the Party Branch Deputy Secretary* (2 48 7 & 3C) from August
2018 to March 2020 and the Party Secretary* (¥ Z= &7 ) Huaiyuan
Investment Group Co, Ltd.* from March 2020 onwards.

* for translation purposes only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Shan Hu
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Shan Hu ("Mr. Shan”), aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 18 November 2021 and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 16 December
2021. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Shan graduated from Anhui University of Finance & Economics
(%2 B BF 48 K E2) (formerly known as Anhui School of Finance
and Trade* (ZZ 81 & EB5% ) with a bachelor of economics with
major in finance in July 1997. From August 1997 to September
2020, Mr. Shan worked at the Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China in the PRC, with his last position as deputy head of Bengbu
branch* (¥ 18 %> 17), and was responsible for supervising
various areas including corporate credit, investment banking,
small enterprise, bank card, personal loan, institution, legal, bad
debt, investment management, etc. From September 2020
onwards, Mr. Shan is the executor director and general
manager of Anhui Tianhong New Type Steel Structural Material

Co, Lid* (RBRIBH LS BT R AR A R)).

* for translation purposes only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERGSREERBRENT

Zhang Tianbo
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Tianbo (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 41, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 14 December 2021.
He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhang graduated from the Party School of Anhui Provincial
Committee of C.P.C. (A L& Z £/ with a postgraduate
degree with major in economic management in July 2014.

Mr. Zhang has vast experiences in the accounting area. He
worked as an account staff in finance department* (84 1K
Ffr) of Xuweixiang in Huaiyuan County, Anhui Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (Ff T HE
% iR B 15 1T #F) from September 1999 to July 2004. From
July 2004 to September 2017, Mr. Zhang worked at the
Treasury Section of the Municipal Finance Bureau* (84 B /&
E %} in Huaiyuan County, Anhui Province with his last position
as Chief* (£} %) of the Treasury Section. From September
2017 to October 2018, Mr. Zhang served as the Chief
Accountant* (48 & & AM) as well as a member of the Party
Group of the Finance Bureau of Huaiyuan County* (12 & %
BF B /B # #H). He was the Major Secretary* (85 — & &2) of
Zhugiao Village, Shuanggiaoji Town, Huaiyuan County (1
EEZER S EMNBN) from May 2017 to December 2018.
He was the General Manager* (42 4%  32) of Huaiyuan Investment
Group Co, Ltd* (Bi& &% & & B B R 2 7) from December
2018 to December 2019. Since November 2018, Mr. Zhang is
a director of Huaiyuan Investment Group Co., Ltd.*. Mr. Zhang
is a director and Vice General Manager of Saite Group (Anhui)
Ld* (BFEE (LR AR A F) (@n indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) from April 2020 onwards.

* for translation purposes only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Xu Fanghua
Executive Director

Mr. Xu Fanghua (“Mr. Xu"), aged 57, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 15 December 2015. He
has over 11 years of experience in the eco-friendly construction
industry. Mr. Xu graduated from Nanjing University of
Science and Technology (F & 2 T K &) in environmental
engineering in July 2003. He was appointed as the chairman of
the board of directors and general manager of Jiangsu Chenli
Company Limited* (I % /= /1 & 2% F R 22 &) in February
1991. Jiangsu Chenli Company Limited was dereglstered in
January 2013. Mr. Xu then founded Jiangsu Chenli in October
2012 and has been appointed as the chairman of the board of
directors as well as the general manager of Jiangsu Chenli since
October 2012

Liu Zhibo
Executive Director

Mr. Liu Zhibo (“Mr. Liu"), aged 58, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 8 July 2019. He currently
serves as chairman of Shanghai Yulin Asset Management Co.,
Lid* (L BFREETIEBR A A). Prior to this, Mr. Liu served
as teacher at Suzhou University (&R A2 from 1986 to 1988;
secretary and deputy office director of Jiangyan Agricultural
Bank of Jiangsu Province* (T #fZ=3E B FR7T) from 1989 to
1995; deputy director and director of Jiangyan Rural Credit
Cooperative Association of Jiangsu Province* (T #RZ= 18 2
£ A& 1EBE#L) from 1996 to 2002; and director of Technology
Department and office director of Jiangsu Credit Cooperative
Association* (L& & {5 A& {EHEAL) from 2003 to 2010. Mr.
Liu holds a master's degree of Business Management ({&3%&
2) from Nanjing Tech University (B3 I L3 A22) in 2009.

* for translation purposes only

EEkEREEBEN

BIFTESRAE([BEE]D 575 R2015F 12815
HEZTALARRRITES - HRIRREBEER
BE1FREE - REENR2003F7 ARENE
RETAREBRBIREEE - HRI191F2HESE
FRIBENBEERATINESEIFERAK
B TtENEEXARAAN22013F1 ABUHTE
ft o B EREER R 2012F 10 BT ERE N - I
B20NRF 10 REZARIGHRNINESTSER
FRABISIR o

2148
BITES

BIEALAE ([BI%E]) - 5858 B 201957 A8H
BEZITAEARRRTES -HBETLEFHREE
ERARARESRRE - AT - BliER1986FE
1988 FF P &R N K 22 (E AT ¢ 1A 1989 F & 1995 F
WIGZERERTLRECHERRLAETRE

£ R 199%6 FE 2002 FRIHEZERMEREE
Btt e e BRI EE R EME - R 2003FE20104F
MTEE ERAEBLLBEARBER R LT
NEFE - 2IEAN2000FEFRLEALES

EEEEIEM] o

* HEERSRE

Annual Report 2020 — T -~ TEFR 23



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERGSREERBRENT

Hua Gang
Executive Director

Mr. Hua Gang (“Mr. Hua"), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 8 July 2019. He was
appointed as Chairman on 29 October 2021 and ceased to be
the Chairman on 18 November 2021. He has been serving as
deputy general manager of Jiangsu Kaimeng Investments Co.,
Ltd* CT &R\ B B B R A A]) since March 2011. From May
2008 to February 2011, Mr. Hua served as finance manager of
Shimao Group* (35 [#) and Taizhou Shimao New City Real
Estate Development Co,, Ltd.* (=M X FT I F HEFR EH
fR A &) and as project manager of Taizhou Xingrui Certified
Public Accountants Co,, Ltd* (=M B & 51BN E 75 AT). From
April 2003 to May 2008, Mr. Hua served as general accountant
of Jiangsu Fangyuan Construction Engineering Co., Ltd.* (T &k
F Bl TR AR F]). He obtained a bachelor's degree in
accountancy from Nanjing University of Finance and
Economics. Mr. Hua holds the senior accountant technical title
and the certified public accountant qualification.

* for translation purposes only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Xu Jiaming
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Jiaming (“Mr. Xu"), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 11 October 2013. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Xu graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in Industrial
Management Engineering (Management Information
Systems)* (L % & 12 T 12(% B 1§ & & #) from
Wuhan Institute of Engineering* (E\/E T 2F53) in June 1992
and obtained a master's degree in business administration
from Nanjing University (F§ = X ) in December 2003.
He is currently a candidate for a doctorate degree in
Management Science and Engineering* (& ¥£ &} £ 82 T f2)
at Wuhan University of Technology (E/22 T K£2). He has
over 17 years of experience in corporate management and
consultancy. From January 1997 to May 1998, he served at
Nanjing Toptry Information Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (F & &
Bz BEXEBE AR AQF]), a company principally engaged
in software development and information services as the head
of its marketing department, deputy manager and the head
of its department of electronic commerce (& ¥ 7% 2 =6). Since
May 1998, he has served as the chief consultant and the general
manager of Nanjing Zhiyu Corporate Management Consultants
Company Limited* (A R E X B EERBAER 2R,
a company principally engaged in provision of business
consultancy services. He acted as the chief human resources
manager of Red Star Home Furniture Group Limited* (4L
EXBEEBEAER A A, a company principally engaged in,
among others, sale of home furniture, between June 2005
and July 2007 and the general manager of Red Star Macalline
International Consultancy Company Limited* (4L £ 3 8]l 8
R K 5 A BR A Al), a company principally engaged in
provision of business consultancy services, between June 2005
and July 2007. From December 2008 to September 2010, he
also served as the management consultant and the president of
Permanent Group Co., Ltd* ([E A LB B R A 7]), a company
principally engaged in the manufacture of steel structures
and machineries. Since September 2010, he has acted as
the corporate management consultant of Nanjing Fullshare
Holdings Group Limited* (g R 2 B EFIZEREBBR A A),
a company principally engaged in construction projects.

* for translation purposes only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERGSREERBRENT

Yan Hualin
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Yan Hualin (“Mr. Yan"), aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 8 July
2019. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yan worked at the People’s Bank of Jiangsu Province (;T
g E AR R1T) from January 1980 to March 1980. From April
1980 to July 2002, he worked at Jiangsu Bank School* (JT % &
77 B ) and Nanjing Higher Finance College* (B & & &% i
L HERER), being engaged in teaching students in finance,
accounting and other majors. At the same time, Mr. Yan
served as director of Accounting and Statistics Department
at Jiangsu Bank School, deputy director of the Finance
Department and director (director level) of the Accounting
Department at Nanjing Higher Finance College. From August
2002 to February 2018, Mr. Yan worked at Nanjing Audit
Institute (renamed as Nanjing Audit University in 2015), being
engaged in teaching students in finance, accounting, financial
management, auditing and other majors; at the same time, Mr.
Yan also served as the secretary to the Chief Party Committee
of Accounting School, director of Finance Department,
head of Audit Department and other roles at Nanjing Audit
University. From March 2004 to June 2019, Mr. Yan served
as independent directors and external supervisors of seven
rural commercial banks, such as Jiangyan Rural Commercial
Bank* (=B 2 ¥ ER77), Siyang Rural Commercial Bank*
OM R 2 A5 7 %8R 77), Jingjiang Rural Commercial Bank* (5
T 2 38 77) and Yangzhou Rural Commercial Bank* (%5 M|
2 B R 7). From February 1978 to December 1979, Mr. Yan
studied at Jiangsu Bank School (full-time education), majoring
in banking and obtained his diploma; From September 1983
to June 1985, Mr. Yan studied at Shaanxi University of Finance
and Economics* (P& 78 81 45 2 Bt ) (currently known as Xi'an
Jiaotong University) (full-time education), majoring in finance
and obtained his diploma; From September 1991 to June
1993, Mr. Yan studied at Shaanxi University of Finance and
Economics* (currently known as Xi‘an Jiaotong University) (full-
time education), majoring in finance and obtained his diploma;
From September 1997 to July 1999, Mr. Yan attended the
postgraduate course in economic management of the School
of Economics and Trade at Nanjing Agricultural University (on
the-job education) and obtained the certificate of completion.
Mr. Yan holds a bachelor’s degree in finance from Shaanxi
University of Finance and Economics* (currently known as Xi‘an
Jiaotong University). He was qualified as an associate professor
and chief accountant.

* for translation purposes only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Choi Ho Yan

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (“Mr. Choi"), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 29 June 2020. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Choi graduated from the University of Hertfordshire, the
United Kingdom in July 1998 with a bachelor of arts. He has
extensive experience in auditing, accounting, corporate
finance, advisory and restructuring and investors relations.

Mr. Choi is currently an independent non-executive director of
Time Watch Investments Limited (stock code: 2033), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since May
2013; and an independent non-executive director of Jimu
Group Limited (stock code: 8187), a company listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange, since February 2022. Mr. Choi served as an
independent non-executive director of Long Well International
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares were delisted on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 28 May 2021, from
March 2020 to March 2021; and the chief financial officer of
KOS International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8042), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, from January
2018 to December 2021.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERGSREERBRENT

Siu Siu Ling, Robert
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (“Mr. Siu”), aged 70, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 29 June 2020. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Siu is the sole proprietor of the firm, Messrs. Robert Siu &
Co., Solicitors. Mr. Siu holds a bachelor’s degree in laws from
the University of London and a postgraduate certificate in laws
from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a Master of
Laws from the University of Greenwich, United Kingdom. He
has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong since 1992 and
has been admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales since
1993. Mr. Siu engages in general practice in his legal field.

Mr. Siu serves as an independent non-executive director of
Future World Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 572), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
November 2011; and an independent non-executive director
of Finet Group Limited (stock code: 8317), a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, since September 2010. Mr. Siu
served as an independent non-executive director of Kaisun
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8203), a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, from December 2002 to December
2020.

28 China Saite Group Company Limited #FEEFEBEFR A A

P o
BYFHTES

BB L E([ELE]D  705%  BH2020% 6 A 29
BHEZTARNRAABYIFNTES - FIHANR
NAFHEEETRFULREXTZTESRTFMEE

BELERBIREMEGANBELEE - B
ERBERIXRBNERBIBUNBERENSE
RERARERE - B ERERMERKRE
ERELTBM - RE1INFRETEERIRE
TSRAD - K2 8 1993 F A2 1 JE A% B K Bk AR HT A2 vl
RETGRAD - MAEREARRREFT—RUE -

BaEB20NF N AREARRM RS RIZERE
BRAR(—RREBEIMERETHRR - BRHR
SR S7T)MBIMIEITEE - KE2010F9 A8
EEMELEBRER A D) (—RPRBERFTGEM _ETH
HATE - BRI - 8317) B IERITES - &
SRR 2002512 A& 20205 12 AEEEEIRR A
RARI(—HKREBERFTGEM ETH AT H R
5% 1 8203) MBI FERITE S -



Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board has committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to
safeqguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

The Company has adopted its own corporate governance
policy on 11 November 2019 in additional to the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
has complied with all code provisions of the CG Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020, except for the
deviation disclosed below:

Deviation
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Considered Reason for Deviation

AiREEREMBANREE

A7.1  Forregular board meetings, an
agenda and accompanying board
papers should be sent to all held and the relevant

directors. These should be sentina  Board meeting papers

timely manner and at least 3 days

before the intended date of aboard  less than 3 days before the

meeting. date of the Board meeting.
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During the year, certain ad
hoc Board meetings were

were sent to all Directors

The Board members of the Company were informed by the
management of the Company by email, by WeChat or by
phone on the updated information of proposed ad hoc
projects/transaction(s) to be entered by the Company from
time to time. Although the meeting papers could not be sent
to the Directors at least 3 days before the meeting, the Board
members still have sufficient information to discuss the
matters on proposed projects or transactions of the
Company. The Board will use its best efforts to meet the CG
Code requirements.
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TEERKRS

Code Provision Deviation Considered Reason for Deviation
SRR X REETER BiEEREREEANRR
C12  Management should provide all During the year, All the executive Directors were involved in the daily

30

members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of
the Company's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to
discharge their duties under the
Listing Rules.
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management failed to
provide to the Directors
the management accounts
of major subsidiary
companies each month.
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China Saite Group Company Limited #FEEFEBEFR A A

operation of the Group and were fully aware of the
performance, position and prospects of the Company, and
the management has provided to all Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) half-yearly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail prior to the regular Board meetings of the Company.

Further, the management of the Company has provided all
members of the Board, in a timely manner, updates on any
material changes to the performance, position and prospects
of the Company and sufficient background or explanatory
information for matters brought before the Board. Therefore,
the Company considered that all members of the Board had
been given a balanced and understandable assessment on
the Company's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail.
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TEER/HRS

Code Provision Deviation Considered Reason for Deviation
SR TRk BFEHBEREMANRE
C.2.1  The Board should oversee the During the year, the Due to the inadvertent oversight, there was deficiency in

*

Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an
ongoing basis, ensure that a review
of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal
control systems has been
conducted at least annually and
report to Shareholders that it has
done so in its Corporate
Governance Report. The review
should cover all material controls,
including financial , operational and
compliance controls.

for translation purposes only

Company failed to have
effective risk management
and internal control
systems within the Group,
i.e. deficiencies in internal
control over compliance
matters.

internal control system of the Group. The Company had
engaged RSM Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited as internal
control consultant to review its certain existing internal
control measures on the areas agreed by the Board and
provide suggestions and recommendation to improve its
internal control systems and risk management system to
the Group.

In order to fulfill the Resumption Guidance stipulated by
the Stock Exchange (details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 July 2020) that
the Company should conduct an independent internal
control review and demonstrate that it has put in place
adequate internal control and procedures to comply with
the Listing Rules (the "IC Guidance”), the Company has
engaged Azzura Corporate Advisory Limited in July 2020 to
conduct the Internal Control Review and prepare the
Internal Control Report, the findings of which were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7
May 2021.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 13
September 2021, having considered the significance of
maintaining an appropriate and effective internal control
systems and in order to provide further assurance to the
public that the Company is committed to fulfill the IC
Guidance, the Board has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited ("Shinewing") on 31 August 2021 as its internal
control consultant to conduct a second round of
independent review of the internal control systems and
procedures of the Group (“2nd IC Review").

The 2nd IC Review and follow-up review have been
conducted from October 2021 to January 2022 as part of the
Company's efforts to meet the Resumption Guidance of the
Stock Exchange, in particular the IC Guidance. Shinewing has
issued an internal control review report dated 22 February
2022 (the "2nd Internal Control Review Report’), which
sets out (i) the deficiencies identified in the 2nd IC Review; (ii)
the recommendations to the Company; and (iii) the result of
follow-up review of the remedial measures taken by the
Company and Anhui Dayu Construction Engineering Co,,
Ld* (B ABER TIZARAF]) as at 29 January 2022.

The key findings of the 2nd Internal Control Review Report

prepared by Shinewing have been published in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 February 2022.

* BEERDZ
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Code Provision Deviation Considered Reason for Deviation
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Deviation

mBfER

Code Provision

F AR

TEER/HRS

Considered Reason for Deviation

HimEEERCMANRE

A6.7  Independent non-executive
directors should also attend general
meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders.

Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Wu
Zhongxian and Mr. Yan
Hualin, all being the
independent non-
executive Directors, did
not attend the
extraordinary general

meeting of the Company

held on 22 July 2020.
A67  BAUFRITEZTMRLFEBRAK
g 2ETERRER -

HOBCRAF RIS »

E1.2  The chairman of the Board should
attend the annual general meeting.
The chairman should also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration

the annual general

and nomination committees to
attend.
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The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review such practices from time to time to
ensure that they comply with the CG Code and align with the
latest development.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions and dealing (the “Code of Conduct”) by
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
contained in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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The Company did not hold

meeting in the year 2020.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, they were unable to attend
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
22 July 2020.
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As no annual general meeting was held in Year 2020, the
Directors are unable to comment as to whether the Company
has complied with the said code provisions in Appendix 14 of
Listing Rules.
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TEERKRS

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code and
the Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised ten Directors,
including five executive Directors and five independent non-
executive Directors as named below.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Fanghua

Mr. Liu Zhibo

Mr. Hua Gang

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Yan Hualin

Mr. Wu Zhongxian

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

The biographical information of the current Directors are set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

None of the Directors have a relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with
another Director.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at 31 December 2020, the positions of chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company were held by Mr. Jiang
Jiangiang and Mr. Shao Xiaogiang respectively. The chairman
provided leadership for the Board and was responsible for
overall strategic planning and management of our Group. The
chief executive officer focused on overseeing the production
and technical teams of our Group. Their respective
responsibilities were clearly defined and set out in writing.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION
AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 105(A) of the Company’s articles of
association, not less than one-third of the Directors (or
otherwise the number nearest one-third) for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting of the Company. All retiring Directors shall be eligible
for re-election.

Article 109 of the Company’s articles of association provides
that any person appointed as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting but shall not be
taken into account in determining the Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Each of Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, Mr. Shao Xiaogiang and Mr. Xu
Fanghua, the executive Directors, was appointed for an initial
term of three years and is subject to renewal for successive
term of one year each commencing from the next day after the
expiry of the then current term. Mr. Liu Zhibo and Mr. Hua
Gang, the executive Directors, were appointed for an initial
term of three years commencing from 8 July 2019. Other than
Mr. Xu Jiaming, each of the independent non-executive
Directors was appointed for a term of one year. Mr. Xu Jiaming
is appointed for an initial term of two years and was subject to
renewal for successive term of one year each commencing
from the next day after the expiry of the then current term of
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at least once every three years at the annual
general meeting of the Company. Their appointments shall be
reviewed by the Nomination Committee when they are due for
re-election.

There was no annual general meeting held in 2020.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors are responsible to
scrutinize the Company's performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and ensuring that exercise of
the board authority is within the powers conferred to the Board
under the applicable laws, articles of association of the
Company and rules and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board holds at least four meetings a year. The Board
convenes meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis,
as required by business needs. All Directors are invited to
attend the Board meetings in person or by telephone
conference.

Board papers will be given to the Board before the date of the
Board meeting by the company secretary with reasonable
time.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than a written resolution.

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of eight

Board meetings. The attendance of each of the Board members
was set out on page 46 of this annual report.
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ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE
BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions, risk management, internal control systems and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
Directors make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
company secretary and senior management. The Directors
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis on
the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on
continuous professional development:
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st
TEELGRS
Reading
regulatory
update or
corporate
governance
Attending related
training on or other
notifiable compliance
transaction relevant
and director’s to director’s
duties duties
REEREHD

HFRR HEEEELRR
ATAHiXER HREEREMAE
ESHENEI HHEAESRER

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang BEmLA

(resigned on 29 October 2021) (R 2021 4F 10 A 29 HF#T) v
Mr. Shao Xiaogjiang Al/Nog 5 A

(resigned on 17 November 2021) (R20214E 11 A 17 HEF) v
Mr. Xu Fanghua RIEERAE 4
Mr. Liu Zhibo BlEREE v
Mr. Hua Gang M5 A 4
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Xu Jiaming RKREAL A v
Mr. Yan Hualin BRER A 4
Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert Bkt

(appointed on 29 June 2020) (2020 6 H29 HEZ(F) 4
Mr. Choi Ho Yan B RE

(appointed on 29 June 2020) (R2020F 6 H29 HEZ(F) 4
Mr. Wu Zhongxian REBRAE

(resigned on 21 March 2022) (R 20223 H21 HEHE) 4
DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS’ SE=NEAEBE 2 BT RR
LIABILITY INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to ARRERHEEETRBAREEST RS RE
cover the Directors’ and officers’ risk exposure arising out of BERRIEBKHMEENRAR XA ETFEH
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed KIREE o

annually.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to assist it
in carrying out its responsibilities. All committees have their
own terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code, with the
latest version adopted with effect from 28 March 2019. The full
terms of reference is available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial
information and audit plan and relationship with external
auditor, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management, internal
control or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date of
this CG Report, the Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yan Hualin
(Chairman), Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29
June 2020) and Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June
2020).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, five meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to review the annual unaudited
financial results in respect of the year ended 31 December
2019, to follow up update on the 2019 audit and review the
preliminary audit findings by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, and to
recommend the appointment of external auditor of the
Company. The Audit Committee also reviewed the significant
issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures,
risk management and internal control systems and scope of
work. The attendance of each of the committee members was
set out on page 46 of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the external auditor and there was no issue of
significant importance requiring disclosure in this annual report
under the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor without the
presence of the executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The full terms of reference is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange's website. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of
the Remuneration Committee were held to review the
remuneration package of all Directors and also considered the
terms of appointment of new Directors, and other related
matters. The attendance of each of the committee members,
namely Mr. Wu Zhongxian (Chairman), Mr. Shao Xiaogiang, Mr.
Yan Hualin, Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert and Mr. Choi Ho Yan was
set out on page 46 of this annual report.

As at the date of this CG Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (Chairman) (appointed on 29 June
2020), Mr. Yan Hualin and Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29
June 2020) and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Shan Hu
(appointed on 18 November 2021) and Mr. Zhang Tianbo
(appointed on 14 December 2021).

Details of the emoluments of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code,
with the latest version adopted with effect from 28 March 2019.
The full terms of reference is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The principal duties
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures
for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of
the Nomination Committee were held to review the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board, to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, to
consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for
election at the annual general meeting, and to recommend the
appointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee
considered that an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained. The attendance of
each of the committee members, namely Mr. Jiang Jiangiang
(Chairman), Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Wu Zhongxian, Mr. Siu Siu Ling,
Robert and Mr. Choi Ho Yan was set out on page 46 of this
annual report.

As at the date of this CG Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Yan Hualin, Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on
29 June 2020) and Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29
June 2020) and three executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Xulin
(Chairman) (appointed on 18 November 2021), Mr. Shan Hu
(appointed on 18 November 2021) and Mr. Zhang Tianbo
(appointed on 14 December 2021).
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Board Diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity of the Board in order to maintain the
competitive advantage of the Company.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors including but not limited to, gender, age, culture,
skills, experience, background and other qualities. The
differences of factors of the Director will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. The
ultimate selection decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates shall bring to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors, from time to time, the
implementation of the policy, and reviews, as appropriate, the
policy to ensure the effectiveness of the policy with the
following measurable objectives throughout the reporting
period:

1. At least one-third of the member of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

2. At least one of the members of the Board shall have
qualification in accounting, financing or other
professional qualifications; and

3. At least one of the members of the Board has more than
ten years of experience in business other than the core
business of the Group.

The above measurable objectives have been met by the
Company.

Pursuant to the amended Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules
(effective from 1 January 2022), the Stock Exchange will not
regard a single gender board of directors as achieving member
diversity. As at the date of this CG Report, the directors of the
Board are all male directors, and have not achieved diversity
under the amended Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules. The
Company will comply with the relevant rule before 31
December 2024.
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The nomination committee will monitor the implementation
of the board diversity policy from time to time to ensure its
continual effectiveness.

Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) which sets out, inter alia, the criteria, process and
procedures in nominating and selecting candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as Directors. In the nomination and
selection of new Directors, the Nomination Committee assesses
the key attributes that an incoming Director should have,
based on attributes of the existing Board and the needs of the
Board. The nomination criteria include, inter alia, diversity,
business experience, board expertise, skills, character, integrity,
independency and competence. In the nomination process,
each candidate shall be considered upon evaluation against
the criteria. According to the nomination procedure, multiple
channels will be used for identifying suitable Director
candidates, including referral from Directors, shareholders,
management, advisors of the Company and external executive
search firms. Upon compilation and interview of the list of
candidates, the potential candidates will be recommended to
the Nomination Committee and the Board for consideration
and decision.

If the candidate is nominated by the Shareholders, the
nomination and appointment shall follow the procedures (if
any) set out in the Company’s articles of association, the Listing
Rules and the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Policy shall also be governed by other
additional and relevant requirements under the Company's
articles of association and the Listing Rules applicable to the
nomination, appointment, election and re-election of Directors.

Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee was established on 11 November
2019 and comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Yan Hualin and Mr. Wu
Zhongxian, and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao
Xiaogiang and Mr. Liu Zhibo (Chairman), all being voting
members. The Compliance Committee also comprises Mr. Lin
Jiahui (ceased on 20 March 2020), the Chief Financial Officer, as
a non-voting member.
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The primary functions of the Compliance Committee include
reviewing, formulating, approving and monitoring the Group’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, including but not limited to reviewing the
internal controls of key business operation of the Company,
arranging training and continuous professional development
for the directors, and monitoring the corporate governance
practices and functions of the Company to ensure the Group
are fully complied with the relevant regulations and maintain
the good conduct within its Company operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no meeting of the
Compliance Committee was held.

Independent Board Committee

The Board has established an independent board committee
on 15 July 2020. The Independent Board Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Choi Ho Yan (Chairman), Mr. Yan Hualin and Mr. Siu Siu
Ling, Robert.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, three meetings of
the Independent Board Committee were held to approve the
engagement of the independent internal control consultant, to
follow up on the progress of the internal control review, and to
review the internal control review report. The attendance of
each of the committee members was set out on page 46 of
this annual report.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and make recommendations to the
Board, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Code of Conduct and the
Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

TEER/HRS

EHREZEeMTIERERRERT  HE HER
EEAKEERAEREERENEGREREE
B BRETERRIARFEEXHLENN
HREEHE  REERPIIINBEEXERARE
BEARAWEERE T R LBEE - NERAKE
TERETHBEER  LEARFNEBFIREFR
WFETTAS

HZE200F12A31BILFE  AREEGRETT

=

BYEEZEE

EEEON2020F 7 15BRIBIYEELRES -
BYEELECRA 2B UIFNITE FEEC
St (EFE) - BREB T ENEIREE AR -

REZE2020F 12 A31BLEFE  BYESZE®
HEBMT k& HDEZIEIE T R 302 HI B
M BERIESIEMOEE - REHRIZEH
EHEWRE - SZEEGRENEREBRIANAFR
$468E °

EEARAE

EEgRBETEEBEATAZTRIEXEDII
IERPAEL 2 BRE ©

EEeCRIARANERERRRLER KA
EXeffhBEES EEhaREEENE
EFEEEER ARABRZEREMEERTEN
ERBRERER TRTAMEETANERE
MR R R EEERT G RBIA KRR AE
EERMEEHARKE -

Annual Report 2020 — T -~ TEFR 45



Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRS

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF
DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE

MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company

EXENLBENEBZHEERCHE

HE200F 2ANBILFEETZARGESS

LEZZEBEER

REERA® L 8BS HF ik

held during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the HRN T -
table below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings
il Va-£ e
Independent
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Board
Name of Directors AGM' EGM? Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
£3:4 RREFAE RREBAAE EZ® ENZEE FWZEe RAZEE BUEIZEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Jiangjang (Chairman) BRELE(ZE) 0/0* 01 8/ N/A N/A 22 N/A
TEA TER @R
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang B 0/0 01 88 N/A 0 N/A N/A
(Chief Executive Officer) (1184%) TER TR TER
Mr. Xu Fanghua RRELE 0/0 01 6/8 N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEA TER TER @R
M Liu Zhibo i bt 00 o1 88 N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEA TER TER TER
Mr. Hua Gang ERlnE 00 01 8/8 N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEA TER TER TER
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Xu Jiaming RRARE 010 01 7/8 45 N/A ) N/A
TER TER
Mr.Wu Zhongxian REERE 00 01 6/8 35 Wy 0 N/A
TR
Mr. Yan Hualin BEREE 010 01 8//8 5/5¢ 010 N/A 33
TEA
r. Siu Siu Ling, Robert BkRAE (R o00F 0/0 11 33 33 0/0 0/0 33
(appointed on 29 June 2020) 629 HEZ(E)
Mr.Choi Ho Yan BECRE(R200F 00 ”n 3 33 0/0 0/0 33
(appointed on 29 June 2020) 629 AEZ(E)
+ Chairman ' £33
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Notes:
1. There was no annual general meeting ("AGM") held in 2020.

2. An extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”") of the Company was held
on 22 July 2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr.
Wu Zhongxian and Mr. Yan Hualin, all being the independent non-
executive Directors, were unable to attend the EGM.

3. Attendances of the Directors appointed during the year ended 31
December 2020 were made by reference to the number of meetings
held during their respective tenures.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of executive Directors during the year.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY IN
RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “2020 Financial
Statements”). In preparing the 2020 Financial Statements, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Due to the changes of auditor of the Company in December
2019, June 2020, November 2020 and September 2021, the
Company required additional time to gather sufficient
information for the new auditor to perform and complete their
audit procedures. As a result, the publication of the Company's
2020 and 2021 financial results and 2020 and 2021 annual
reports as well as 2020 and 2021 interim financial results and
interim reports were delayed, which constitute non-
compliance with Rules 13.49(1) and 13.46(1) of the Listing Rules
respectively.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company,
BDO Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the 2020
Financial Statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 104 to 112 of this annual report.

TEER/HRS
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TEERKRS

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the external auditors of
the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out as follows:

2 SR = N
AABREZ2020F 12 A3 HIEFERETFARD

7 N B8 A R 2 EIRTS KRR RIE RSN S
RERED S (S SRS 2 FrENE DI N T

Fees Paid/Payable

et ENER

Service Category RMB’000
RIS R ARETF T
Audit Services ENZ RIS 10,574
Non-audit Services IEEZ RS -
10,574

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publications
and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Principles and guidelines of our risk management framework
are set for an effective and adequate approach to be applied
across the Group to manage the risks associated with its
business and operations. This framework is designed to
enhance risk management of the Group through an integrated
framework so that all material risks faced by the Group are
identified and appropriately managed.
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Control Approach

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal control for effective risk management are
implemented. The management is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control activities of the
Group.

The Audit Committee provides independent review on
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group which prepared by the independent
consultant and gives their recommendation to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the internal
control review report and the Board is responsible for
approving policies and procedures designed by the
management.

External Consultant In Internal Control And
Risk Management

The Group also engaged an external consultant specialising in
identifying and evaluation of significant risk of our business and
operation. The external consultant does not have any
connection with the Group and the Board believes that their
involvement could enhance the objectivity and transparency
of evaluation process. In conjunction with our staff and senior
management, the external consultant conducts an annual
assessment on risk management and internal control systems
of the Group together with suggestion and solutions and
submit to the Board for their consideration.

During the year under review, the management assisted the
Board in the implementation of the Group’s policies and
procedures within the Board's delegation by identifying and
assessing the risks faced, and in the design, operation and
monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control
such risks. The Board conducted reviews and discussed with
the management on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems as required by code
provision C.2 of the CG Code, covering adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions and any resolutions for material internal
control defects.

TEER/HRS
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TEERKRS

Annual Review

The risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Audit
Committee/Independent Board Committee and the Board, and
will be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year
by the Board and the Audit Committee respectively. These
systems were considered effective and adequate.

Inside Information Policy

The Company adopted a policy and procedures on disclosure
of inside information (the “Inside Information Policy”) setting
out the Group’s procedure in handling such information to
ensure its equal and timely dissemination to comply with the
requirements under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group have established a system to ensure the
management and the relevant personnel have sufficient up-to-
date knowledge of relevant laws and regulations. Under such
system, the Directors and members of the management in
charge of the Group's construction projects shall be informed
of the changes to the laws, regulations and government
policies applicable to the Group’s business and the implications
thereof by email and written notice as soon as practicable and,
where the Directors consider necessary, a briefing on such
changes to the executive Directors and members of the
management in charge of the Group’s construction projects
(the "Relevant Personnel”) shall be conducted. Moreover, the
Group will organise seminars to be attended by the Relevant
Personnel semi-annually on a compulsory basis for each of the
two full financial years after Listing disregard whether there will
be any changes to the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
Thereafter, training session would be held when there is a
change or update to the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

In addition, the Company had engaged an external PRC legal
adviser to, among others, monitor the Group’s compliance with
the PRC laws and regulations applicable to its business
operation.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina (“Ms. Foo") of CS Legend Corporate
Services Limited, an external service provider, was appointed as
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) on 1 April 2017. Ms. Foo's primary contact person at
the Company was Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, the executive Director.
Ms. Foo resigned as the Company Secretary with effect from 1
July 2020.

Following the resignation of Ms. Foo, Mr. Pang Wai Ching (“Mr.
Pang”) of Techson Management Limited, an external service
provider, was appointed as the Company Secretary with effect
from 1 July 2020 until his resignation as such with effect from 1
February 2021. Ms. Chang Kam Lai (“Ms. Chang”) of EDM
Corporate Advisory Limited, an external service provider, was
appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from 1
February 2021 to fill the vacancies. Mr. Pang’s primary contact
person at the Company was Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, the executive
Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Foo and Mr.
Pang have attended relevant professional training to update
their skills and knowledge. They met the training requirement
set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy with the objective
of achieving right balance of the amount of dividend and the
amount of profits retained in the business for various purposes.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would
consider, inter alia, the following factors: (i) the Company and
the Group's actual and expected financial performance; (ii)
general business conditions and strategies;(iii) liquidity position
and future commitment of the Group; (iv) the Group's expected
working capital requirements and future expansion plans; (v)
shareholders’ interests; (vi) general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company; and (vii)
any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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TEERKRS

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and the Company’s articles of
association.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings
will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders and Putting Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the
Directors on requisition of one or more shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Directors or the Secretary by mail to 22nd Floor
of The Toy House, No. 100 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Furthermore, shareholders may propose a person for election
as a Director of the Company at a general meeting, details of
which are available on the website of the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will
not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

TEER/HRS
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BRAEBATHAEX LA EMERREN

Address:  22nd Floor of The Toy House, No. 100 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

ik BBNBRAYEERBI0RTEEEKNE 212

Fax: (852) 3691 8124
BE:
Email: hkadmin@chinasaite.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and the investment
community, and in particular, through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings. At the annual general meeting,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to
meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.
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TEERARS

The Company’s last AGM was held on 24 May 2019, and the RAE EERRBESRKETHR201945 H24 %
Company has not convene any AGM since then. 17 WERARIARBRAEMBRRBAFAE -
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS AHBEREUT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has REZE2020F 12 A31BIEFE - RAFLEHHE
not made any change to its articles of association. An up-to- ABERMAAMEEEWER - A ARIHEBERMA
date version of the Company’s articles of association is also B9 B8 AR AR IR AT A AR A B A8 U e B A P g uh &
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s B o

website.

Hong Kong, 18 April 2022 BE 2022%F 48188
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APPROACH TO ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE AND
REPORTING

The 2020 Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (the
“Report”) presented by China Saite Group Company Limited
(“China Saite” or the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries,
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) is a detailed report
following the requirements set forth in the ESG Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules governing the
Main Board. This report captures our major ESG policies,
initiatives and performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

As an integrated steel structure and fully assembled
prefabricated structure construction solution service provider,
the Group offers integrated construction solutions to
customers according to the technical specifications and
requirements of different projects as well as the needs of
customers. The services include design, secondary detailed
design, production, installation and after-sale services for
customers.

The Group believes that environmental protection, low carbon
footprint, resource conservation and sustainable development
are the key trends in society. In order to follow the key trends
and pursue a successful and sustainable business model, the
Group recognises the importance of integrating
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") aspects into its
risk management system and has taken corresponding
measures in its daily operation and governance perspective.

REPORTING SCOPE

Unless stated otherwise, this report mainly covers the Group's
major operating revenue business under direct management
control, including its construction of steel structure and
prefabricated construction projects in the PRC.

The Group will continue to assess the major environmental,
social and governance aspects of different businesses to
determine whether they shall be included in the ESG report.
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IRIRY LB MRELRHRS

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The compilation process of this report follows the reporting
principles suggested by the Guide, which include:

Materiality: We evaluate the importance priorities of
various sustainable development issues to the Group,
thereby defining the disclosure focus of this report and
providing accurate and detailed responses to the issues
that stakeholders are most concerned about, and
utilising them as a reference basis for the Company to
formulate sustainable development targets.

Quantitative: the reported ESG performance is
measurable and quantified.

Balance: In addition to disclosing the Company’s status
in sustainable management, this report also discusses
the Company’s sustainable development challenges and
future action plans.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the way the
information collected and presented in this report is
consistent with the previous year's practices to ensure
information comparability.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views relating to its
businesses and environmental, social and governance issues. In
order to understand and address stakeholders’ concerns, the
Group communicates with its key stakeholders, including but
not limited to employees, investors, customers, suppliers,
government bodies and communities, through different
channels such as conferences, electronic platforms and public
events. In formulating operational strategies and
environmental, social and governance measures, the Group
takes into account the stakeholders’ expectations and strives to
improve its performance through cooperation with the
stakeholders, so as to create greater value for the community.
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Materiality Assessment

The management and employees who are responsible for the
key functions of the Group have participated in preparing this
report, assisting the Group in reviewing its operation,
identifying key environmental, social and governance issues
and assessing the importance of these issues to our businesses
and stakeholders. We collected the information from relevant
departments and business units of the Group with reference to
the identified material environmental, social and governance
issues.

The following table summarises the Group's significant
environmental, social and governance issues as set out in this
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report:
The ESG Reporting Guide Material ESG aspects of the Group Page
RS HERERMERES AEERE HEREAEZERE B
A. Environment
AR
Al.Emissions Waste Management 60
AL HER) REEMETR
Green House Gas Emission 61
R =R AS HE
A2. Use of Resources Energy Consumption 64
A2. B RN BEIRUERE
Water Consumption and Use of Packaging Materials 65
FKE R BEMEHE R
A3. Environment and Natural Resources Environmental Impact Management 66
A3 IR R RARE R RETEER
Noise Pollution 67
B 5L
Outdoor Lightings 67
FoNE S
Landscape and Natural Habitat 67
SENRBAERM
A4. Climate change Physical Risks 68
A4 RARE L ERAR
Transition Risks 68
FEEFEN
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The ESG Reporting Guide Material ESG aspects of the Group Page
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
confirmed that appropriate and effective management policies

and internal control systems for environmental, social and

governance issues were in place and that the information
disclosed in the ESG Report was in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide.
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A. ENVIRONMENT

Al

Emissions

General disclosure and key performance indicators

('KPI")

The core businesses of the Group, which mainly
involve construction of steel structure and
prefabricated construction projects in the PRC,
mainly rely on internet technology and related
equipment and do not involve any manufacturing
processes in the course of business. Therefore,
during the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group and its office did not generate significant
emissions, water pollutants and hazardous wastes
during the operation, except for greenhouse gas
("GHG") emissions and non-hazardous waste.

Global warming and climate change have become
major environmental issues across the world. The
Group aims to minimize energy consumption and
carbon emissions and has been exploring
operational models which incur less adverse
impact on the environment. From the
environmental reporting perspective, we mainly
focused on the environmental impact of the
Group's offices in the PRC during the daily
operation and relevant measures to be taken, and
have formulated policies and procedures relating
to environmental management to govern limited
GHG emissions and non- hazardous waste
generated during our operation. The Group aims
to reduce or maintain air emissions at the stable
level in the future.

IRIRs LG RERQHRS

21

Al BER

REBZOEB(EERNFREYEMNE
BRERRESEHEZEBEHREE
ML) EEMRBEB AR RARBER
H EEBART TS REMNEET
Fre B - REIZE 202012 A31 8 1E
FE - BREERB(EZERE] K
REEBREYIIN XEERENFAE
REBHRMAVEEERERETIENR
KT R EEREEY)

2HEEMRIEEZLEKBE2REH
HEMEBRRBEBE - NEB LUK
BEREREMREBEMABRRE Y —HF
REMERBELERIOTFFENE
EEN - RREREED  KMEE
HEAEETHABAEEBELER
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Waste management

The Group adheres to waste management
principle and strives to properly manage and
dispose of wastes produced by our business
activities. Our waste management practice
complied with relevant laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection. The non-

NEBEBRTEENERRA  BHE
ZEEREERMNERIHEED
BEEY - RPNEEYESEERFA
HEARFRRZRBN - REFELEE
HEMEEEEY T EARE - WS
25 - REZE2020F12A31HIEFE

hazardous wastes generated by the Group's REBRMEEAMABEWOT :
operations mainly consist of paper, toner

cartridges and ink cartridges. During the year

ended 31 December 2020, the consumption by

the Group is as follow:

Non-hazardous waste category Unit 2020 2019
EBERZYER B 2020 20196
Paper tonnes 0.099 0.75
Aok Mg

Intensity tonnes/employee 0.001 3.66
BE L3

Toner cartridge pieces 23 140.00
fi s 1&

Intensity pieces/employee 0.15 0.68
E @, &8

Ink cartridges pieces 39 60.00
B8 1&

Intensity pieces/employee 0.26 0.29
E &/ 1E&
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We regularly monitor the consumption volume of
paper, toner cartridges and ink cartridges and
have implemented a number of reduction
measures. The Group's office has also provided
suitable facilities and encouraged our staff to sort
and recycle the wastes to achieve the objectives in
waste reduction, reuse and recycling in its
operations. We encourage staff to be mindful
when printing documents and make use of
double-sided printing whenever possible. Non-
essential items should be used in e-format. Any
documents that are no longer in use should be
shredded and recycled. The Group maintains a
high standard in waste reduction, educates its
employees on the significance of sustainable
development and provides relevant support to
enhance their skills and knowledge in sustainable
development.

The Group does not produce any hazardous
wastes in its business activities. The Group aims to
reduce or maintain the current hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes at the stable level in the
next 3 years in the future compared to this
Reporting Period.

NHOUSE GAS ("“GHG”) emission

The major source of carbon emission is the
electricity consumption in the workplace. The
detailed summary of the GHG emission is shown
as below:

IRIRY LB MRERHRS

BHEEHMERARER MIMBRK
RE YHITZHEBDBERE - K
SENMAETTREERE LS
BEIERERBRAEEREY Nk
REEBETEBRE BAKBE
BB IR - WAPIZE B THETEI X
2RO UWHERAEEREmMITE - 3F
BHEmEAEFHEAER - ERAH
EIEEPEER- AT G e
ERENEERRE FEREERA
SERRNBEMRREHMEBRE
IR EETAHEEROKEMA
o

AEBYBREHZDPELENE
TERY - BAREHMMAL A%
EOERRERKR=FAKRAEERE
MESEVR D JRFERENRF -

REFRE T2 R TIESNAE
B RAERBHMNFEHEY R
T~
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GHG performance summar,

GHG Scope' Unit 20202 2019

BEREEHE" B 2020 2 20196

Direct GHG emission (Scope 1) tonnes 5.11 -
— petrol consumption

BERBEEYR(EE) —UERE W

Intensity tonnes/employee 0.034 -

BE Ly 3=

Indirect GHG emission (Scope 2) tonnes 4,952.95 368.70
— electricity consumption

BERBEEYN(BE2) —FEHE W

Intensity tonnes/employee 32.59 1.80

BE Ly 3=

Other indirect GHG emission (Scope 3) tonnes 151.29 3.70
— paper and water consumption?

H )R = REEZEH R (HBE?3) I
— AR R FERES

Intensity tonnes/employee 1.00 0.02

HE M 1E R

Total GHG emission tonnes 5,109.35 37230

BERBHRES Mg

Intensity tonnes/employee 33.62 1.82

BE Ly 3=

The Group has implemented a number of
measures to mitigate energy consumption such as
turning off the air-conditioning system at night or
when leaving office, keeping the office
temperature at 25°C in summer and using LED
lights or energy-saving light in the office, etc.

REBECERE TEE  UREER
SERE N fETR RS BERT E A = R
BREEARG  HAEERZBES
FEBERKERERAERBLEDE K

PN Paray
EnEERE S -

GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and 1
was in reference to, including but not limited to, the reporting
requirements of the "GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” issued by the World Resources Institute and the
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, the
“Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions

and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional

Purposes)’and the latest published Baseline Emission Factors for

Regional Power Grids in China.

Due to the update on statistical and calculation methods, direct 2
comparison with figures of the previous year may not be available.
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At the project level, the Group considers the
principle of environmental protection when
launching each of its projects. For example, in the
course of selecting suppliers, we assess whether
the materials used by the suppliers in the activities
are hazardous to the environment and whether
they can effectively conserve energy and minimize
carbon emissions. In addition to the above-
mentioned measures, the Group issues
environmental-related memorandum to its staff to
raise their awareness of environmental
preservation. Notices and posters relating to the
environmental information have been placed in
the offices to promote the best practice of the
environmental management.

The Group has complied with relevant
environmental laws and regulations, including but
not limited to Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Air Pollution
and Environmental Protection Law of Solid Waste
Pollution of the People’s Republic of China. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with
laws and regulations relating to the air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste that would have a significant
impact on the Group.

IRIRY LB MRERHRS

EHEBEEEL AEEERELRE—
EE B R EERERRA - EEHRSE
BEEZERERRNEDERZYHE
BHREAENEDSEREEHERM
AR B RN o BR AL FE hE SN - AR E
SRBTHEMRBEMERSE AR
BRARM - PRAEZEH LFARE
EEHBEMER UESERRER

REERE -

AEBBEEBTREBERBEZREZR B
FRETRACHEARLMBIRFIRE
EI (R EARKEMBE KSR A
EY (R E AR LB KRS &R
JEY R E AR L FIE E 22 RE )5 4
RIBIRZED - RELE 20205 12 A 31
BIEFE  AEEBTTMEBEEZERR
BERBER . MKEIHEES AR
EXEEREEREEYIE  HASE
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A2.

Use of Resources

General disclosure and KPI

Energy consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group's consumption in petrol and electricity

A2. BiRFIA

REZE20200F 12 A3 HILEE » K&
B H TR

were:
Energy Type Unit 2020° 2019
BERESR B 2020 3 20194F
Petrol litre 2,335 -
e st

Intensity litre/employee 15.36 N/A i
mE #/EE

Electricity kWh 8,254,921 458,900.00
Bh FTRE

Intensity kWh/employee

BE TRE EE 54,308.69 223854

On top of the measures of mitigating the energy
consumption mentioned in previous section, the
Group strives to utilize telephone or video
conference to minimize face-to-face meeting in
order to reduce petrol consumption in traveling
and unnecessary business trips. The Group
encourages resources saving in daily office
operation and proactively fosters a low- carbon
corporate culture, which further increases our
employees’ awareness in energy conservation. The
Group aims to reduce or maintain the current
energy consumption at the stable level in the next
3 years in the future compared to this Reporting
Period.

Due to update on statistical and calculation methods, direct
comparison with figures of the previous year may not be available.
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Water consumption and use of packaging

materials

Our business activities require water usage is
relatively minimal through our business activities.
The majority of our water usage comes from water
supplies for our offices.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group consumed 115 tonnes (2019: 14,500
tonnes) of water and the water consumption per
employee was 10.45 tonnes (2019: 70.73 tonnes).
Regardless of limited water consumption, we still
promote behavioural changes at office and
encourage water conservation. Pantry and toilets
are posted with environmental messages to
remind employees for water conservation, which
results in further enhancing our employees’
awareness in water conservation. All water was
provided by municipal water supply. Therefore,
the Group did not have issues in sourcing water
that is fit for use and consumption. The Group
aims to maintain the current water consumption
at the stable level in the next 3 years in the future
compared to this Reporting Period.

In addition, due to the nature of business, the
Group did not have physical products for sale and
therefore did not involve any use of packaging
materials. Therefore, this disclosure is not
applicable to the Group.

IRIRY LB MRERHRS

FEKE N B E M EHE

BFONEH L BARMINEHE LD
FEHRKERYEED - TP KH
DRKRERPIMAERHAK

REZE20200F 12 A3 ALFE » A&
B AKE A 11588 (20194 : 14,500 H)
EB{EER/KE A 10450 (20194
7073W8) o BEAAFRKEB/R - BEMD
EHRAETHNITANE  SEBEHHH
7K o ZOKE RAFREHEARRME
RBERERBENBK E—FRS TIE
BMEIKER - FTARKEHETEIR
#® HMESKEAKREIEEIAEEX
fRE - EANREHEMEL  NEED
BERERR=ZFRNBERAKSH
BHEBENKFE -
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A3. Environment and Natural Resources

General disclosure and KPI

Environmental impact management

The Group pursues the best practices in
environment protection and focuses on the
impact of the Group’s businesses on the
environment and natural resources. In addition to
complying with relevant environmental laws and
regulations as well as properly preserve the natural
environment, the Group has integrated the
concept of environmental protection into its
internal management and daily operations, with
the aim of achieving environmental sustainability.

The Group strives to promote environmental
protection and make effective use of resources. It
continuously monitors if the business operations
incur any potential impact on the environment
and minimizes such impact on the environment
through promoting green office and operating
environment by adopting four basic principles of
reduce, reuse, recycle and replacement. Where
applicable, we adopt green procurement
strategies and the most practical technologies to
protect our natural resources.

China Saite Group Company Limited #FEEFEBEFR A A
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Noise pollution

Noise pollution practices are implemented during
our construction activities to minimize the noise
pollution. Programs are produced in the studios
with good soundproof facilities.

Outdoor lightings

During outdoor constructions, the lightings are
adjusted to avoid disturbing neighborhood
whenever possible.

Landscape and natural habitat

The Group strives to minimize any unnecessary
disturbance to the natural landscape and animal
habitat in the process of construction, in order to
preserve the natural beauty of the environment.

The Group regularly reviews its environmental
protection policies and has adopted the necessary
precautionary measures and actions to reduce
significant impact on the environment and natural
resources, and ensure that the Group complies
with relevant laws and regulations.

IRIRs LG RERQHRS

RE VTR

EEERTRSTERRST SRER -
NEERIBRESR AEARER
BREMNTEEHIFIER -

FoME S
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A4. Climate Change

Physical Risks

The increasing frequency and severity of extreme
weather events such as extreme cold or extreme
heat, storms, rainstorms and typhoons, could lead
to an increased risk of power shortages, interrupt
the operation chain and damage the Group's
assets. Taking into account the risk of business
interruption related to extreme weather events,
the Group will remain alert of significant policy
changes, and is committed to reducing its
environmental impact to minimize the impact of
any potential tightening of environmental
regulations on the Group's business operations.

Transition Risks

The Group keeps on monitoring changes in
regulatory, technological and market landscape
due to climate change, including the tightening of
national policies and listing rules. The Group has
been taking comprehensive measures to deal with
changing situation.
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B. SOCIETY
B1l. Employment
General disclosure
Employee benefits and equal opportunities
policies

Employees are regarded as the Group's largest and
most valuable assets and the core of competitive
advantage. They provide the Group with the
driving force for continuous innovation.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has fully complied with relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC, including the Company
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Regulations on Labour Inspection
and Security, as well as the statutory requirements
in Hong Kong, including the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Minimum Wages Ordinance, the Personal Data
Privacy Ordinance and other relevant rules and
regulations.

The Group is committed to maintaining a diverse
workforce that includes age, gender, family status,
sexual orientation, disability, ethnicity, religion and
equal opportunities. When job vacancies are
available within the Company, we will give
precedence to internal promotion. Only if there
are no suitable candidates within the Company
shall we arrange for external recruitment. The
Group has developed departure procedures and
departure interview practice. By talking face- to-
face with departing employees, we gain insight
into how to improve our corporate governance to
reduce employee turnover rate and retain talents
suitable for the Company.

IRIRY LB MRERHRS
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The Group’s staff handbook contains policies in
regard to recruitment, promotion, discipline,
working hours and leave. The human resources
department is responsible for ensuring all
employees have fully understood the contents of
the handbook. The management regularly reviews
the Group's remuneration and benefits policies
with reference to the market standards and is
committed to safeguarding the rights and
interests of the staff and providing reasonable
working hours. On the other hand, this helps to
attract and retain required talents and to fully
incentivize employees, thereby improve
employees’ performance. The Group adjusts
remuneration and benefits on an annual basis in
accordance with the employees’ individual
performance, contribution and market conditions.
We provide employees with a variety of paid
leaves, including statuary holidays, sick leave,
work-related injury leave, annual leave, marriage
and funeral leave, maternity leave, compensatory
leave for overtime, and personal leave.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to
employment and labour practices.
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As at 31 December 2020, the analysis of the
Group's employees by gender, age groups, and

employment type are depicted below:

IRIRs LG RERQHRS

202012 A318 - 1R - FicA
BEEAAEESENEEESD
ZRIRUINE

2020
—ECEF
No. of employee
Employee Structure EBE#HEB BEAH
Total number of employees EEHE 152
By gender R
Female M 35
Male S 117
By age RER
30 and below 30 BIATR 42
31-40 31-40 73
41-50 41-50 26
51 and above 51 K&BAE 1
By employment type R EER
Full time i 152
Part time Fe 0
By employment category LR
General —ET 126
Middle management FEEEAR 16
Senior management SEEEAE 7

Annual Report 2020 —ZT - THEFRH 71



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS

B2.

72

HERERERS

Health and Safety
General disclosure
Occupational health and safety

The Group has always placed emphasis on
occupational safety and has set up an
occupational health and safety management
system to provide a safe working environment for
office employees. In addition, the Group's relevant
business units have obtained valid Safety
Production Permit. We attach great importance to
the safety and accident prevention at construction
sites, and have set out policies, measures, and
procedures in this regard to avoid various
potential hazards. We have implemented the
following safety policies, measures and procedures
at construction sites:

For each project, we have at least one on-
site project safety officer to oversee project
safety on a daily basis;

We meet with third-party installation teams
regularly to review safety matters and
discuss solutions for safe construction;

We provide site worker with site safety
manuals and organize regular safety talks for
site workers to enhance their safety
awareness;

We regularly inspect the safety measures for
fire protection, electricity usage, and use of
equipment; and

We have developed emergency plans to
provide guidelines for safely and effectively
coping with various emergencies.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has complied with relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC, including the Law of the
People's Republic of China on Work Safety and
Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Occupational Disease Prevention and Control, as
well as the legislative requirements in Hong Kong,
including the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
the health and safety laws and regulations.

IRIRs LG RERQHRS
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B3. Development and Training

General aisciosure

Staff development and training

Employees are regarded as the Group's largest and
most valuable assets and an essential part of
maintaining a competitive advantage. The Group
provides its staff with training courses for
upgrading skills and development as needed.
Training types include pre-job training, on-the-job
training, continuous training, etc. The Group
requires all new recruits to receive pre-job training
before performing their duties. Through this
training, employees can promptly familiarize
themselves with the general situation and
corporate culture of the Company, and adapt to
the working environment as soon as possible. The
training enables employees to understand their
job responsibilities and grasp the essentials of the
work, thereby helping employees to fit in their
roles. The head of the department that receives
new recruits will be responsible for organizing
department-specific induction training, covering
job responsibilities, how to ensure safety and
quality, and operations relating to equipment,
instrument, and process. Such training is
conducted through direct teaching. Those who
fail the training will not be hired by the Group. In
addition, the Group will continue to provide
relevant training in areas such as strengthening
employees’ sense of responsibility, establishing an
independent working attitude and maintaining
honesty and credibility, so that employees can
adapt to the competitive market atmosphere.

The Group encourages and supports employees
to participate in personal and professional training
to fulfill the needs of emerging technologies and
new equipment. The Group also encourages the
culture of sharing of knowledge and experience.
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B4. Labour Standards

General disciosure

Prevention of child labour or forced labour

The Group strictly prohibits employing any child
labour or forced labour in its operations in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group has established a
well-defined recruitment process which examines
the background of candidates and a formal
reporting procedure for handling any exception.
During the recruitment process, the age of the
applicant is verified against the identity
documents of the applicant. In addition, the Group
conducts regular reviews and inspections to
prevent any child labour or forced labour in
operation.

In the meantime, the Group also avoids engaging
vendors and contractors which are already known
to employ child labour or forced labour in their
operations. The Group has complied with the
Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B
of the Laws of Hong Kong) under the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Convention on the Abolition of Forced Labour
with respect to Employment of Workers, the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Employment of Adolescents under the Age of
16 and their Legal Rights and Interests and
Provisions on the Prohibition of Child Labour in
the People’s Republic of China.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group complied with all the laws and regulations
relating to the prevention of child labour or forced
labour. The Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating
to employment and labour practices.
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B5. Supply Chain Management

General disclosure
Environmental and social risk management of

supply chain

The Group has established and implemented the
Supplier Management Policy. In order to
strengthen the selection of suppliers, the Group
welcomes qualified, competent and high-quality
suppliers to join. The Group’s procurement
department has specially formulated this policy in
order to standardise the supplier management
and improve the operational standard. When
selecting new suppliers, the Group will first
conduct a series of reviews, including preliminary
engagement, on-site inspection, and survey of the
supplier's market reputation by responsible
persons of the supply department. For suppliers
who have successfully passed the above reviews,
the supply department will submit the supplier's
related information to the management for
approval and include the supplier in the Qualified
Supplier List.

The Group's procurement department is also
responsible for organising the supplier evaluation
work in two ways which include the ongoing
project evaluation and the annual assessment. The
Group will conduct goods quality satisfaction
surveys every six months on suppliers included in
the Quialified Supplier List. The responsible persons
and management personnel of the production
department, warehouse, quality inspection
department, and supply department will provide
their opinions in the Qualified Supplier Satisfaction
Survey Form. The evaluation results will serve as
the basis of supplier management. Rectification
opinions will be issued for suppliers with low
satisfaction scores. Suppliers need to react quickly
to the assessment result, taking effective measures
within prescribed period to improve the services
provided. The Group has the rights to terminate
the cooperation with service providers who violate
the rules or do not meet the targets.
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In the selection of new suppliers, the Group has
compared at least three different companies,
valuing their operational and compliance records
as well as their loyalty culture over cost
consideration. Prior to conducting business with
suppliers, we carry out annual reviews and
evaluations in various aspects including
occupational health and safety, employee rights
protection, environmental protection and
corporate social responsibility. This ensures that
our operations comply with national standards or
relevant regulations and that we have no child or
forced labour issues. The assessment results will
be used as a benchmark for the continuation or
termination of cooperation in the future.

The Group maintains close liaison with its suppliers
and monitor their performance to ensure that it is
consistent with their service commitment.

Green Sourcing

The Group integrates sustainability into supply
chain by procuring products that cause minimal
impacts on the environment, including eco-

friendly stationery, reusable items and energy
efficient appliances with energy labels.
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B6. Product Responsibility

General disciosure

As an integrated steel structure and prefabricated
construction solution service provider, our
customers are typically property owners,
subcontractors or main contractors of
construction projects. We do not offer products or
services to individual consumers. Therefore, the
Group is of the view that advertising and labelling
matters have no significant impact on the Group.

Quality and safety of products and services

The Group pays high attention to the quality and
safety of its products and services. We have
established strict quality management system
pursuant to ISO 9001:2015 standards for activities
involved in the construction of steel structure
projects. We have also issued a series of internal
guidelines as our primary standards for quality
control, such as operation guidelines, fire control
management and hygiene management. Our
quality control measures are implemented at
every important step throughout our production
and installation process, from procurement of raw
materials, fabrication and assembly of parts and
materials, to inspection of finished works at work
sites. To ensure quality, we strictly adhere to the
drawings and technical specifications during the
fabrication and assembly of parts and materials.

The Group has established relevant quality and
safety inspection policies for different projects,
communicates with our customers and confirms
their project expectation and direction prior
launching any project, and actively coordinates
projects with customers in the process of
providing services.
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Quality inspection

Regarding product inspections, personnel from
the quality inspection department of the Group
shall conduct inspections strictly in accordance
with the cutting and product drawings as well as
production processes, and supervise the
production personnel to strictly implement the
production processes for components. Where
unqualified products are found, they shall
promptly implement rectification measures and
notify the supervisor for proper handling and
follow-up. The inspection records must be clearly
filled out and properly kept to track all products
that need to be inspected to prevent such
problems as omitted inspections and wrong
inspections.

After-sales service

According to the Measures for the Quality
Warranty of House Construction Project) (the
“Measures”) promulgated by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the
People's Republic of China in 2000, we are
responsible for the repair of the quality defects
that occur within the warranty period after
completion of the projects. As defined in the
Measures, quality defects refer to the quality of the
construction projects that does not conform to
the mandatory standards of engineering
construction as well as the stipulations of relevant
construction contracts. Quality defects caused by
improper use, a third party or force majeure do
not fall within the warranty scope. The warranty
periods vary with different parts of construction.
Within the warranty period, we are required to
correct the quality defects of our works performed,
including correcting, reconfiguring or re-
performing the work or repair, replacing or
modifying the structures or materials provided by
us at our own costs to ensure the work is in strict
compliance with the terms and conditions of the
contract and is free from defects.
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Customer privacy and intellectual property

management

The Group's day-to-day operations involve the use
of the intellectual property owned by customers,
suppliers or the Group itself. Therefore, the
protection of intellectual property rights is an
extremely important task for the Group. When the
Group engages with its customers or suppliers, it
will include the protection of intellectual property
in the contractual terms. The Group's legal
department will also review all the contracts in
operation and ensure that the contractual terms
protect both parties’ intellectual property rights.
The Group also requires technical professionals to
sign strict confidentiality agreements. Confidential
information of our customers is only accessible to
employees who are responsible for the
corresponding project.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group complied with relevant laws and
regulations governing the confidentiality of data
and intellectual property, including but not limited
to Hong Kong Intellectual Property Law, Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Trademark
Law of the People's Republic of China and
Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations relating to product
responsibility.
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B7. Anti-Corruption

General disciosure

Prevention of corruption and fraud

Preventive measures, enforcement and
monitoring

The Group has implemented the Prevention of
Commercial Bribery Management Policy and
strengthened its internal control mechanism, anti-
corruption and anti-bribery work to achieve the
business philosophy of “abiding by the law,
integrity and quality service”. For projects with
higher monetary value, the Group makes an open
bidding invitation to at least three suppliers.
Different level of approval and authorisation is
required according to the size of the tender
agreement.

Reporting mechanism

The mechanism includes setting up an inspection
team and establishing a channel for evaluation
and reporting. It is strictly forbidden to use the
business opportunities or powers to obtain
personal interests or benefits. If there is a conflict
of interest, it must be reported to the
management of the Group in a timely manner.
The Group also encourages employees and all
persons with whom the Group does business,
including customers and suppliers, to voluntarily
report suspected wrongdoing within the Group.

The Group has complied with major relevant laws
and regulations including Hong Kong's
“Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” and the
Mainland's “Corruption Ordinance of the People’s
Republic of China”".

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption.
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B8. Community Investment

General disclosure

Contributions to society

As a responsible company, the Group actively
strives to become a positive force in the
community and maintains close communication
and interaction with the community to contribute
to community development.

The Group enhances the quality of life of
community through arts, culture and
entertainment using on demand systems and
activities. Following the development of culture,
the community can gain a deeper understanding
of history and culture and cultivate higher
appreciation of the present and future cultural
activities and derive a greater level of enjoyment
therefrom.

The Group will also actively encourage employees
to contribute their time and skills to community
volunteer works to benefit local communities
while taking the opportunities to learn more about
social and environmental issues and enhance the
corporate value of the Group.

As a moral and responsible enterprise, the Group
will consider from time to time to make donations
to charities when the Group records after-tax
profits and has sufficient funds.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an integrated steel structure and prefabricated
construction solution service provider. Our integrated
construction solution services are customised to meet the
technical specifications and requirements of different projects,
and span from fabrication and assembly of steel structure parts
and prefabricated construction materials at our workshops to
the installation of these materials onsite, based on the
secondary design (as to our steel structure projects) provided
by us or our customers.

The Group's turnover is mainly derived from business activities
in the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s income for the year is set
out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020, including a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, are provided in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 9 to
19 of this annual report and the Group’s environmental policies
and performance for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
provided in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
set out on pages 55 to 82 of this annual report.

AN ANALYSIS USING FINANCIAL
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

An analysis of the Group'’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2020 using financial performance indicators is
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 9 to 19 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year under review, as far as the Company is aware,
and save as elsewhere disclosed in this annual report, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact
on the business and operations of the Group.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements, are summarised on page 236 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of properties of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

84 China Saite Group Company Limited #FEEFEBEFR A A

E /i C1)

REBEZE2020F 12831 BILFEZEELOE(R
BASEABZEIZRAKBREIETEARSTEE
BRI RERKERE TR AN ARFRE
ZI0EFMHEMNERENREST  MASEEEE
2020 12 A 31 ALEFE 2 RIBHUR RFRBFRIFER
RERFSSERBAHMIRE - LG REBRE -

ERMBERRRIETETODNT

AREFEHZE 2020512 A31 BILFEERTGRIE
BIZETHRBESMHENAFREIZ19ENE
BEwm MR -

B REEARER

BARBMARRAFHREMEBYFAEEESI -
AEERDEFEREERIRETERERE
B NBEAREZZHREERNEATE -

hFHEHRE
AEERBIRAYBREENEE  AERAMR

Ttk BB AE R E - MR AFHRE
2368 °

S e &

RNEER 2020512 B31 Bz WEHBHN G A
TEEREMIFE17 ©



SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Medium Term Bond Programme

The Company has established a medium-term bond
programme (the “Programme”) under which the aggregate
principal amount of bonds issued by the Company and
outstanding at any one time shall have provided the Company
with aggregate net proceeds not exceeding HK$516 million.

Details of the corporate bonds issued during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 35 in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Subordination of subrogation rights to the
bonds issued under the Programme

In connection with the Programme, the events of default under
the instrument for the bonds issued thereunder, among others,
include failure by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, being the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of his associates (including
but not limited to companies directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by him) to subordinate to the bonds issued under
the Programme any subrogation rights they may have against
the Company or its subsidiaries in respect of any debts of the
Company or its subsidiaries they have paid. As such, the bonds
issued under the Programme impose, among others, a specific
performance obligation on Mr. Jiang Jiangiang as the
controlling shareholder of the Company, a breach of such
obligation will cause a default thereunder.

Further details on the Programme and the bonds issued
thereunder were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 14 November 2018, 23 November 2018, 30 November
2018 and 12 April 2019.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed below in this
report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the financial year or subsisted at the end of
the financial year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
there was sufficient public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR
SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of this annual report. Details of distributable reserves of
the Company are set out in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND TEEXFLHER
SUPPLIERS
The percentages of sales and purchases for the year AEFBETBRFPNMBERE AT EHE MK
attributable to the Group's major customers and suppliers are BBREERELAIIT -
as follows:
Percentage of the
total purchases/
sales accounted for
hHAREEEE
SHETEM LB
Purchases IR
— the largest supplier — R AMER 18%
— five largest suppliers combined — AR EEEET 54%
Sales SHERE
— the largest customer —BRAEP 16%
— five largest customers combined — RAREFAER 55%
None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder RRBEES EEFBREANTANRE(BESH
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors M BEARRBCEITRASRIA L) BmNARE
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had B il A KRR PP A #ER -
an interest in the five largest suppliers or customers of the
Group noted above.
At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their close REXNEMER - &% A8 ASRE(F
associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of the BEMA - EAARDTIDEITIRANS% A ) #E
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share REYHEENSGAZT SR ERTT S TS -

capital) had any interest in the largest customers or suppliers
disclosed above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the

date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xulin (Chairman) (appointed on 18 November 2021)

Mr. Shan Hu (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Xu Fanghua
Mr. Liu Zhibo
Mr. Hua Gang
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
(resigned on 29 October 2021)
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 17 November 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Yan Hualin

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (resigned on 21 March 2022)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS” CONFIRMATION

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the
date of this report, the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the particulars disclosed in note 45 under the
heading “Related Party Disclosures” to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business, to which the ultimate holding company
of the Company, any of the Company’s subsidiaries or any
subsidiaries of such ultimate holding company was a party and
in which a Director or any entity connected with a Director (as
defined in the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong) had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Report of the Directors
EEFEHRS

B IFITE SR

ARRRRB EMRRE RN BILIERES  B
BESBUNTESAMEBYIENFEER
HER - RAME R ARBRBRABEILIFN
TEFYREL

+

EE=ZRBEEMH

MR2020F 12 A31H > MREERRREFKDER
Bz EEMBEARR M A BAARQRR
—FRBAELEECEERERIN MK LIEZ R
AR -

EENRG B RBEBAGRNER

Bz e M BmRMT A [BEA T REER ] prit
ZHBIN RERIRNFREMNRHE SEAR
BISREERAR - AREERIMNE AR RE H&
AR R B VAR B A BRI S AE (B AR A
EXBBEAZEMR S - RHHAR - TEE
EREMREZER2ER(ERZLBB AR
ERSHERREARSCBERACEMRS -
ZHEAR e

Annual Report 2020 —ZT - THEFRH 89



Report of the Directors
EEEHRS

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”),
are set out below:
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Long position in the shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding as at

Number of 31 December
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held 2020* Note(s)
72020 £
12H31H
HYAE 4 AR
EEHA fEmME s &R Aotk Mg
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 42,202,000 (L) 1.40
B A EmEBA
Interest of controlled Corporations 1,020,000,000 (L) 33.77 28&3
ST EEER
Mr. Hua Gang Beneficial owner 2,580,000 (L) 0.09
RS A4 EmEB A
Notes: BT -

The letter “L" denotes the person'’s long position in such shares.

These shares are held by Keen Luck Group Limited (“Keen Luck”),
which is wholly owned by Champ Origin Limited (“Champ Origin”).

Champ Origin is owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and 49%
by Mr. Jiang Yixuan.

As at 31 December 2020, the total issued capital of the Company is
3,020,747,935 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the

Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests

or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons, other than the Directors and chief

executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company, which were
required to be recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

£ ZIR R E M A TR K AR B AR

2 ¥ wm MR R

MR2020F 12 A318  BEEHMA BREERARD
BIEZETBABN  TIATHEREES KR
EIEHIE 336 (F AL ARRA B FERERAMZA
RIRD AR (D 2 S SA R -

5

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding at

Number of 31 December
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held’ 2020 Note(s)
#2020 5
12H31H
ML AR
BRRERE MR ERtE FERBEE Bt g
Keen Luck Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,020,000,000 (L) 3377
(“Keen Luck”) BEmlEAA
BinsEaRAF (&)
Champ Origin Limited Interest of a controlled Corporation 1,020,000,000 (L) 33.77 2
(“Champ Origin”) RS EEER
IRBRA R ([EIR])
Ms. Zhou Xiaoying Interest of spouse 1,062,202,000 (L) 35.16 4
BN IRLE
Mr. Jiang Yixuan Interest of a controlled corporation 1,020,000,000 (L) 33.77 28&3
BREFEE XESEEER
Beneficial owner 42,202,000 (L) 14
EnlEB A
China Huarong International Person having a security interest 1,020,000,000 (L) 3377 7

Holdings Limited
(“China Huarong”)

B E R BRI B R AT
([ EIZER )

in shares

RO A B ERAOA L
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding at

Number of 31 December
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held' 2020"> Note(s)
#2020
12831H
M40 AR
BREE KR EatE FERGHE" Baotk?  HiE
Five Seasons XIV Limited Beneficial owner 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
(“Five Seasons XIV") EnEE A
Five Seasons XIV Limited
(['Five Seasons XIV])
Five Seasons XVII Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 586
(“Five Seasons XVII") ZEHEE R
Five Seasons XVII Limited
(['Five Seasons XVII )
Fullshare Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
(“Fullshare”) SESEEER
LREIERERAR
2220
Mr. Ji Changqun Interest of a controlled corporation 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
FEREE RESEEER
Magnolia Wealth Interest of a controlled corporation 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
International Limited ZEHEE R
(“Magnolia”)
Magnolia Wealth
International Limited
(['Magnolia )
Mr. Li Xiaofei Interest of controlled corporation 260,000,000 (L) 8.61 8
FEREE S A E A
Jiangsu Kaimeng Beneficial owner 260,000,000 (L) 8.61 8
Investments Co, Ltd* BEmlEE A
(“Jiangsu Kaimeng”)
LERE B EBR AR
(IELE D
Ms. Quan Zhu Interest of controlled corporation 260,000,000 (L) 8.61 8
EXUE P E E
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding at

Number of 31 December
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held’ 2020 Note(s)
#2020 F
12A31H
MR A B 1
BRREB, A EEME FEROEBAE" Bak? M
Mr. Zhu Hong Interest of controlled corporation 230,000,000 (L) 761 9
KAk REHEEER
Jiangsu Huami Business Beneficial owner 230,000,000 (L) 761 9
Management Co, Ltd.* EmEEA
(“Jiangsu Huami”)
IEHERPEEERRRAA
(DI&ZEK])
Shenyang Wanjin Shiye Co,, Interest of controlled corporation 230,000,000 (L) 761 9
Ltd.* (“Shenyang Wanjin") P E E
LGB REXFRAR
(DB ER )
Shenyang Huami Shiye Co,, Interest of controlled corporation 230,000,000 (L) 761 9
Ltd. (“Shenyang Huami”) SR E A
LEEREERR AT
(DERFEAR])
Mr. Li Xiang Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 (L) 6.62 10
FHRE REHEE R
Wenjia International Limited Beneficial owner 200,000,000 (L) 6.62 10
(“Wenjia") EnBEEA
XHBEBRARAR
(Ix® 1)
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Notes:

The letter “L" denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under
Part XV of the SFO) in such shares.

These shares are held by Keen Luck, which is wholly owned by
Champ Origin.

Champ Origin is owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and 49%
by Mr. Jiang Yixuan.

Ms. Zhou Xiaoying is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Jiangiang.

Five Seasons XVII, Fullshare, Mr. Ji Changqun and Magnolia are
deemed to be interested in the 190,120,000 shares of the Company,
as Mr. Ji Changqun holds the entire equity interest in Magnolia,
which in turn holds 44.73% equity interest in Fullshare.

Fullshare holds the entire issued share capital of Five Seasons XVII,
and Five Seasons XVII holds the entire issued share capital of Five
Seasons XIV, the beneficial owner of the Company.

1,020,000,000 shares are legally and beneficially owned by Keen
Luck. Keen Luck is 100% owned by Champ Origin. Champ Origin is
owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and 49% by Mr. Jiang
Yixuan. On 26 January 2017, Keen Luck executed the relevant
documentation to create a charge (“Share Charge”) over
1,020,000,000 Shares in favour of China Huarong as chargee to
provide loan to Keen Luck. China Huarong was owned by Huarong
Real Estate Co., Ltd as to 88.10%. Accordingly, China Huarong is
deemed to be interested in 1,020,000,000 shares of the Company.

Jiangsu Kaimeng is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Xiaofei and 40% by
Ms. Quan Zhu.

These shares are held by Jiangsu Huami. Mr. Zhu Hong, Shenyang
Huami and Shenyang Wanjin are deemed to be interested in the
230,000,000 shares of the Company, as Mr. Zhu Hong holds the
entire equity interest in Shenyang Huami and Shenyang Huami
holds 99% equity interest in Shenyang Wanjin, Shenyang Wanjin
holds the entire equity interest in Jiangsu Huami.

These shares are held by Wenjia, which is wholly owned by Mr. Li
Xiang.
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1. Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the shareholders of the
Company are required to file disclosure of interests forms (the “DI
Forms”) when certain criteria are fulfilled and the full details of the
requirements are available on the Stock Exchange’s official website.
When a shareholder’s shareholdings in the Company changes, it is
not necessary to notify the Company and the Stock Exchange unless
certain criteria are fulfilled. Therefore, substantial shareholders' latest
shareholdings in the Company may be different to the
shareholdings filed with the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
above statements of substantial shareholders’ interests are prepared
based on the information in the relevant DI Forms received by the
Company as of 31 December 2020. The Company may not have
sufficient information on the breakdown of the relevant interests
and cannot verify the accuracy of information on the DI Forms.

12. As at 31 December 2020, the total issued capital of the Company is
3,020,747,935 shares.

*for translation purposes only

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as at
31 December 2020, had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

There was a duplication of interest of 1,020,000,000 shares
among Keen Luck, Champ Origin, China Huarong, Mr. Jiang
Yixuan and Mr. Jiang Jiangiang.

There was duplication of interest of 1,062,202,000 shares
among Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and Ms. Zhou Xiaoying.

There was duplication of interest of 190,120,000 shares among
Five Seasons XIV, Five Seasons XVII, Fullshare , Magnolia and Mr.
Ji Changqun.

There was duplication of interest of 260,000,000 shares among
Mr. Li Xiaofei, Jiangsu Kaimeng, Ms. Quan Zhu.

There was duplication of interest of 230,000,000 shares among
Mr. Zhu Hong, Jiangsu Huami, Shenyang Wanjin and Shenyang
Huami.

There was duplication of interest of 200,000,000 shares
between Wenjia and Mr. Li Xiang.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 11 October 2013 (“Adoption Date”), for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected eligible
participants for their contribution to the Group. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for ten years from the Adoption Date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
following:

1. any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Group or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which any
member of the Group holds any shareholding (including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director of the Group or any Invested Entity);

2. any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

3. any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

4. any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

5. any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

6. any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

7. any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

8. any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliances or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.
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Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company (“Shares”)
in issue on the date of adoption provided that the Company
may seek approval from Shareholders to refresh such limit.
Moreover, the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme (and any
other schemes of the Company) shall not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, a total of 203,800,000 Shares
(representing approximately 6.75% of the number of issued
Shares) are available for issue under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options). In addition, where
any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their
respective close associates, would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in
issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HKS5 million,
in a 12-month period up to and including the date of grant,
such grant of share options are subject to Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Board, which
period may commence from the date of acceptance of the
offer for the grant of share options but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination under the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not
be less than the highest of:

the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
the offer of the grant, which must be a business day;

ii. the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant; and

iii. the nominal value of the Shares.

There is no minimum period for which an option granted must
be held before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed
by the Directors.

As at the year ended 31 December 2020, no share option has
been granted by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no related party transactions during
the year. None of the related party transactions constituted a
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction (as
defined in the Listing Rules) that was required to be disclosed
and the Company had not entered into any connected
transaction which is subject to the disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections headed “Share
Option Scheme” above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company,
or any subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group during the year and up to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her
duty or supposed duty in his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. In addition, the Company has arranged appropriate
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.
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DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the year (2019: Nil).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and
decided by the Remuneration Committee and the Board
respectively, having regard to the Company's operating results,
market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this report and note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMPLOYEES

A review of the number of employees and the related staff
costs is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on page 17 of this report. The Group ensures that the pay levels
of its employees are competitive and in line with the market
trend and its employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group's salary
and bonus system.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual
report.

Report of the Directors
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EEFEHRS

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this
report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules since the Company’s last published interim report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Yan Hualin, Mr.
Xu Jiaming, Mr. Choi Ho Yan and Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert. The
Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management and the external auditor financial reporting
matters including the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by BDO
Limited ("BDO").

On 27 December 2019, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”") was
appointed as the new auditor of the Company to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”). There are no disagreement between the Company
and Deloitte and there are no matter in relation to Deloitte’s
resignation that needed to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.
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On 29 June 2020, Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited (“Ascenda
Cachet”) was appointed as the new auditor of the Company to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Crowe. Save
as disclosed in the announcement dated 21 June 2020, there
are no other circumstances in respect of the resignation of
Crowe that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

On 19 November 2020, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited ("McMillan Woods") was appointed as the new auditor
of the Company to fill the vacancy following the resignation of
Ascenda Cachet. Save as disclosed in the announcement dated
19 November 2020, there are no other circumstances in respect
of the resignation of Ascenda Cachet that need to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

On 11 September 2021, BDO was appointed as the new auditor
of the Company to fill the causal vacancy following the
resignation of McMillan Woods. Save as disclosed in the
announcement dated 3 June 2021, there are no other
circumstances in respect of the resignation of McMillan Woods
that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of
the Company.

The proposal of re-appointing BDO as the auditor of the
Company will be put forward at the coming annual general
meeting of the Company for consideration and approval.

Save for disclosed otherwise, there has not been other change
in the auditor of the Company during the last three years.

On behalf of the Board
Shan Hu
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 April 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AL AR S

IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

3
FEEER 11158
FkZHID>2518

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA SAITE GROUP COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of China Saite Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out
on pages 113 to 235, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section
of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
7V A Gk

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION

HARNE RER

(a) BEEMRREREERHEREXH4

(a) Authenticity of problematic loans and

guarantee contracts and related
documentation

As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, certain legal claims were filed against the
Group in relation to the Problematic Loans and
Guarantee Contracts. During the audit of the 2020
consolidated financial statements, the ex-auditors of the
Company also raised concerns in their resignation letters
to the Company over these litigations. In response, the
Board established the Independent Committee which
had engaged the Independent Adviser to conduct an
independent investigation on these Problematic Loans
and Guarantee Contracts.

As further disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statement, during the investigation, there were
two sets of explanations and documents were obtained
by the Independent Adviser, with one set provided by
the a former director of the Company and certain key
finance personnel of Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co.,
Ltd. and Jiangsu Qifeng New Building Materials Company
Limited who already left the Group. The sources of those
documents were unidentified. Another set of
explanations and documents were based on information
obtained from the courts in the PRC. Based on the
investigation, there are significant differences identified
between the two sets of explanations and documents.

During our audit, we planned our procedures to obtain
audit evidence in respect of these Problematic Loans
and Guarantee Contracts, including those related to
resolving the significant differences identified between
the two sets of explanations and documents. However,
we were unable to obtain explanations and documents
from the Directors that we considered necessary to
satisfy ourselves as to the completeness and accuracy of
the information and documents related to Problematic
Loans and Guarantee Contracts presented to us for the
purpose of our audit; and the accuracy and
completeness of the disclosures in the Group's
consolidated financial statements in respect of financial
guarantee contracts, transactions and/or balances with
related parties, if any, in relation to the transactions,
arrangements, and/or the relevant counterparties
identified in the investigation.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continued)

(b) Incomplete books and records

As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group encountered financial difficulties,
resulted in (1) departure without suitable replacement of
key staffs, including senior management, operating staff
of different departments, and qualified accounting staffs
and led to breakdown of administrative and accounting
functions of the Group; and (2) downsizing of business
(collectively referred to as “Business Disruption”). The
departure of senior management, operating staff and
accounting staffs resulted in malfunction of various
departments of the Group, resulting in mishandling and
loss of source documents. As further disclosed in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements, the findings
revealed in the investigation gave rise to the doubt
about the reliability of books and records of the Group of
the current and past years.

The Directors represented, as also disclosed in Note 3
that, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared based on incomplete books and records
available to the Group. The incomplete books and
records limited our ability to carry out the audit. We also
performed our procedures to obtain audit evidence
outside the Group but the results were not satisfactory
and there were no alternative audit procedures that we
could perform to satisfy ourselves on the above concern.
As a result, we were unable to conclude whether the
existence, completeness, accuracy, valuation and
disclosure of the assets and liabilities, as disclosed in
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, and
therefore whether the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been
properly prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continued)

(c) Scope limitation on interests in a joint

venture and associates

As stated in note 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has applied the equity method to
account for its investment in a joint venture in the PRC,
LB ERBRINE ER AR AR and associates, 7R 8
FEMRERAF and RIFBEBBIHARAF.
In applying the equity method to prepare the
consolidated financial statements, the management
obtained the financial information of these joint venture
and associates for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The Group's share of the profit and loss and net assets of
these joint venture and associates for the year ended 31
December 2020 and as at that date included in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Notes 19 and 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Auditing
600 ("HKSA 600") Special Considerations — Audits of
Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of
Component Auditors), the joint venture is identified as a
significant component of the Group due to its individual
financial significance to the Group. Accordingly, as part
of our audit, we shall perform an audit on the financial
information of the joint venture which is included in the
consolidated financial statements. In respect of the
associates, we planned our procedures to perform
analytical procedures on these associates in accordance
with HKSA 600.

However, we were denied access to the books and
records by the joint venture and we did not receive from
the associates the requested information that we
considered necessary to perform the analytical
procedures. As a result, the requirements of HKSA 600
have not been fulfilled. There were no other satisfactory
audit procedures that we could adopt and therefore we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as to whether the carrying amount of the
Group's interests in a joint venture and associates and
the Group's share of their results for the year as included
in the Group's consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2020 and for the year then ended were fairly
stated. Consequently, we were unable to determine
whether any adjustments to these amounts were
necessary and to apply the requirements of all of the
applicable auditing standards.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continued)

(d)

108

Appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis of accounting

As explained in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group has incurred a
loss of RMB214,460,000 and as at 31 December 2020, its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB3,505,522,000. As at the same date, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB41,476,000
only. In addition, winding-up petitions were lodged with
the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”) against the
Company by various creditors in pursuit of the
settlement of the outstanding debts owed to them. To
deal with this situation, the Company proposed a debt
restructuring arrangement (“Scheme of Arrangement”).
These events or conditions, together with the Business
Disruption as described in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and
therefore, that it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In assessing the appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company
("Directors”) have prepared a cash flow forecast (the
“Cash Flow Forecast”) covering a period exceeding 12
months from the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements which takes into account of the
plans as set out in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements. Based on the assessment made by the
Directors, assuming the plans and measures can be
successfully implemented as scheduled, the Group is
able to continue as a going concern and it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The appropriateness of the consolidated financial
statements prepared on a going concern basis largely
depends on whether those plans and measures as
detailed in Note 3(b) can be successfully implemented as
scheduled.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continued)

(d) Appropriateness of the use of the going

concern basis of accounting (Continued)

In respect of the plans that the Group would implement
including (1) Capital Injection through the issue of new
shares of the Company, and (2) the Scheme of
Arrangement. The Scheme has been approved by the
requisite majority of creditors of the Company at the
Scheme meeting on 25 February 2022, and has been
sanctioned by the High Court of Hong Kong on 11 April
2022.

Despite the restructuring effort of the Group thus far, on
14 January 2022, the Company received a letter from the
Stock Exchange stating that the Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange has decided to cancel the
Company’s listing under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing
Rules as the Company failed to satisfy all the Resumption
Guidance by 21 December 2021 (the “Delisting
Decision”). On 21 January 2022, the Company submitted
an application requesting the Delisting Decision be
referred to the listing review committee of the Stock
Exchange for review pursuant to Chapter 2B of the
Listing Rules. The review hearing is scheduled to be held
on 19 April 2022. As the outcome of the review hearing
is unknown as at the date of this report, there is no
sufficient supportable evidence that explains the validity
of the assumption in relation to the resumption of
trading of the shares of the Company.

There are limitations on our scope of work as stated
above and there are no alternative audit procedures that
we can perform to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to support the above plans can be successfully
implemented, As a result, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence to conclude whether the
Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
to prepare the consolidated financial statements is
appropriate.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continued)

(d) Appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis of accounting (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group's assets to their
net realisable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements in making their
assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, the directors have considered the
Group's ability to pay off all existing loans and payables
and carry on its operations for the foreseeable future.

However, the directors have been unable to predict the
action that may be taken by the creditors, lenders and
bond holders caused by the matters disclosed in Note
3(b), or the consequential impact to the Group. In
addition, as a result of the matters disclosed in Note 3,
the directors are unable to represent that all present and
contingent liabilities or assets of the Group have been
completely identified, or that all assets recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
recoverable or fairly stated. Given these circumstances,
which are more fully described in Note 3 and in the
paragraphs above, there were no practicable audit
procedures that we could perform to form an opinion
on whether management’s assessment of its ability to
continue as a going concern considers all events and
conditions which may be relevant.

We disclaimed our opinion on the Company's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
(“2019 consolidated financial statements”) relating to matters
(a) to (d) above. The balances as at 31 December 2019 and the
amounts for the year then ended are presented as comparative
information in the 2020 consolidated financial statements. We
disclaimed our audit opinion on the 2020 consolidated
financial statements also for the possible effect of the
disclaimer of opinion on 2019 consolidated financial
statements on the comparability of 2020 figures and 2019
figures in 2020 consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH HKFRSS
AND OMISSION OF DOCUMENTS

As explained in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
as the consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared by the Directors based on incomplete books
and records and the Board believes it is almost impossible and
not practical to ascertain the correct amounts. Consequently,
the Directors were unable to represent that the consolidated
financial statements comply with HKFRSs, or that the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited have been complied with. Given these
circumstances, which are more fully described in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements, there were no practicable
audit procedures that we could perform to quantify the extent
of adjustments that might be necessary in respect of the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” AND
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AL AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number P04659

Hong Kong, 18 April 2022

12 China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

reEmkEMEERTDR

Wik 3
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT
Revenue Wzs 6 387,515 515,447
Cost of sales SHE AN (295,387) (425,033)
Gross profit EH 92,128 90,414
Other income HABUA 8a 4,522 1,953
Other gains and losses H (o Y ek K B8 8b 22,497 (76,433)
Impairment losses on TRk EREERBEBE
financial and contract assets 10 (182,776) (5,933,528)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAS (5,355) (8411)
Administrative expenses TR (51,498) (55,975)
Finance costs BT R AR 9 (68,364) (99,642)
Share of loss of a joint venture DE—EEETEEE 19 - (1,351)
Share of loss of associates Db & N R E R 20 (870) (6,781)
Remeasurement of financial WS ERERENTE
guarantee contracts 38 (24,697) (53,045)
Loss before taxation == (214,413) (6,142,799)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i (Ax), e 11 (47) 51,254
Loss and other comprehensive income £ A E1E R E b 2 EILA
for the year 12 (214,460) (6,091,545)
Losses per share — basic and diluted FiEE — EAREE
(RMB cents) (AR#5) 16 (7.10) (224.58)

Annual Report 2020 —ZT - THEFRH

N3



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EEMBRR

At 31 December 2020 7220204 12 A 31 H

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARETT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 17 90,627 98,068
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 31,331 33,755
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEtEZERE 19 152,892 152,892
Interests in associates /N e ey 20 2,106 2,256
Equity instruments at fair value through % 18 E {2 E UK 285
other comprehensive income BAFEIRCBRATA 21 26,230 26,230
303,186 313,201
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 33,685 47,126
Trade receivables B E 55818 24 158,353 194,909
Contract assets EREE 25 111,091 56,204
Other receivables, HEWEIE - Ee &k
deposits and prepayments TEfFRIE 26 891,279 888,519
Amounts due from associates JE U & N B R IE 33 3,053 =
Restricted bank balances TR HISR 1T 4585 28 1,675 431
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RIS 28 41,476 40,233
1,240,612 1,227,422
Current liabilities =R
Trade payables eI E S 5/IE 29 653,569 587,272
Other payables and accruals HEaEMRIENRESER 30 2,654,563 2,480,653
Contract liabilities aRAaE 31 2,050 13,022
Amount due to the ultimate holding FEAS B AR R B F10R
company 32 230,853 229,568
Amounts due to associates FETHSE & R A BUIR 33 - 2477
Amount due to a director BN —RESHIA 27 527,215 446,232
Lease liabilities — current portion HEBE — KBS 34 1,161 1,512
Corporate bonds — due within BEESF — R —FR2H
one year 35 230,028 244,894
Short-term borrowings HHIER 36 137,669 199,280
Problematic loans BMEER 37 204,617 204,617
Financial guarantee contracts B IEIR S E 38 77,742 53,045
Tax liabilities HIBAE 26,668 26,668
4,746,135 4,489,240
Net current liabilities mE B EFE (3,505,523) (3,261,818)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE (3,202,337) (2,948617)

N4 China Saite Group Company Limited *EIZEREEAR AR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMTINRR

At 31 December 2020 F 202012 A 31 H

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion ~ fHEBE — IERE I H 34 - 1,237
Corporate bonds — due after oneyear (&% — N —FE1& F| HA 35 208,937 246,960
208,937 248,197
Net liabilities BEFH (3,411,274) (3,196,814)
Capital and reserves EARR &
Share capital [N 39 249,103 249,103
Reserves & (3,660,377) (3,445,917)
Total deficit EsAl 4B RE (3,411,274) (3,196,814)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 235
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 18 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shan Hu
BR
Director

EF

FIBEEFBBENGEVEREAERESTSR
202F 4 A8 B EREETE - YR THES
REREE

Zhang Tianbo
RAE

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

Share Share
capital premium

e K
RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR

At1 January 2019 R019F1A18 187410 511,515

Loss and total comprehensive FREERZERALE

Capital

Retained
profits/
FvTOCI Statutory  (accumulated

reserve reserve reserve |OSS€S)
EEEH2E ,
ERATE RERA,/

BX G S EERE  (REEBR) st
RMBI000 RMB00D RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000

AR

ARETTL AREFT \REFT
(Note b)

66,587 (2969) 206,838 1689819 2632471

income for the year - - - - - (6,091,545) (6,091,545)
Issue of shares (Note 39) B17R1A (P 39) 61693 200567 - - - - 262,260
At31 December 2019 and R019E12A3NBR

1 January 2020 00%1 818 249,103 712,082 66,587 (29,698) 206,838 (4,401,726) (3,196,814)
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZERAGE

income for the year - - - - - (214,460) (214,460)
At 31 December 2020 2020% 128318 249,103 712,082 66,587 (29,698) 206,838 (4,616,186) (3,411,274)
Notes: PftaE -

(@) Capital reserve represents (@) BANfEEE

(i) waiver of amount due to former immediate holding
company;

(if) the difference between the nominal value of shares of China
Saite Group Company Limited (the “Company”) issued as
consideration in exchange for the aggregate of the share
capital of the subsidiaries of the Company arising upon the
corporate reorganisation (the “Corporate Reorganisation”) to
rationalise the Group's structure prior to listing of the
Company'’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”); and

(iif) capital contribution from shareholders under the Corporate
Reorganisation.

(b) The fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising on the
revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI that have been
recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the FVTOCI reserve.

(© The statutory reserves represent the amount transferred from net
profit for the year of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") (based on the PRC statutory financial statements
of those PRC subsidiaries) in accordance with the relevant PRC laws
until the statutory reserves reach 50% of the registered capital of the
subsidiaries. The statutory reserves cannot be reduced except either
in setting off the accumulated losses or increasing capital.

e China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A

@) RN ERIZER AR 2 F0R

M FEESEEERQABD(ARRDBETER
RENROEEEZRARRARDNEEBSRZ
ZFARRAE (B Pr]) Em AT~ 6 R e
AEENREMET < ARNBE(AREA])
EEZAARMEARNRABIERENEZE
K

(i) RRBRBEARBAELETE -

FREMEARERATENR(TEBEGEEK
S AFEIIR]) FHEEEGCRE 2R EE
RZBBEMBEM SRR FEYIRR 2R TAE
AR REHRERER o 2t REXER B TEH S
BEHERARE 2B - AHEENEREMEEK
SR AFEIIRFEETRE -

AEREREENREARLME (T E D RZEAEE
AR BA R A SZ E Y BB 8 R O SR AR R (B a% AP B Y
BARNFHEEENBHRR)BENKRE  EEZE
EEREEHZ B AREMEARN 0% B - %%
EEREA A - R AMEH R E RS EE AR
4h e



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

\\7[_\ EE@/)”.%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KETHELENESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation [ % Al ET 18 (214,413) (6,142,799)
Adjustments for: BT HBEHAE
Bank interest income SRITAEHA (940) (42)
Depreciation of property, M - BENRERETE
plant and equipment 8,467 6,995
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 2,424 1,817
Effect of modification of EEHERNTE
corporate bonds (1,265) (3,152)
Remeasurement of financial MEERERENRTE
guarantee contracts 24,697 53,045
Impairment losses on financial Rk REEREEE
and contract assets 182,776 5,933,528
Finance costs BATS B AR 68,364 99,642
Exchange differences on short-term S EIER LB EBEHH
borrowings and corporate bonds i (31,810) 308
Share of loss of a joint venture DiEE B FEEE - 1,351
Share of loss of associates DIGHEE A Bl EE 870 6,781
Written-off of property, MBI - B RERE
plant and equipment 180 75,574
Operating cash flows before EEESRBANKE
working capital changes REnE 39,350 33,048
(Increase)/decrease in contractassets & REE (M), Fd (55,733) 532,984
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEmL,/ () 13,441 (36,484)
Increase in trade receivables JEULE 5 R TEIE N (100,752) (583,731)
Increase in other receivables, HEib W - e &
deposits and prepayments T FRIAIE I (47,328) (4,772,918)
Increase in restricted bank balances PR B ERTT S ERIE AN (1,244) (431)
(Decrease)/increase in ERAEECHRD),
contract liabilities (10,972) 13,022
Increase in trade payables JEHE 5 5k TEIE N 66,297 495,726
Increase in other payables EH At FEARIE &
and accruals FEET & AN 173,910 2,376,069
Cash generated from/(used in) REERELE (FTANRS
operations 76,969 (1,942,715)
PRC income tax paid BT AR B AT ASHT (47) (129)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ BEEEEE (AW
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES REF# 76,922 (1,942,844)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\7|_\ Iﬁ-%/}l[%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHELENEESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, BEYX  KERXE
plant and equipment (1,206) (55,870)
Investments in associates R & A BRI E (720) (1,400)
Advance to an associate —EH & A Al FTIERAFR (3,053) -
Interest received 2 F S 940 4
Acquisition of equity investment HERAIRE - (4,000)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZBAANR SRR
ACTIVITIES (4,039) (61,228)
CASH FLOWS FROM MEIBELENESRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of BIIDEESFBMEHIE
corporate bonds 68,468 630,430
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares — #17 & EARFTIS RIE - 262,260
New short-term borrowings raised EEFEHER - 194,780
Advance from a director —REERK 80,983 446,232
Repayment to an associate m— F'aﬁﬂ’s‘ﬁé.—‘fﬂ B (2,477) 717)
Advance from the ultimate AP A A EK
holding company 1,285 229,568
Repayment of corporate bonds EELEES (107,969) (512,001)
Repayment of short-term borrowings ~ fEE & HIER (61,611) -
Finance costs paid [EANEUE %N (48,857) (81,605)
Repayment of principal BEEEAELAEIY
portion of lease liabilities (1,408) (212)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM MEEE (FTA) BEN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReFH (71,586) 1,168,735
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH RE&RREZEYE M (H)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FE 1,297 (835,337)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRERBESEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 40,233 856,924

EFFECT OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RITERBEBRY

ON BANK BALANCES (54) 18,646
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERAERAEEEN
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 41,476 40,233

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RERBSEBUERDT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash IR1TER NI 28 41,476 40,233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e B HRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

GENERAL

China Saite Group Company Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability. Its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is 22nd Floor of The
Toy House, No.100 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, which is also its principal place of business.
The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are investment
holding and providing integrated construction solution
which employs steel structure and prefabricated
components.

The Company'’s parent is Keen Luck Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong) and the directors consider
its ultimate parent is Champ Origin Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands).

Trading in the shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange has been suspended since 22 June 2020.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“HKFRSs™)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a
material impact on the Group's results and
financial position for the current or prior period.
The Group has not early applied any new or
amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

m e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
current intention is to apply these changes on the
date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause®

Proceeds before Intended Use*

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4, and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1and ~ Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimate®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fuffiling a Contract*

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions'

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 20212

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Annual Improvements to Amendment to HKFRS 1*

HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
Annual Improvements to Amendment to HKFRS 9,

Financial Instruments*
Amendment to illustrative examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, Leases*

HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

120 China Saite Group Company Limited *EIZEREEAR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

im e ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(Z 20204 12 431 HIEFE

2.

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

June 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

& Effective for business combinations for which the

date of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

U The amendments shall be applied prospectively to

the sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual
periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

PRNE SRS A (BB
BmEER]]) (&)

(b) BEREMIE R REZHETRIE
AIERMBREEN(E)

L 720205 6 A1 B3k 2 %6 H FEH
F'Eﬁi@l °©

2 R2021F1 B1 B2 &AM FEEH
BEZE

3 2021464 A1 B3z &5 H FE H
HEZE

4 K202 1 A1 Bk 2 &R FEE
F'Eﬁi@l °©

5 YU AR 20281 A1Bs 2B R
tarz BEFEHERAGE 2B
EEHHERR -

8 R202351 A1 Bk 2 &R RFEH
F'Eﬁi@l °©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

m e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F 12 A31 HLILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

RIS S 15 S R ([ B
B s 28 ) (@)

|

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have (b) BEMERRERZIHET &E

122

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 —
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction involves a business the gain
or loss is recognised in full, conversely when the
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the
extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the
joint venture or associate.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability and explain that rights are in existence if
covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period. The amendments also introduce
a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that
settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other
assets or services.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
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2.

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (Continued)

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of
the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August
2020. The revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the
wordings in the interpretation to align with the
Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in
conclusion and do not change the existing
requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments and
revision in the future will have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the
proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the
old interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in
November 2019 and relate to (a) changes to
contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by
the Reform, but will instead update the effective
interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge accounting
in which an entity will not have to discontinue its
hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the Reform, if the hedge
meets other hedge accounting criteria; and (c)
disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosures of Accounting
Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 require companies to
disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant
accounting policies. The amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Disclosures of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. That distinction
is important because changes in accounting
estimates are applied prospectively only to future
transactions and other future events, but changes
in accounting policies are generally also applied
retrospectively to past transactions and other past
events.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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2. AD

OPTION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b)

126

New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments clarify whether the initial
recognition exemption applies to certain
transactions that often result in both an asset and
a liability being recognised simultaneously. Such
instances might include the initial recognition of
leases from the perspective of a lessee or asset
retirement obligations (AROs)/decommissioning
liabilities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’
a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the amendments
will likely have an impact on the Group’s
accounting policies in respect of the
determination of when contracts are onerous, and
the measurement of provision for onerous
contracts recognised.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

2.

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent
concessions arising as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, by including an additional practical
expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to
elect not to account for rent concessions as
modifications. The practical expedient applies only
to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 pandemic and only if
all of the following criteria are satisfied:

(@) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(b)  the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be
accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need
to assess whether the rent concession meets the
definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply
other requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for
the rent concession.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING %%ﬁ% 2 ]) &

STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions (Continued)

Accounting for rent concessions as lease
modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised
consideration using a revised discount rate, with
the effect of the change in the lease liability
recorded against the right-of-use asset. By
applying the practical expedient, the Group is not
required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the rent
CoNCession occurs.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 2021

The amendment extends the practical expedient
available to lessees in accounting for COVID-19
related rent concessions by one year. The
reduction in lease payments could only affect
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021
is extended to 30 June 2022. The amendment is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021, with earlier application
permitted.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs™)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
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2.

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in
2010. The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a
requirement that, for obligations within the scope
of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to
determine whether at the acquisition date a
present obligation exists as a result of past events.
For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21, Levies, the acquirer
applies HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21 to determine
whether the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay the levy has occurred by the
acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle, Amendment to HKFRS 1

The annual improvements permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the
amounts reported by its parent, based on the
parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle, Amendment to HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments

The annual improvements amend a number of
standards, including HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, which clarify the fees included in the
‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in
assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other's behalf are included.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle, Amendment to illustrative examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, Leases

The annual improvements amend a number of
standards, including HKFRS 16, Leases, which
amend lllustrative Example 13 to remove the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives that might arise because of how
lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Since the mid of 2019, certain legal claims were filed
against the Group in the PRC. It came to the attention of
the directors of the Company (“Directors”) that part of
the claims related to certain loans borrowed by or
guarantees provided by the Group, with the involvement
of two major operating subsidiaries, namely Jiangsu Saite
Steel Structure Co,, Ltd. (“Jiangsu Saite”), Jiangsu Qifeng
New Building Materials Company Limited (“Jiangsu
Qifeng"”), and the Company, allegedly originated prior to
2019 that were not recorded in the books and records of
the Group (the “Problematic Loans and Guarantee
Contracts”). In addition, legal claims were noted by
business partners, which resulted in loss of business
opportunities.

Besides, the Group encountered financial difficulties,
resulted in (1) departure without suitable replacement of
key staffs, including senior management, operating staff
of different departments, and qualified accounting staffs
and led to breakdown of administrative and accounting
functions of the Group; and (2) downsizing of business
(collectively referred to as “Business Disruption”).

The departure of senior management, operating staff
and accounting staffs resulted in malfunction of various
departments of the Group, resulting in mishandling and
loss of source documents and transaction records.

Despite the Business Disruption, the Group strived to
retrieve the information and documents necessary for
the maintenance of proper books and records and the
preparation of 2020 consolidated financial statements,
including contacting counterparties outside the Group
such as customers, suppliers, but the Group's effort failed
in vain. The Group has also tried to obtain bank
statements for the period from the banks and contact
bond holders through lawyers.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)

During the audit of the 2020 consolidated financial
statements, the ex-auditors of the Company also raised
concerns in their resignation letters to the Company over
litigations in relation to the Problematic Loans and
Guarantee Contracts that the Group has been involved.
In the interest of the Company, its shareholders and
bonds holders as a whole, on 22 June 2020, the
Company has applied for suspension of trading in the
shares on The Stock Exchange.

An independent board committee (“Independent
Committee”) comprising the independent non-executive
directors of the Company was established on 15 July
2020 to conduct an investigation with the primary scope
to fact-finding in respect of the Problematic Loans and
Guarantee Contracts . For the purpose of the
investigation, the Independent Committee, through its
legal adviser (“Independent Legal Adviser”),
commissioned a professional firm as the forensic
accountant (“Independent Adviser”) on 5 March 2021 to
assist on the investigation.

During the investigation, there were two sets of
explanations and documents obtained by the
Independent Adviser, with one set provided by the
former director of the Company and certain key finance
personnel of Jiangsu Saite and Jiangsu Qifeng who
already left the Group. The sources of those documents
were unidentified. Another set of explanations and
documents were based on information obtained from
the courts in the PRC. Based on the investigation, there
are significant differences identified between the two
sets of explanations and documents. The Independent
Adviser was unable to resolve the differences due to the
limitations as set out below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)

As included in the main findings of the Independent
Adviser which were summarised in the announcement
dated 23 February 2022 (the “Main Findings
Announcement”), the below limitations were noted by
the Independent Adviser and agreed by the Directors
when conducting the investigation into the Problematic
Loans and Guarantee Contracts:

1. The Company failed to provide sufficient and
credible explanations and evidence;

2. Unavailability of information and documents in
relation to some relevant transactions due to long
history; and

3. Lack of cooperation from third-party institutions.

The findings revealed in the investigation gave rise to
the doubt about the reliability of books and records of
the Group of the current and past years. In respect of the
Problematic Loans and Guarantee Contracts, the
Directors determined to recognise the Problematic
Loans amounting to RMB204,617,000 (Note 37) and
Guarantee Contracts amounting to RMB53,045,000 (Note
38) as transactions occurred on 31 December 2019.

As of the date of this report, the management has used
its best effort, to the extent commercially practicable, to
ensure the complete books and records of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020, applying their best
estimates and judgement based on the information of
the Group that are available to the management.
However, in light of the Business Disruption and findings
as revealed in the investigation, the Directors believed
that, as at the date of the report, it is almost impossible,
and not practical, to ascertain the correct consolidated
profit and loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of financial position for the
current year for inclusion in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)

As the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared based on the incomplete books and records
available to the Group, the Directors are unable to
represent that all transactions entered into by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been
properly reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

As the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared based on the incomplete books and records
available to the Company, the Directors of the Company
are unable to represent that all transactions entered into
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been properly reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. In this connection, the Directors of
the Company are also unable to represent as to the
completeness, existence and accuracy of identification
and the disclosures of revenue in Note 6, segment
information in Note 7, other income and other gains and
losses in Note 8, finance costs in Note 9, impairment
losses on financial and contract assets in Note 10, income
tax expense in Note 11, loss for the year in Note 12,
directors’ and chief executive's emoluments in Note 13,
five highest paid employees in Note 14, losses per share
in Note 16, property, plant and equipment in Note 17,
right-of-use assets in Note 18, interest in a joint venture
in Note 19, interests in associates in note 20, equity
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income in Note 21, deferred tax assets and liabilities in
Note 22, inventories in Note 23, trade receivables in Note
24, contract assets in Note 25, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments in Note 26, amount due to a director
in Note 27, bank balances and cash and restricted bank
balances in Note 28, trade payables in Note 29, other
payables and accruals in Note 30, contract liabilities in
Note 31, amount due to the ultimate holding company
in Note 32, amounts due from/(to) associates in Note 33,
lease liability in Note 34, corporate bonds in Note 35,
short-term borrowings in Note 36, problematic loans in
Note 37, financial guarantee contracts in Note 38, notes
supporting the consolidated statement of cash flows in
note 42, capital risk management in Note 43, financial
instruments in Note 44, and related party disclosures in
Note 45.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)

Any adjustments arising from the matters described
above would have a consequential significant effect on
the net loss of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 and net assets of the Group as at 31
December 2020.

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The directors have presented in these
consolidated financial statements the financial
information prepared based on all available
information to the extent provided to them in
their capacity. Except for the matters disclosed
above, these financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going
concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
RMB214,460,000 and as at 31 December 2020, its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB3,505,522,000. As at the same date, the Group
only had cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB41,476,000.
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5. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going

136

concern assumption (Continued)

In addition, winding-up petitions were lodged
with the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”)
against the Company by various creditors in
pursuit of the settlement of the outstanding debts
owed to them. To deal with this situation, the
Company proposed a debt restructuring
arrangement (“Scheme of Arrangement”) as
detailed below. These events or conditions,
together with the Business Disruption as described
in Note 3, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
and therefore, that it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

In assessing the appropriateness of the use of the
going concern basis in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements, the Directors
prepared a cash flow forecast covering a period of
12 months from the date of approval for issue of
these consolidated financial statements. In
preparing the cash flow forecast, the Directors
have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of financing in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to continue as a going concern. For this purpose,
the following plans and measures have been
implemented:

(i)  Group Reorganisation — The Company
proceeded a carve out of Jiangsu Saite and
Jiangsu Qifeng through a shareholders’
voluntary winding up of its parent, Modern
Day Holdings Limited. On 24 December
2021, a special resolution was duly passed
to wind up Modern Day Holdings Limited.
Upon the completion of the reorganisation,
Jiangsu Saite and Jiangsu Qifeng are no
longer the subsidiaries of the Company;
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5. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going
concern assumption (Continued)

(if)

(iif)

Capital Injection — the Group entered into
agreements with the investors on 13
September 2021 and 10 December 2021,
that the Company to issue the Senior Notes
in an aggregate principal amount of
HKS$ 160,000,000 and to issue an aggregate
of 3,120,000,000 Subscription Shares at the
Subscription Price of HK$S0.10 per
Subscription Share, amounted to
HKS$312,000,000. The capital injection is
subject to, inter alia, the resumption of the
trading of the Company’s shares before 30
June 2022; and

Scheme of Arrangement — Under the
Scheme of Arrangement, each creditor of
the Company are entitled to elect
settlement in cash, to be satisfied by the
issue of senior notes totalling HK$160
million, or by allotment and issue of new
shares of the Company for settlement of all
its claims against the Company and its
subsidiaries under the Scheme of
Arrangement. The Scheme has been
approved by the requisite majority of
creditors of the Company at the Scheme
meeting on 25 February 2022, and has been
sanctioned by the High Court of Hong Kong
on 11 April 2022.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going

concern assumption (Continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

Despite the restructuring effort of the Group
thus far, on 14 January 2022, the Company
received a letter from the Stock Exchange
stating that the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange has decided to cancel the
Company's listing under Rule 6.01A(1) of the
Listing Rules as the Company failed to satisfy
all the Resumption Guidance by 21
December 2021 (the “Delisting Decision”).
On 21 January 2022, the Company
submitted an application requesting the
Delisting Decision be referred to the listing
review committee of the Stock Exchange for
review pursuant to Chapter 2B of the Listing
Rules. The review hearing is scheduled to be
held on 19 April 2022.

The issue of shares under the Scheme of
Arrangement is subject to the resumption
of trading of shares of the Company.
Nevertheless, the Directors considered that
the Scheme of Arrangement would be
successful.

Other than the above restructuring plan, certain
measures are being contemplated to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve its financial
position and performance which include, but not
limited to the following:

(i)

(if)

introducing new investors in order to ensure
sufficient working capital and new business
to generate revenue; and

The Group continues to develop its
construction service business to improve its
cash flow from operations.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 3. RBIEE(E)

(Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going (b) STEEERIFERERR(EZ)

concern assumption (Continued)

Assuming the successful implementation of the
above Group's restructuring plan, the Directors are
of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months from the date
of authorisation for issue of these consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant
uncertainties exist as to whether management will
be able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern would depend
upon the following:

(i) successful to obtain funding as capital
injection from the potential investors;

(i) fulfilment of resumption guidance which
would affect the Scheme of Arrangement
and the Capital Injection; and

Should the Group fail to achieve the
abovementioned plans and measures, it might not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of the Group's assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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5. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)

(c) Functional and presentation

currency

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB"), which is also the
Company's functional currency.

Amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise stated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of

140

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of
acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. BREFTER#E)

@) XBESHRGEAEE(E)

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition of a
business and control is transferred to the Group. In
determining whether a particular set of activities
and assets is a business, the Group assesses
whether the set of assets and activities acquired
includes, at a minimum, an input and substantive
processes and whether the acquired set has the
ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair
value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified
as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

142

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The Company
controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. BERZETHKRE)

(c) Associates (c) BT

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but not
control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is
an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in
the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair
value of the Group's share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

144

POLICIES (continued)

(d) Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers
joint control over the relevant activities of the
arrangement to the Group and at least one other
party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement;
or

Joint operations: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement agreement; and

Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint
ventures in the same manner as investments in
associates (i.e. using the equity method — see
Note 4(c)).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Joint arrangements (Continued)

(e)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in a joint venture has been
impaired the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint
operations by recognising its share of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses in accordance
with its contractually conferred rights and
obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results
of joint ventures are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purpose (other
than construction in progress as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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(e)

146

LICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings and structures 5%

Plant and machinery 10%

10% to 19%

5% to 19%

Leasehold improvement Over the remaining
period of the related
lease

Motor vehicles
Office equipment

Construction in progress are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. BERZETHKRE)

(f) Leases (fHh HE

Accounting as a lessee

All' leases are accounted for by recognising a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability except for:

Leases of low value assets; and
Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value
of the contractual payments due to the lessor over
the lease term, with the discount rate determined
by reference to the rate inherent in the lease
unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily
determinable, in which case the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate on commencement
of the lease is used. Variable lease payments are
only included in the measurement of the lease
liability if they depend on an index or rate. In such
cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability
assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other
variable lease payments are expensed in the
period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the
lease liability also includes:

amounts expected to be payable under any
residual value guarantee;

the exercise price of any purchase option
granted in favour of the Group if it is
reasonable certain to assess that option;

any penalties payable for terminating the
lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of termination
option being exercised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

148

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right of use assets are initially measured at the
amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease
incentives received, and increased for:

lease payments made at or before
commencement of the lease;

initial direct costs incurred; and

the amount of any provision recognised
where the Group is contractually required to
dismantle, remove or restore the leased
asset.

For contracts that both convey a right to the
Group to use an identified asset and require
services to be provided to the Group by the lessor,
the Group has elected to account for the entire
contract as a lease, i.e. it does not allocate any
amount of the contractual payments to, and
account separately for, any services provided by
the supplier as part of the contract.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities
increase as a result of interest charged at a
constant rate on the balance outstanding and are
reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the remaining term of the lease or over the
remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this
is judged to be shorter than the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. BREFTER#E)

(f) Leases (Continued) (f) HEE)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying
amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term, which
are discounted using a revised discount rate. The
carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised
when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In
both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to
the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with
the revised carrying amount being amortised over
the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to
zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit
or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the modification:

if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for
as a separate lease in accordance with the
above policy.

in all other cases where the renegotiation
increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or one
or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of-use asset being
adjusted by the same amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

if the renegotiation results in a decrease in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying
amount of the lease liability and right-of-use
asset are reduced by the same proportion
to reflect the partial of full termination of
the lease with any difference recognised in
profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying
amount reflects the amount of the
renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date. The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out certain of its machinery
to a number of tenants. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g9) Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or
losses on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. BREFTER#E)

(9) €M TIAE)

(g9) Financial instruments (Continued)

152

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in other comprehensive income. This
election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified as fair
value through profit or loss, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest
income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade
receivables and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other financial assets measured at
amortised cost of the Group, the ECLs are
based on 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk
of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

154

(g9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than
90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 4(m).

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as
at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the loss allowance, being
the ECL provision measured in accordance
with principles of the accounting policy set
out in Note 4(g)(ii); and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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(v)
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Annual Report 2020

BRARZ

ERNEERFEEREESS
BB ER B HAR A R B AERE
HAR AR B AR A B RS2 2 77
% BERMEDREREESR
18 &Y T8 2 4 B lOE A 0 808 I
AFELIHT R A ST AR AR S WA K
IR K o

EETH

ARREET e TATIRE W
IS EMBRERBETRAA
BE o

MBRERRER

B ERE RTREETARE
BEAXMNIEEESR  URERKHA
ABRFEREAREREES
T ARRT B RT R 2 H s 1+
FMREWBRZER - AAK
B EH e SFEE RE R IREIR
NHESIERNTBHERE R
BRHERELVBERERE
BERIEM R ZA T AR © 7))
FHERE  AREZATEIAR
BEAEVBERER : ()R
BB AAREME 490 AT
(EEBRRRGENEREER
EIRRHE R ()RR SRR
(@R ) RIFE B R E £
155 R A RER A RAH K -

—s-s554 155



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4o AL

R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

H

15 e = MY 5E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

156

(g9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(h)

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised
initially and measured at their fair value on
the date the financial liability or part thereof
is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

M

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
goods or services may be transferred over time or
at a point in time. Control of the goods or services
is transferred over time if the Group's performance:

provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control
of the goods or services.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

158

(i

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amounts receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between
the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Construction services of steel structure
projects and prefabricated construction
projects

The Group has determined that for contracts with
customers under construction of steel structure
projects and prefabricated construction projects,
there is generally only one performance
obligation. The Group determines that the
customer controls all the work in progress as the
infrastructure is being constructed and installed at
the customer’s site, in the course of the
construction and installation, the work in progress
is being enhanced during the terms of the
contracts. Therefore, revenue from these contracts
are recognised over time. Invoices are issued
according to contractual terms and are usually
payable within 30 days. Uninvoiced amounts are
presented as contract assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. BREFTER#E)

() UnasEERE (&)

(i) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group
completes the construction of steel structure
projects and prefabricated construction projects
under such services contracts but yet certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by customers, or (ii) the customers
retain retention money to secure the due
performance of the contracts. Any amount
previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at
which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to
date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

160

(i

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when those costs meet
all of the following criteria:

(@)  the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or
in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the
goods or services to which the cost relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()]

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for tax purposes. Except for goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes and initial recognition
of assets and liabilities that are not part of the
business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangement where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
provided that the deductible temporary
differences are not arises from initial recognition of
asset and liabilities in a transaction other than in a
business combination that affects neither taxable
profit or accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period, and reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income tax levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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()

k)

Income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income in which case the
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(I) Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short
term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of

qualifying assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs

capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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PO

(n)

(o)

LICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Impairment of assets (other than
financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
right-of-use assets; and

investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. BREHHR#E)

(o) BEE(EMEEMRM)REE)

(o) Impairment of assets (other than

financial assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use) of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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P

(@)

()

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the
useful lives of the related assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the group or to the group’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

168

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group'’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

(a) Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

(i) Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency
transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currencies of the group entities, judgements
are required to determine the currency that
mainly influences sales prices for goods and
services and of the country whose
competitive forces and regulations mainly
determines the sales prices of its goods and
services. The functional currencies of the
group entities are determined based on
directors’ assessment of the economic
environment in which the entities operate
and the entities’ process of determining
sales prices.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a) Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (Continued)

(ii) Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies, apart from those
involving estimations, management has
prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the assumption that the
Group will be able to operate as a going
concern in the coming year, which is a
critical judgement that has the most
significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The assessment of the going
concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, at a particular
point of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The directors consider that the
Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern and the major events or
conditions, which may give rise to business
risks, that individually or collectively may
cast significant doubt upon the going
concern assumption are set out in Note 3(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within next
financial year are as follows:

(i) Onerous contracts

The Group determines whether contracts
with customers are onerous contracts based
on the latest available budgets of those
contracts with reference to the overall
contracts consideration of each contract
which requires management’s best
estimates and judgements. Construction
revenue is estimated in accordance with the
terms set out in the relevant contracts.
Because of the nature of the construction
industry, the management regularly reviews
the progress of the contracts and the
estimated construction revenue and
budgeted costs. Any change in the
estimates of construction revenue or
budgeted cost will affect the amount of
foreseeable losses arising from onerous
contracts recognised in the profit or loss in
the year of the change.

5. BRSHE KBRS TEE

VER) = B2RR ()

(b) fEEFTHEEMNEZRIR

BRREUBRREMBIBENE
BN BREEARBRAHT —MEBF
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T

(i) BEMERE
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HE EEETERRAARE
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 5. BEe@ITHE BB EE
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY B EIRR ()

172

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

Some of the Group's assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes.
The directors of the Company are
responsible in determining the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the
Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages
independent qualified professional valuers
to perform the valuation. The directors of
the Company work closely with the
independent qualified professional valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The
directors regularly assess the impact and the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
include inputs that are not based on
observable market data to estimate the fair

(ii)

(b) fEEFTHEEMNERRIR(Z)
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value of certain financial instruments. Note RETSEEATEMNHKER
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valuation techniques, inputs and key BRI ERHITE4 o

assumptions used in the determination of
the fair value of various assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Provision of ECL for financial and
contract assets

The directors of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables
and contract assets based on provision
matrix through grouping of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns, after
considering internal credit ratings, past due
status and repayment history of respective
trade receivables and contract assets. For
other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the management of the Group make
periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. Estimated loss rates are
based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking
information. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes
in estimates. The information about the ECL
and the Group’s trade receivables and
contract assets are disclosed in Note 44,
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 5. BEZeztHE ARG TESE
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY B E R (&)

174

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

Estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on
such available data as binding sales
transactions in an arm'’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset, and in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount
rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the assets
belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (Continued)

(v)

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2020, no deferred tax
assets (2019: nil) has been recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial
position. Deferred tax asset that has not
been recognised is due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the
actual future taxable profits generated are
less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in
revision of future taxable profits estimation,
recognition or reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal or further recognition takes place.

5. BRSHE KBRS TEE
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6. REVENUE 6. W=
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETIT
Type of services: R&E|E :
Construction of 2R
— Steel structure projects — 4 EIER 342,602 462,750
— Prefabricated construction projects — R RBREHEEIRE 20,511 52,697
— Construction and installation works — EERLTETE 24,402 =
Revenue from contracts with customers & F &[5 2 Wz 387,515 515,447
Timing of revenue recognition LY 75 T 5 A S
Over time R—EREFE A 387,515 515,447
(i) Performance obligation for (i) EFARAZEBHER
contracts with customers
Construction services EERK

176

The Group provides construction services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these
construction services based on the stage of
completion of the contract using output method.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect
liability period, are classified as contract assets,
which usually within one year from the date of the
practical completion of the construction. The
relevant amount of contract asset is reclassified to
trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires. The defect liability period serves as an
assurance that the construction services
performed comply with agreed upon
specifications and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately.

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A
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6. REVENUE (continued)

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation
for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 and
the expected timing of recognising revenue are as
follows:

Within one year —F R

(i) PBEREFITUARZHTE
HEEZXZER

MR2020F K% 201912 A31H » 2#E
BRTEHET(RERKIBD ARTTHK)
IR 5B R R Uk 25 A 78 HA B i a0
T

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARBTIT

35,634 74,480

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating activities are attributable to the
operating segments focusing on the construction of
steel structure and prefabricated construction projects.
These operating segments have been identified on the
basis of internal management reports that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company
who are the chief operating decision makers of the
Group (the “CODM"). The executive directors review
revenue and gross margin analysis by each construction
contract for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

For segment reporting under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments, the revenue and gross margin of each
construction contract with similar economic
characteristics has been aggregated into a single
reportable and operating segment. The accounting
policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. The
segment revenue and segment result (i.e. gross margin)
reviewed by the CODM is the same as the Group's
revenue and gross profit.

DA R
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178
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The CODM makes decisions according to operating
results of each segment. No analysis of segment asset
and segment liability is presented as the CODM does not
regularly review such information for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results
are presented.

Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by major types of
construction contracts is as follows:

D EBE R ()

IBRERARERBR DMK EREEH
RE - XEEFDBEERDBMAEND
1 REASEELERRESETENENZ
FEMNETERD B RRIRFE - Bt
BE257 8RO RBEE -

ERSEEN

REBRREA R EHAEIS MR
T -

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT

Construction of Z5%
— Steel structure projects — &5 IR B 342,602 462,750
— Prefabricated construction projects — 2 EMBEEEETEE 20,511 52,697
— Construction and installation works — ERENTHETRE 24,402 -
387,515 515,447

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as all
the Group's revenue is derived from operations in the
PRC and over 99% of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
are as follows:

D EBE R ()

FHEEEFNEH

REBEE @ FTERREHAEE B RS
10% A EMZEFIT ¢

2019

20194

RMB'000

ARETIT

Customer A' ZHEA 60,946 146,247
Customer B! ZFEB 45,001 64,945
Customer C2 2R 47,127 =
153,074 211,192

! Revenue from construction of steel structure projects and
prefabricated construction projects.

Z Revenue from construction of steel structure projects.

! K EERMEHRER MERATARBIHEER
B Hy s

: BRI E AlEs
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 8. HMUALAKREtblhas Kk EE
GAINS AND LOSSES
(a) Other income (a) HAugA
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
Sales of scrapped materials FERIEHE 1,910 591
Interest income on bank deposits R1T1F 3R F B U A 940 42
Rental income AU A 466 118
Government grants B B 856 1,202
Others Eb 350 -
4,522 1,953
(b) Other gains and losses (b) Hihikzs R B8
2019
2019 4F
RMB'000
ARETIT
Net exchange gain/(losses) bE W ks (B518) B8 21,412 (4,011)
Write-off of property, YIZE - RS K R B S
plant and equipment (180) (75,574)
Effect on modification of B EEFNTE
corporate bonds 1,265 3,152
22,497 (76,433)
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BATERAR

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETIT
Interests on short-term borrowings EHERRF S 40,471 61,736
Interests on corporate bonds (Note 35) EEHHE (FIFE35) 23,451 23,257
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 34) HEBER S (HiE34) 192 71
Commission s 4,250 14,584
68,364 99,642

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON 10. 2@ &kaREEREREE

FINANCIAL AND CONTRACT
ASSETS

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETTT
Impairment losses/ MAUATER ZBERSE

(reversal of impairment losses) on: CREEERD) :
— Trade receivables — R E ZIE 137,308 1,654,571
— Other receivables — HAbfEUGRIE 44,568 4,344,686
— Contract assets —AREE 846 (47,083)
— Bank balances — RITHEER 54 (18,646)
182,776 5,933,528

Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are set out in Note 44.

B Z20209F % 2019%12 A31 B IEFE 2R
B 2 B M 44
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1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/ N FEBiRx (ER)
(CREDIT)
2019
20196
RMB'000
ARETT
Current tax: BNERT IR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EFTSFA 47 129
Deferred tax credit (Note 22) EEF B R (i sE22) - (51,383)
47 (51,254)
Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax was made F B b 235 PT1S B B 4 T IR AR B AR A R A9 R
based on the estimated taxable profits calculated in B R RIERMNAE @I EEERERERTE
accordance with the relevant income tax laws and BEET AR A RS o
regulations applicable to the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the BIECPE AR EMBERERETE) ([
"EIT Law") and Implementation Regulations of the EIT FrisBiE]) RIEEFBTEAERED - A2A
Law, the tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is AR B A R E B R 5 25% ©
25%.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made R P AN &= [ A PR 18] F 12 30 R 7E BB B A (A
as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong FERTIEAN - MU REHEEBFIETRME

Kong for both years.
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im e B HRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/ 1. FSfiEY(Ee)#)

(CREDH—) (Continued)

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before taxation per the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other T
comprehensive income as follows:

FRBMEERX (ER) A
H 2 T W as 2% P 1) O Bk B AT S 18 3 BR AN

HirEEm R

2019

20196

RMB'000

ARETTT

Loss before taxation BRI E R (214,413) (6,142,799)

Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income P B ZE RS R 5 2 25%

Tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%) (20194F : 25%) sT EHBIE (53,603) (1,535,700)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PRI A OB E

for tax purpose 52,490 1,531,157

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ARG IAE RN G E 1,331 4067
Tax effect of income not taxable BER B A BB 75 52 22

for tax purpose (389) (1,428)
Tax effect of share of loss of HiE—EE LR EEEN

ajoint venture Mg & - 338

Tax effect of share of loss of associates DI E A RBENE B2 218 1,695

Write-down of deferred tax assets MOREE R IR & B2 - 40,733

Reversal of temporary differences RO TR = - (92,116)

Income tax expense/(credit) for the year ~ ERTEFHHAS(EH) 47 (51,254)

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 22.

EEFRIA 2 PR R aE 22 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

m e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 2. FAEE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: BB A TS ERBERNERNERE :
2019
20194
RMB'000
AREETIT
Auditor's remuneration — audit services  1ZZiEHEN & — 12 EARFS 10,574 8,574
Depreciation of property, Y% - WE RS ETE
plant and equipment (Note 17) (FfFEE17) 8,467 6,995
Amortisation of right-of-use assets EFREEERH (M 18)
(Note 18) 2,424 1,817
Staff costs BTHA(BEEEHH)
(including directors’ emoluments)
Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 20,833 23,798
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R F & 243K 1,494 1,758
22,327 25,556
Short-term leases — office or container 4B HATHE — P A== 352 2,882
Remeasurement of financial PEEREREFTE
guarantee contracts 24,697 53,045
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(ZE 20204 12 A 31 HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 13. EFREETHRAEFHH
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors, EfENTSERE(BREEZETHRAE)D
which include the Chief Executive, were as follows: N -

Retirement
Salariesand  benefit scheme
Director fees allowance contribution Total
RHfEH
E=Hd FERER TR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of director AR®T T AR®TR ARET ARET R
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (note i) B () 213 350 8 571
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (note i) BB/ SE A (FfsEii) 213 300 8 521
Mr. Xu Fanghua BEERE 213 - - 213
Mr. Liu Zhibo gFMAtE 213 - - 213
Mr. Hua Gang R L& 213 - - 213
Mr. Li Xulin (note iv) M E () - - - -
Mr. Shan Hu (note iv) B kA (Ha) - - - -
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (note v) SRR (FHztv) - - - -
Sub-total INEF 1,065 650 16 1,731
Independent non-executive BV EHTES

directors
Mr. Xu Jiaming FRRBEE 213 - - 213
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (note vi) B Rk 2o 4 (Pt vi) - - - -
Mr. Yan Hualin (note vii) BREB A (PR vii) 213 - - 213
Mr. Choi Ho Yan (note vii) B S A (Wt Rt vil) 161 - - 161
Mr.WuZhongxian (note ix) ~ REE A (i) 160 - - 160
Mr. Siu Siu Ling Robert kiR St (B Rt viil)

(note viii) 161 - - 161
Sub-total Nt 908 - - 908
For the year ended HZ2020512A31H8

31 December 2020 LEE 1,973 650 16 2,639
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m e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 13. EENFTEITHAEEHMNME)
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Retirement

Salaries and benefit scheme

Director fees allowance contribution Total
RIKEA

EEdika He 2R RGN Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Name of director ARETTL ARETTL ARETTT ARETT

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (note i) B A (B ki) 212 350 14 576
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang AB/)NaR S A (PR aE i)

(noteii) 212 300 14 526
Mr. Xu Fanghua RPELE 212 - = 212
Mr. Liu Zhibo ERkE 159 - = 159
Mr. Hua Gang ERIEAE 159 - - 159
Sub-total INat 954 650 28 1,632
Independent non-executive BV EHTES

directors
Mr. Xu Jiaming HRRIAKE 212 - - 212
Mr. Yan Hualin (note vii) BRERE S A (PRt vil) 159 = = 159
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (note ix) REBRA (FsEix) 159 - - 159
Sub-total INet 530 - = 530
For the year ended HZ2019F12A318

31 December 2019 LEE 1484 650 28 2,162
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im e B HRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

13. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Note:

(i) Mr. Jiang Jiangiang has resigned as an executive director on
29 October 2021.

(i) Mr. Shao Xiaogiang has resigned as an executive director on
17 November 2021.

(iii) Mr. Liu Zhibo and Mr. Hua Gang were appointed as executive
directors on 8 July 2019.

(iv) Mr. Li Xulin and Mr. Shan Hu were appointed as executive
directors on 18 November 2021.

(v) Mr. Zhang Tianbo was appointed as an executive director on
14 December 2021.

(vi) Mr. Luk Chi Shing has resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 5 July 2019.

(vii)  Mr. Yan Hualin was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 8 July 2019.

(vii) ~ Mr. Choi Ho Yan and Mr. Siu Siu Ling were appointed as
independent non-executive directors on 29 June 2020.

(ix) Mr. Wu Zhongxian has resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 21 March 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang was also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

None of the directors waived any emoluments for both
years. No emolument was paid by the Group to any of
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

\

13. EENFTEITHAEEHMNME)

BaE

0) IR A B 2021510 B 20 H BHERITES
(ii) BB/ R AEE R2021511 B17HBHIHITES -

(i)  BIFRBEERERLER2019F7AsAEE
FARITES -

(iv) FEMREERERIEER2021F11 A18HE
ZERPTES -

v  RREEER2021F 12 14BBZERRT
BF-

i)  FEEKEEE R 20197 A5 BEHTB I
TESE -

(i)  BREBLAENR2019F7 AsHER T AB I
HITES -

(i) BRI E RFRIKER ST 2020F 6 A 29 HE
SERBYIFNTES -

() REBEADR202243 H21 BEHEBIEH
TEE-

EXFARRITESNFMEER RS EERE
ARBRAEEEBERNRIB T AT ©

EXFREIFAITESTNHME R EE
ERARBEZH RIS

RE Z 20205 K% 2019F 12 A31 B IEEE -
A8/ NeREAETMARNRAREBITHRAR © £X
FiiEBEHEREEEAEZETRABRER
TEFTRER S -

RMEFE  BEESHETAHH - A%
B EA T ES S HEMNEAMEREE
AR B SR AN S B B ) R B S AE /5
BB
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year include two directors (2019: three directors), details
of whose emoluments are set out in Note 13 above.
Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining
three (2019: two) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company

were as follows:

hE&e#HER

FHN - AEBRAETSS EERBIEMNEES
(2019 : =REF)  FEMFTBFBERN
EXEE 13 FABT =5 (20195 : A)
FARRREZNEEZTHRAENRSHE
BRI EBFFIEEINNT

2019
20194

RMB'000

Salaries and other benefits e REMER] 1,321 1,241
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3 K@ F 512 2% 16 16
1,337 1,257

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose emoluments fell
within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to Hong Kong dollars (‘HKS")
1,000,000

FMENTHRIBNIARBNEETNERHE
BMABLT :

T % 1,000,000 7T ([7B 7T ])

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the
remaining highest paid individuals in the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

15. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shares of
the Company during 2020 and 2019, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
periods for both 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

16. LOSSES PER SHARE 6. BIREE
The calculation of basic losses per share is based on the FRREARE R IR A FEUETE -

following data:

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETTT
Losses B
Losses for the purpose of basic and STESRER NSRS
diluted losses per share 2 518
Loss for the year FAEE 214,460 6,091,545

Number of shares RGOEE
Weighted average number of ordinary STESREAREE L

shares for the purpose of basic losses 3B A N 9 8L

per shares 3,020,748 2,712,415
The contingently issuable shares represented X AT 2% 17 A7 15 B 5E 39 4 BB A9 172 2020
Subscription agreed on 24 June 2020 as disclosed in FoH24BMENRESIE - ;T ETREE
Note 39. The computation of diluted losses per share BRI EREZEROAET - REAARIE
does not assume those shares would be issuable as the WMEMRNER - BMEREHRANBEEE
conditions were not met even if the end of the reporting HAR - BEIGHEARER - ABREREITZE
period were the end of the contingency period IR0 B G IREER A ° AR 2019 F W
according to the status at the end of the reporting BETEE LB - 2019F N EIRE EEE
period and the assumed issuance of those shares would B AR EIEMEE o

result in a decrease in losses per share. Diluted losses per
share for 2019 were same as the basic losses per share as
there were no potential ordinary share in issue for 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. Y% - WEKERE
FEQUIPMENT

Buildings and Plantand Motor Office Leasehold  Construction in
structures machinery vehicles equipment  improvement progress

BEREEN RE  HOZRRE  BENREE HRIE

/ 0 0

Cost KA
At1 January 2019 R2019F1 418 206,794 122,569 9424 16833 376 1,46 357242
Additions AE 35133 19,193 548 802 - 194 55870
Disposal HE (161,665) (3557) - - (376) - (165,59)
Write off i = (91,724) - (14795) - - (106519)
At31 December 2019 R2019F 128318 80,262 46,481 9,972 2,840 - 1,440 140,995
Additions AE - 159 526 521 - - 1,206
Wite off Hisa - (229) (44) - - - (273)
Transfer from construction HEHRIR

in progress 1,440 - - - - (1,440) -
At31 December 2020 R2020% 128318 81,702 46,411 10,454 3,361 - - 141,928

Accumulated depreciation it ERFE
and impairment

At1 January 2019 R2019E1A1R 39,608 48,950 5193 1879 376 - 96,006
Provided for the year FREE 3118 3070 569 238 - - 6995
Elimination on disposal AL E R 8 (25825) (2928) - - (376) = (29129)
Wite off iz - (30682) - (263) - - (30949)
At31 December 2019 Ra019% 128318 16,901 18,410 5,762 1,854 - - 42,927
Provided for the year EREHE 3,816 3,550 866 235 - - 8,467
Wiite off s - (81) (12) - - - (93)
At 31 Decerber 2020 Ra0%128318 20,717 21,879 6,616 2,089 - - 51,301
Carrying values RAEE

At 31 December 2020 R2020512A318 60,985 24,532 3,838 1,272 - - 90,627
At31 December 2019 R019% 128318 63,361 28071 4210 986 - 1440 98,068
The Group's buildings are situated on leasehold land in ANEENEFHMNNRTPREOBELH E
the PRC.

The Group had pledged property, plant and equipment R2020F 12 A31 B AEBEEMER
with a carrying amount of RMB60,985,000 (2019: EAARYE60,9850007T (20194 : AR™E
RMB63,361,000) as at 31 December 2020 to secure bank 63,361,0007C) Z W13 - BB K R M LABS
borrowings of the Group (Note 36(a)). SEMRITER(FIFE36@) °

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group HZE209F12A31HIEFE > KEEE [
had disposed property, plant and equipment with net —ZE=Z"FHEEBITEAARK
carrying amount of RMB136,469,000 to a third party at a 136469000 TTHI M 2% ~ BB k& - RER
consideration of RMB136,469,000. The consideration has AR 136,469,000 7T ° 1 20194F & 2020 FF 12
not been settled and included in other receivables as at B3 8 ZREBEASE LT AEMEK
31 December 2019 and 2020 and subject to impairment 18 - HEHEITREREE °

assessment.
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e BHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EHEESE

Leasehold Leased
land properties Total

HE L HEM* o

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT ARETT

At 1 January 2019 720191 A 18 57,751 4719 62,470
Additions NS = 2,961 2,961
Disposals s (25,140) - (25,140)
Depreciation e (1,447) (370) (1,817)
Termination of lease WIEHEE = 4,719 4,719)
At 31 December 2019 and 201912 A31 B R

1 January 2020 2020181 H 31,164 2,591 33,755
Depreciation e (875) (1,549) (2,424)
At 31 December 2020 PR2020% 12 A31H 30,289 1,042 31,331
The Group had leasehold land under right-of-use assets R2020F 12 A31H » AEBEBERAES
with a carrying amount of RMB30,289,000 (2019: EIE T EREE A A R%30,289,0007T (20194F :
RMB31,164,000) as at 31 December 2020 to secure bank ANER#31,164,0007T) 2 HHE T H ARG AN &
borrowings of the Group (Note 36(a)). RIERITE S (MIFE36()) ©
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets ZRBEERRESNEREEENREF
by class of underlying asset is as follows: BEAFTWT :

2019
20194F

RMB'000
ARETIT

Ownership interests in leasehold land, FAFRIRR R R P LAST B B AN 1| TR Y

carried at depreciated cost HETHEEEER

with remaining lease term of:

— 30 years or more — 306 AL 30,289 31,164
Other properties leased for own use, HEEERMEMYIZ -

carried at depreciated cost AT E ARG R 1,042 2,591

31,331 33,755

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group HZE2019F12A3BILEFE - A&EEE M
had disposed leasehold land with net carrying amount —HE=FHEREFESA R 25,140,000
of RMB25,140,000 to a third party at a consideration of TTHEE T - R{EARARK25140,0007T °
RMB25,140,000. The consideration has not been settled R2019F 2020 12 318 » KB H K
and included in other receivables as at 31 December BERFTAEAMERGRIE - BAEETRER
2019 and 2020 and subject to impairment assessment. & o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

19. INTEREST IN A JOINT 9. R—HEEaEhEEA
VENTURE

2019
20194
RMB'000
AREFT
Costs of unlisted investment IEETHIRE KA 153,000 153,000
Share of loss of a joint venture HiE—EEEREEE (108) (108)
152,892 152,892

Details of the Group's joint venture at the end of the REBRBRERRNESEEEFBWOT :

reporting period are as follows:

Place of Principal Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ place of Principal interests/voting rights/
establishment operation activities profit sharing
ML FTEEHE EEEER RERE
FR 37 1th B ih 25 FTEXER PEEFE DL
2019
2019
TERERSBFICEERAEMR AR PRC PRC Inactive 51.00% 51.00%
("Jiangsu Huachen Saite”)
AHERBEFREZRAR AR FE Y TmeEx
(IMIEERER]D
The investment is classified as investment in a joint AR — T A H T &R 2E R B R
venture because no single party could control Jiangsu BEEARIS D RGNS —BRAE
Huachen Saite and the relevant activities require W ERRARN —HeEENKRE - K
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. SEREERENRENNBERTZHT
Summarised financial information in respect of the T o RXFAE T BERREREERE
Group's investment in the joint venture is set out below. RIBEB BV R E LRI BHRERR
The summarised financial information below represents -l

amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTEREST IN A JOINT
VENTURE (continued)

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity £
method in these consolidated financial statements. A

Z'i" A\
I O ==

RAF5 AR B 51

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

19. R—MEEEIEIE

N ==\

B

(%)

B ERERRE

2019

20194

RMB'000

ARET T

Current assets TENVEE 300,005 300,005

Non-current assets IEMBNEE - =

Current liabilities mEBE 216 216

Non-current liabilities EMBEE - -

Loss and total comprehensive income EBiEkErEK=AETE - (2,649)
The above amounts of assets T EEFIESRENATSIE

include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 5 5
Other receivable H fth fE U kT8 300,000 300,000

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in a

joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:

Equity attributable to owners

BELERB AELER

LA BERREER R
ZR—HREEZERMNREEZ HH -

BT ER R MR

2019
20194F

RMB'000
ARETT

of the joint venture 299,789 299,789
Proportion of the Group's RNEE 2 AL

ownership interest 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group's REEREG SR 2RI

interest in the joint venture AREE 152,892 152,892
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REtE QA 2 s

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET T
Costs of unlisted investment JEETIRE KA 10,870 10,150
Share of loss of associates D EEE & A B EE (8,764) (7,894)
2,106 2,256

Details of the Group's associates at the end of the REBRHRE AR EARFBERAT ¢

reporting period are as follows:

Place of Principal Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ place of Principal interests/voting rights/
Name of entity establishment operation activities profit sharing

BEEEE MR TEEX BEEEDREE

ok ] i Bh FEEXEK DIEEFNE D

FBEERIEER AR PRC PRC Parking service 60.00%* 60.009%*
RBEEREER AR e H =HR
REEERBIHAREAA PRC PRC Parking service 20.00% 20.00%
RIEBERIHKERA A A Y = e 7%

* The company is accounted for as an associate of the Group 2 Z N R BRI A B E A2 R4 K 48 Bl & HA R 4%
at the respective period end date as in accordance with the HERABMARIERARE 2 —HEBEAR] - &2
memorandum and articles of the company, major financial AZEENBREERRRARBESTSRYH
and operating policy decisions of the company require AR c ZAARNEEFH—(ARAEEZ
simple majority consent of the board of directors. The Group £ A AEBEEHZ AR BEEATE NETE
has appointed 1 out of 3 directors of the company, thus, the [HE /NG
Group has significant influence but not control over the
company.

The associates are accounted for using the equity EZEECMBHRERT @ BE AT AR E

method in these consolidated financial statements. AR e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21.

(Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material.

20. REtE N Al 2w (&)

FEERERAEEE R R BERHEL -

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARBTIT

The Group's share of loss and REED G2 EER

total comprehensive expense ZHEMZ BT (870) (6,781)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AN&EERZEH & N T2

interests in these associates R IRE AT 2,106 2,256

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

FBE MR E WA R A FET IR
ZBRARTA

2019
20194F
RMB'000
ARETT

Unlisted investments: FEETIRE -
— Equity securities of entity A —EBEBANRAES 22,230 22,230
— Equity securities of entity B — BERBHIRAES 4,000 4,000
26,230 26,230

The above unlisted equity investments represent the
Group's equity interest in private entities incorporated in
Hong Kong and the PRC. The directors of the Company
have elected to designate these investments as equity
instruments at FVTOCI as they consider that recognising
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in
profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group's
strategy of holding these investments for long-term
purposes and realising their performance potential in the
long run. The Group did not receive any dividend
income from the investment in these entities during the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: no dividend
income).

LIE EMRAREEAEBRER B RSP
Bl MAAERZRE - ARARES
RE RESERZEREZATEZEH
BWEERALEEARERENMFEXSHRER
RREHEBERBE 2RI - FAitigE
BZEEa T AREETAZBEMEAEN
miR AT AR - #E 202056124318 1k
FE AEBTEBZSERNNEWEE
A% B UL A (2019 FF « BB UA) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

21. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT 21 FBEMEEE SR A FEIIRR
FAIR VALUE THROUGH ZIRATE (&)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)
One of the Group's strategic investments is a 20% REBBFE 200 ER AREERREIRE
interest in Entity B. This investment is not accounted for Z— HRASEEWEFENREEREZA
using the equity method (as an associate) as the Group AINESSER  SHASEEESEAES
does not have the power to participate in the company’s ERESER  BERE W ERAERA(E
operating and financial policies, evidenced by the lack of REE R TR o
any direct or indirect involvement at board level.

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 22. BREMBEERERE

LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

RERGAMBHINENS - & TEEHE
AERABEKEN RUBREMS  E
EREER AT -

2019

20194

RMB'000

AR®ET T

Deferred tax assets EIERRIEE - -
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIRAE - -
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e BHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

7201941 A1
W\TE%E(MTHE )

At 1 January 2019
Credited to profit or loss

EXETHEEENBIE )

ARERBEFREEERCEZELHAR]
&/ (BE) REZFHMT :

Withholding tax

on undistributed Credit loss

earnings provision Total
tef AR 72 Tk 2 A

ZEMBL FEBRRE @st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT ARBFT
92,116 (40,733) 51,383
(92,116) 40,733 (51,383)

(Note 11)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 7201912 A31H
and 31 December2020 20201 A1HE
12A31H

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008
No. 1, dividend distributed out of the profits generated
by subsidiaries established in the PRC to “non PRC-
resident” investors since 1 January 2008 shall be subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax and tax payment to be
withheld by the PRC entity pursuant to Articles 3 and 27
of the Income Tax Law Concerning Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of the
Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income Tax
Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment Enterprises
and Foreign Enterprises. As at 31 December 2019 and
2020, none of the PRC subsidiaries have earnings
available for distribution.

RIBF BRI RBERGEEROE S BN —

B £ 200855 15% © B 200841 A1 8 # RN
PR HNBAREENBINELARE D
KT EFBRER] REEBHMNPRLE
FTSHi » WARIRINEE IR E D EMINE AT
1SBIES 3 R 27 I A R INE 18 & 1> ZE A HNEK
TEMBREEHRMRE O KRPBREETE
TR o R20194F & 2020812 A318 » #
R B E A R A A SR 2 B o
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22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 22. BEBABEERBE#E)

LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax R2020F 12 A31 8 - AEBEHAREHANR
losses of approximately RMB23,406,000 (2019: TH BB 4 & AR 23,406,000 70 (20194F @ A
RMB18,083,000) available for offsetting against future R ¥ 18,083,0007T) * A] FB 1B $8 < 2K FE AR Bt
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been B o HREETERARRBARIR - AL
recognised in respect of such losses due to the BWERZEEERERRERIBEE - HAK
unpredictability of future profit streams. The BRZHBEBEBRIATERDIE

unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following years:

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
2020 20205 - 1
2021 2021 5 1 1
2022 20225 987 987
2023 20234 825 825
2024 2024 5 12,639 16,269
2025 20255 8,954 =
23,406 18,083

23 INVENTORIES 23. 78
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
Raw materials and consumables [EM R K EFE 7,980 31,607
Work-in-progress E ST 878 -
Finished goods UK 24,827 15,519
33,685 47,126
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. [RWE 5518
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETTT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 FIE
— construction contracts — BEE ﬂ 618,022 517,270
Less: Impairment losses L RE TR (459,669) (322,361)
Total trade receivables FEWE 5 R IE 85 158,353 194,909
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, AT ARERIZEEFRBHAZTINEKE S
presented based on the date of progress billing at the RIARBREC D AT ©

end of the year.

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETTT
0to 30 days 02 30K 25,641 38,759
31 to 90 days 31 290K 30,280 54,187
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 41,352 69,937
181 days to 1 year 181 RE 14 81,788 45110
Over 1 year T E 438,961 309,277
618,022 517,270
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (459,669) (322,361)
158,353 194,909
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for B E2020F & 2019F 12 A31 B I FEEIK
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out B 5B BERH A IR RN TE44 ©
in Note 44.
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25. CONTRACT ASSETS 25. eREE
2019
20196
RMB'000
ARETTT
Analysed as current: DIRRE -
Retention receivables of construction BESR 2 EYIRE & (EE)
contracts (note) 112,616 56,883
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (1,525) (679
111,091 56,204
Note: Retention receivables included in contract assets represent MizE : STAGREEZEWRE @ EANEEKEE B
the Group's right to receive consideration for work TEARAZRIRERENERN - RESZSER
performed and not yet billed because the rights are REFEEPRERRTENEFEDRANEREES
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the RITMBETAEE - ERSENRAEGE
customers over a certain period as stipulated in the FGBERASER L ETHEETRZNRE
contracts. The contract assets are transferred to the trade ZERFERITHENERER) cREEE
receivables when the rights become unconditional, which is BERWESHRIE  ERAREIHEBES
typically at the expiry date of the period for the provision of BETIETIR—F o
assurance by the Group on the service quality of the
construction work performed by the Group. The due dates
for retention receivables are usually one year after the
completion of construction work.
Contract assets, that are expected to be settled within SR ASERNEEEERBALENE
the Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as AEERBEEHEEAR(A—FN) 2 ER
current based on expected settlement dates, which is D
within one year.
Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note BB BRI EE44 o

44,
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OTHER RECEIVABLES, 26. HAEWFIA « 25 NIRRT IR
DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT
Prepayments TS FIR 19,013 17,114
Deposits paid BEffige 725 539
Other receivables H fth fE W IR 871,541 870,866
891,279 888,519
Prepayments mainly represent the material costs prepaid BNRIEFZERARFEARNTHERNY
to suppliers at the total amount of RMB16,513,000 (2019 B - 4258/ ARH16,513,0007T (20194F
RMB16,099,000) during the current year. AR #16,099,0007T) °
The impairment provision of other receivables as at 31 20204 X 2019F 12 A31 8 » H b EUEK
December 2020 and 2019 were as follow: BHBERERT
2019
20194
RMB'000
AR®ETT
Other receivables, at gross H ith fE IR 4R EE 2,009,321 1,986,772
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (1,137,780) (1,115,906)
Other receivables, at net H fth fE IR F 5B 871,541 870,866
Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note BB BRI EE44 -
44,

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 27 B —REEFUH

o EhE . o 2
The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free BN —REZTFELEER  2ERRFEX
and is repayable on demand. BiE -
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28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 28. WRITHER IR & AR RHIERTT
AND RESTRICTED BANK AEER
BALANCES
At 31 December 2020, bank balances carry interest at 2020 12 A31 8 - RITHERIZE RN
prevailing market rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.35% BEFENT001%Z 035% (20194 : 0.01%
(2019: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. F035%)ETE °
2019
20196
RMB'000
ARETT
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 41,607 40,310
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (131) 77)
41,476 40,233
Restricted bank balances IR B RTTAE R 1,675 431
Details of impairment assessment of bank balances for B E 20204 % 20194 12 A31 B IEFERT
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out A BB FIEH IR 44
in Note 44.
As at 31 December 2020, restricted bank balances R2020F 12 A318 ' XRFBITEBRAR
RMB1,675,000 (2019: RMB431,000) represented balances #1,675000 7T (20194F = A K #431,0007T )
held in bank accounts frozen by the court due to AREAREBIRBFARRMEAGT RS
litigation claims against the Group. The frozen bank RITHRP AR o IREFFABRARRT - REE T EE
balance cannot be used by the Group until the litigations FRRAEHIRITAR

are resolved.
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29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. BB 5 50A
Trade payables are settled in accordance with the ENESFTEDNBERBR RSN - KRS
relevant agreements. An aged analysis of the Group’s HIR - AREMENESRIE(REZAH)
trade payables (by invoice date) at the end of the BIRRER DOATAA T -

reporting period is as follows:

2019

2019

RMB'000

ARETTT

0to 30 days 0E 30K 53,632 65,176

31 to 90 days 312 90K 47,063 66,936

91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 47,980 120,203

181 t0 1 year 181 RE 14 96,518 109,201

Over 1 year 19 408,376 225,756

653,569 587,272

Retention payables ERHREB & - -

653,569 587,272

30.0THER PAYABLES AND HiEMNZIBENEAEF

ACCRUALS

2019

20194

RMB'000

ARETTT

Accrued wages and staff benefits fEst TERETEAR 9,044 7,060

Other accrued expenses HithpEsrix 91,944 60,855

Other tax payables H At I 1,008 1,240

Other payables H fth fE T RIR 2,552,567 2,411,468

2,654,563 2,480,653
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31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 3. eRAaRE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related REBEER TR EBEERAE -

contract liabilities:

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARBTIT

Contract liabilities SRAE 2,050 13,022

Where discrepancies arise between the milestone fish 3 JE FEAZ AN FREL AN &2 (B35 e A B B 1 L Y
payments and the Group's assessment of the stage of TECvEAMRE  FrAkELAARERE -
completion, contract liabilities can arise.

Movements in contract liabilities ERIAEEE

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARBTT

Balance at 1 January 1 BB &R 13,022 =
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result iﬁqﬁﬁ- WS BHET A

of recognising revenue during the year ARBEEMEREERD

that was included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the year (13,022) -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result mMEFWEENREERA
of advanced consideration received EREEEN
from customers 2,050 13,022
Balance at 31 December M®12 A 31 B 2,050 13,022
32. AMOUNT DUE TO THE 32. BT RARIERR A RIRIA
ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY
The amount due to the ultimate holding company is JEHE*ZQTWHXQE%'UER%EW C BB R
unsecured, interest-free and is repayable on demand. FREE
33. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 33, U (FEAT) B &R R FIA
ASSOCIATES
The amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured, FEU(FEf) Bt e AR RIB AEER - 258
interest-free and are repayable on demand. RIRERKEE -
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34. LEASE LIABILITY

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the
jurisdictions from which it operates. The Group leases
offices premises. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods from 1 to 2 years for leased properties. All
rental contracts comprise only fixed payments over the

34 HEARE

EHANERBREEMNK -

MERSHOUEE (EAAEA)

AEEREXBMENRZEEREES R
mE - AEBHEERLYE - HEMEAD
BES/IEZ2FZEEHRR - AAEHEORHE

lease terms.
Lease liabilities Leased
properties Total
HEWE st
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 A1 H 4,719 4719
Lease commencement HEMR 2,961 2,961
Interest expense (Note 9) B (BI5E9) 71 71
Lease payments MERK (283) (283)
Termination of lease LIFHRE (4,719) 4,719)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31 B &

1 January 2020 2020F1 A1 H 2,749 2,749
Interest expense (Note 9) MBS (F5E9) 192 192
Lease payments HER (1,600) (1,600)
Exchange differences bE 5 =%A (180) (180)
At 31 December 2020 20205 12 H31H 1,161 1,161

The present value of future lease payments is analysed

AREENFREDITA

as:

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETIT
Current liabilities mEBE 1,161 1,512
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 1,237
1,161 2,749

Aggregate undiscounted commitments %2 #iFR S AR BL IR A IE AR
for short term leases - 314

Short term lease expense

MHAERY 352

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARBTIT

2,882
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RAF5 R Y 5E

35. CORPORATE BONDS

2019

20196

RMB'000

ARETTT

Carrying amount as at 1 January ®1 A1 BMEREE 491,854 358,232

Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds ~ ZE1TI>EE SR TS IR 68,468 630,430

Redemption L] (107,969) (512,001)

Effect of modification (Note 8(b)) BETHIRZE (MizE8(b)) (1,265) (3,152)

Exchange differences PE 5 =% (31,630) 308

Interest expense (Note 9) FEFAZ (HEE9) 23,451 23,251

Interest paid BEARFLE (3,944) (5214)

Carrying amount as at 31 December 12 A31 BHHEREE 438,965 491,854
Less: amounts due within one year B A ARBAER —FA

shown under current liabilities B B X IE (230,028) (244,894)

Amounts due after one year shown HAEERBEBER—FE
under non-current liabilities EHAE FIR 208,937 246,960

206

In 2018, the Company issued three corporate
bonds with principal amount of HK$10,000,000
each ("2035 due HKS Bonds") at a discounted
amount of HK$1,290,000, HK$ 1,294,000 and
HK$ 1,297,000, respectively. The first two and third
2035 due HKS Bonds were issued in November
2018 and December 2018, respectively. The 2035
due HKS Bonds will mature in November 2035 and
December 2035 respectively, unless the holders or
the Company exercise the option rights which
entitled the holders to sell back the bonds to the
Company in October 2027 at 40% of the par value
of the initial bonds and the Company to redeem
the bonds at 40% of par value of the initial bonds
in October 2027.

In the opinion of directors, the fair values of the
early redemption options related to the 2035 due
HKS Bonds are insignificant at initial recognition
and the end of the reporting period.

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A

R2018F - ARRIBIT=MHASES
/10,000,000 7T 2 1 3 (& % ([ 2035
FEHABATES]D TRE28S
B A1,290,00078 JT * 1,294,0007% T &
1,297,000/ 7T ° & M 1D & 5 = 152035
FREBTESDRIR2018F11 A K
2018F 12 A 317 o BRIEFF B ALAR

AT T 1B AR AT 7R 2027 4 10
AR ES HER40% R AR RS
[B] & % & i, 7 AN 2 &) % F 7] 72 2027 65
10 A LA 9146 & 25 [ B #Y 40% & [ & %
HIRIERE - B HI2035F R BB T ES
155 B 20354 11 A % 20354 12 A I
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35. CORPORATE BONDS (continued)

36.

(ii)

(iif)

Except for the 2035 due HKS Bonds with option
rights, other corporate bonds are redeemable at
any time before maturity at the Company’s option
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the corporate bonds plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date.

Interest are charged at fixed/floating effective
interest rates ranging from 0% to 11.66% per
annum (“p.a.”) (2019: 0% to 11.66% p.a.).

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Bank loans due for repayment

within one year

35. EES (&)

(i) BRI AR Z 2035 F R BB TLES
G+ Bt 1 2 (E 2 ] 50 B B A 4 (7] B
MR A BERIZBESREEESFAN
SE100%HFERIE - NEZ=ER A
EFHE MR AR E(E)EE -

(i) FMEREEFHEEMENFEF
([F51)0%ZE 11.66%(20194 : FF0%
£ 11.66%) UK ER °

36. MHIER

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARBTIT

—FRIHEEORTER

137,669 199,280

Note:

(@)

The bank loans are secured by:

(i) the Group’s buildings and structures included in
property, plant and equipment (Note 17) amounted
to RMB60,985,000 (2019: RMB63,361,000);

(if) leasehold land under right-of-use assets (Note 18)
amounted to RMB30,289,000 (2019: RMB31,164,000);

(iii) corporate guarantee given by 13 non-related parties
(2019: 14); and
(iv) individual guarantee given by 10 non-related

individuals, 2 directors and 1 senior management
(2019: 10 non-related individuals, 2 directors and 1
senior management).

Interest are charged at fixed/floating effective interest rates
ranging from 0.4% to 6.09% p.a. (2019: 0% to 6.65% p.a.).

As at 31 December 2019, the short-term borrowing of
RMB4,500,000 classified as due for repayment within one
year as at 31 December 2018 was overdue. The loan was
interest bearing at 4.35% p.a. and repayable on 5 December
2019. Effective interest rate is 4.35% p.a.. The loan was repaid
in 2020 with no penalties charged.

Wi
0 RTERRERET

0) REBETAYE - BB &L (i 17)
MEFREZEY @BAARE
60,985,000 7T (2019 4F = AR ¥ 63,361,000
JT)

(i) fEAEEEE MRS L (MEE8)
£ 585 AR #30,289,000 7T (20194F : A
R#31,164,000 7T) :

(i) T=ZKIERAEE TR A RHER (2019
F+0OK) R

vy THRIEBBMAL MBESLR LR
BEEABRMAEAER (20195 -
TZFEHAL MBEER—FBSRK
BEEAB) -

by HMEREE FHEEMNENTEF04%E
6.09% (20196 : TF 0% Z 6.65%) Y EN °

© R2019F 12 A31H » R2018F 12 A31 AN 4
A—F N E| HE E R E B E KA R 4,500,000
TEBH - ZERIRFEEGF435%:T8 ' A
R2019F12ASBHEE - EBEMNXAEBEF
435% ° % B FRE R 2020 F (B8 - I R UWEUE

A EK
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37. PROBLEMATIC LOANS 37. HREERK
The recognition of problematic loans during the years RELZ2020F 12 A31H X 2019412 A31H
ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 was I FERRMEEERTEB W36 T E
originated from the investigation findings of the MNBYERNAEER  HEFTEHELER
Independent Adviser as disclosed in Note 3(a), which are NERATEHLARTER :
related to the following parts in the Main Findings
Announcement:
()  Section 1 “Litigations in relation to two overdue () F180[BERMEBREARIHRERRD

loans granted to Jiangsu Saite by two Individuals” EORRE SIS E /N

(i)  Section 2 “Litigation in relation to guarantee iy 280 [FRMARITARBEEARAGFA

provided to Bank A"

(i) Section 3 “Litigation in relation to bank loans (i) 380 [N IEE ML AR I8 &
undertaken by Jiangsu Saite and Jiangsu Qifeng” RYERIT B B FF A

(iv)  Borrowings of RMB39.5 million as described in (iv) B4 [HMEHANEE] —f[ES
point (a) under Background of Section 4 “Other N6 (a) BhFT 3 B0 18 SR A R 39,500,000
Identified Matters” 7T

(v)  Borrowings of RMB7.4 million as described in point v) F4EHMEHNER] —fES
(b) under Background of Section 4 "Other T 28 (b) B P it A9 £ FRA IR & 7,400,000
Identified Matters” 7T

38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 38. MBHERER

CONTRACTS

2019

2019 4F

RMB'000

ARET T

At the beginning of the year REA] 53,045 -

Remeasurement EFEt=E 24,697 53,045

At the end of the year RER 77,742 53,045
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38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

CONTRACTS (continued)

The recognition of financial guarantee contracts during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 was based on the investigation result of the
Independent Adviser as disclosed in Note 3(a), which are
related to the following parts in the Main Findings
Announcement:

(1) Guarantee of RMB88.8 million provided by Jiangsu
Qifeng New Building Materials Company (“Jiangsu
Qifeng”) as described in point (c) under
Background of Section 4 “Other Identified Matters”

(2)  Guarantee of RMB48.83 million provided by
Jiangsu Qifeng and RMB12 million provided by the
Company as described in point (d) under
Background of Section 4 “Other Identified Matters”

(3)  Guarantee of RMB3.2 million provided by Jiangsu
Saite Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Saite”) as
described in point (e) under Background of
Section 4 “Other Identified Matters”

The financial guarantee contracts were recognised based
on the valuation prepared by independent valuer
engaged by the Company for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

During the course of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the directors considered the expected payments
to reimburse the holder of the guarantees were no
longer recoverable from the borrowers and therefore
recorded a loss of RMB24.7 million (2019: RMB53.0
million) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

38. MBERER (&)

BRI 3 TR B L BN ATER
REE 202012 A31 H K% 2019412 A31 B
IEFEEERUBERER - MxFEHFER
EREETZABLERNENUTHBORNEE
A :

() B4 [EMEBIEE] —FHIER
TE QMK IEREERNAEME
BAR(IEEE ) MREARK
88,800,000 7T K &R

Q F4mm[EMBEFFEE] —FHIES
2B (d) BhFT Al BT BRAHIE FTIR A R
5 48,830,000 T HYIE (R M AN A R T 4
AR 12,000,000 TCHIHE R

B) F4FEMBEH#HFEE] —HIES
N2 (o) BhFTHLAY T B B AS M A5 1 A IR
2A(IHEBEREDFREARKE
3,200,000 TCHYHE (R

WIEERERERIIENRE E2020F 12 A
31B % 2019F 12 A31BIEFE AR T LR
R (S EMREMNEETmEL °

REEEE2020F 12 A31HILFENGEE
T BIET ESRAEERBRALR
EEMEREE AR - BN
EERFEMEAEKERAREEAREK
24,700,0007T(20194F : A R#53,000,0007T) °

Annual Report 2020 —ZT-TFFR 209



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

m e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. fEA
Shown in the
consolidated
financial
statements
RREZE
g E e
RMB'000
ARBF T

Number of
Shares at
HK$0.10

per share Amount

E10.1058 T
H R 2B +5
HK$'000
FET

EIE
20191 A 18 20194

Authorised:
At 1 January 2019,

210

31 December 2019 and 2020 K 2020512 A31H 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
|ssue of shares %?iﬂi /]-J\ 690,000,000 69,000 61 ,693
At31 December 2019and 2020 120194 K& 2020 &
12A31H 3,020,747,935 302,075 249,103

(ii)

(iif)

On 13 March 2019, the Company issued
260,000,000 new shares to an independent third
party at the issue price of HK$0.50 per share on the
completion date, with corresponding increase of
share capital at RMB22,204,000 and an increase of
share premium at RMB88,816,000. These new
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the
existing shares of the Company.

On 15 August 2019, the Company issued an
aggregate of 430,000,000 new shares to two
independent third parties at the issue price of
HK$0.38 per share on the completion date, with
corresponding increase of share capital at
RMB39,489,000 and an increase of share premium
at RMB111,751,000. These new shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the
Company.

On 20 April 2020, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with a subscriber
pursuant to which the subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, 700,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of
HKS$0.10 per subscription share (the
“Subscription”). Details of the Subscription are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated
20 April 2020. This subscription transaction was
cancelled due to the suspension of trading in
shares.

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

MR2019F3 138 ' KA AKX B
B B IT B E IR 050 T A — 2B
55 = 75 3 17 260,000,000 A% #7 B 1 - &
BYOR% K 8 FE 3 0 A R 5 22,204,000 7T LA
K B A7 5 (B 32 0 A FR ¥ 88,816,000 7T ©
ZEMBRMHERRRIBBFEROESH
HEAR RS -

MR2019F8 158 * KA R B
HAIR B 1T B B AR 0387 T A 2 B L
F=758774 430,000,000 BHFTA D
& By % 7N AE FE 38 0 A R #5 39,489,000 7T
LA 2 B& A7 3 (B 42 on A R #111,751,000
TL o R EMRDEARRIEERMGIE
BEHEZERS#ER o

MR2020F 48208 » ARAIEH—FZR
BAFTLRERZ Bt - REAL
BREREREMARQRE G IKER
ERREELERAERBD 10T
Bt 2% K2 2517 700,000,000 A% ZREE A% 17 ([ 3R
BEIE]) REFEHOFBIRER
BB 8 A20208 4 A20HH R E - |
RBEHEEFEEE  WEREXZER
H °
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40.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

41,

On 11 October 2013, the Company conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant
to a resolution passed by its then shareholders on 11
October 2013 for the primary purpose of the providing
incentives or rewards to eligible employees, non-
executive directors of the Company and other selected
participants. The adoption of the Scheme became
unconditional upon the listing of the shares of the
Company on 1 November 2013.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
share options were granted, exercised or outstanding
under the Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT
SCHEMES

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a specific percentage of the total monthly basic salaries
to the retirement benefit schemes. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustee. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The retirement benefit contributions of the directors of
the Company and staffs for the year end are set out in
Notes 13 and 14 respectively.

40. BBIRTEETE

R2013F 10811 B ARARREARAE
B AR 2013 510 A 11 B BB A — B R =%
REGRERPEREEI([FT8)) - =25/
FRARFEERES  ERTESREM
KRR 2 AR SRR - FEA QR
BR2013411 B 1B Eks - 518 2 HRED
A -

B E2020F K2019F 12 A3 H IEFE - I

{5 o

41, RIKEFETE

ARARRPBEKZHMERRNER STE
BUTEENBEREIRRRBNGBIHKE -
MEBARREEAEAFCRBENIEEAD
Lo RR KRR A ET IR - REBRIERAE R
sHEIRMKE—B I RAREZEELRED

R -

AEETAERAERBERERENT HR
HIERERAE - FEIZEEEAREEE
DHRERE  THESABRHIZESHA - XN
SE SR T ERAR 5% IERFTEIHR -
& 8 IR BIBMARF 4R -

AAREEKRETINFRNERBIERRD
B 5E 13 K2 14 ©
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42 NOTES SUPPORTING THE 42 FEWEmERBHBEN T
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Significant non-cash transactions (a) EXFBREXS
Significant non-cash transactions from investing KETHELENERIFRERSNAT :

activities are as follows:

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARETT

Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) & & 18 14 AR Uk B 3R 1B HY
and leasehold land under right-of-use  ¥)2 = M &
assets (Note 18) disposed but proceed  (HffsE17) R ff FAREEA E

not yet received (M5 18) I TR E i - 161,609
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEEFHELENEEHIR

from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's TRFMAASEREZTHELENBE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including 2% AR RFREEH WME
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising EHEENBERREMEGHRRK
from financing activities are those for which cash ReneEHenNmeliaigRAD
flows were, or the future cash flows will be, BARETHELNRERENAE -

classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows from financing activities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

42 NOTES SUPPORTING THE 42 AR ERERNGAAMNE (&)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEFBELENEFEHR(E)

from financing activities (Continued)

Amount
due to the
Amounts Amount ultimate
Short-term  Corporate dueto Interest dueto holding Lease
borrowings bonds associates  payables  adirector  company liabilities
FEf
B Eff-2  BRRER
BHER LXEF ARFE  BARE  ESRE AFFE  HEER
R 0 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 00
T ARETT
At 1 January 2019 R019F1A18 4500 358232 3194 = = - - 365,926
Financing cash flow BERENE 194780 118429 77 (81,534) 446,32 229,568 (283) 906475
Additions during the year ENRE = = - - - - 2961 2961
Effect of modification of rEEFBINTE
corporate bond - (3,152) - - - - - (3,152
Finance cost incurred FNEENFHRAR
during the year - 18037 - 81,534 - - Jl 99,642
Exchange differences ERES - 308 - - - - - 308
At31 December 2019 120196128318 199,280 491,854 2,477 - 446,232 229,568 2,749 1,372,160
Financing cash flow HERSNE (61,611)  (39,501) (2477)  (48,665) 80,983 1,285 (1,600)  (71,586)
Effect of modification of PEEFBINYE
corporate bond - (1,265) - - - - - (1,265)
Finance cost incurred FREENIHHA
during the year - 19,507 - 48,665 - - 192 68,364
Exchange differences EHER - (31,630) - - - - (180)  (31,810)
At31 December 2020 R2020F 128310 137,669 438,965 - - 527,215 230,853 1,061 1,335,863
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

iR E B ERaAR MY EE

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. BARRERERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities AREBEBRHER  UNEFEAEENE LG
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern AIFELE - WS B ES RS EEL &
while maximising the return to shareholders through the EFEAERREEREANRBR - ANEB RS
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's REBBAEFEREZTTE -
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, AREBHNERNEBOIEFER  EFaED
which includes corporate bonds, short-term borrowings BIRAMIFE3S 36 RV WEMLERZS &
and problematic loans disclosed in Notes 35, 36 and 37, HEFNMNEBEER(HKRIRE MR EEEY)
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity AR AELER(BERE - RH
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising wE - HEERREAF) -
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained
profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital AAREFIRGEREERNEALE U
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the EEENKA N EEARBENER - NEE
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital. BB RS « BTG REITHER
The Group will balance its overall capital structure EBEREEETEHEERERLERE -
through payment of dividend, new Shares issue as well
as the issue of new debt or repayment of existing debt.
44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44, ¢ T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €T E¥ER
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT
Financial assets TREE
Equity instruments at FVTOC! FREMEEWEREATE
SR ZBRAR T A 26,230 26,230
Financial assets at amortised cost LA $E AR AN B BR Y & BB B 1,076,098 1,106,439
Financial liabilities TRaE
Amortised cost i3IS 4,291,952 4,696,507
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

44, EL T B (&)

(b) BIEEREEHERBR

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from associates,
bank balances and cash, trade payables, other
payables, corporate bonds, short-term borrowings,
amounts due to ultimate holding company, a
director and associates and financial guarantee
contracts.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Directors manage and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are
denominated in HKS and United States dollars
("USD") which is different from the functional
currency of the relevant group entities i.e. RMB,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure to
currency risk. Directors manage their foreign
currency risk by monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rate and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

AEENTIECRIABEABEM
PHKRBRAFEIKRZRATA
FEME 55008 - HEWGRIA - B
e NBIFRIA - RITEBRLERE - &
NEZHA HMWEMNRIE  bXRE
7 RHBER  BENRKEERAF -
—REENEE R R RIBAR B
RER -

ZEEBMTANFBRENSME -
HEgEeRTAEHENARBREMS
Rk (SN SRR R A X ER) - EERE
BRRBETRR - TXEIBRN
MEREZSFARNER -EFEEK
ERZTRRE - AR REA DR
HUEEEE

Wik
SR

AREBENETRSTIAETRFET( =
TDFHE METAEREEERY
BEEB(BNARK) AN EE - Bt
AEEHEERINERR

AEEBERYEERTMITETAS
R T EMERNEERAR EFE
BEEFINEERNWE S EREHINER
% WHRRAREREBLHPEAIN
R -
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

216

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) MBEMEREBRERBER(E)

Market risk (Continued) HisER (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) GBS % (42 )

As disclosed in Note 3, the directors were unable
to ascertain information of denominated currency
of the transactions of the Group. As disclosed in
Note 3, on the basis that the relevant books and
records are incomplete, no disclosure is made by
the Company as to the carrying amounts of the
Group's assets and (liabilities) denominated in
foreign currency as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 and the related sensitivity analysis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances (see Note
28 for details). The Group does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, directors
monitor interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

UM AT - EEEAEEAS
BERXSHHEEEER - T3 AT
W ARARERMRESTTE
A &) I 4 Bk 2020 4F K2 20194F 12 A 31
BUINEAENASEREER(BE)
RAEBERBEASXEDITELEE -

AEEEBRERTSRITERNES
MENEER (FIERLME8) - KK
B BN RERBER - A EFE
ERNEARYNFEERZERHHME
AMEER

REBHEKATEZSREENBRA
BEANE

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARETT

LA SER ARSI BR M S R B 940 42
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

44, EL T B (&)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest expense on financial liabilities not
measured at fair value through profit or loss:

(b) BMBEMEEBRERBER(E)

wiEmE (&)

WIREBBRRAFEIKTEZS
B EREN B4R

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARBTIT

Financial liabilities at amortised cost DA SR AT BRI S R B & 68,172 99,571

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the interest
rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group's bank balances.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balances at the end of
each reporting period.

The analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate
bank balances outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 25 basis point (2019: 25 basis points)
increase or decrease for bank balances is used
represent directors’ assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on bank balances had been 25
basis points (2019: 25 basis points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, a positive
number below indicates a decrease in loss for the
year.

AEENRERENXEREIESESD
REAXAKERITESEENTEAR
RITPT A RIKE -

2T

bl
¢
P

/=3
Py

AT SR E DT T iR0% BRITH R
BEREWRAEBRON KRR EE -

D TR RS BRE R AT B IR
THRENBEFEHYREE - BLiRTT
E R S S0 3R 4> 25 fE & 2 (2019
&S EEE) AEEHFIERSIEAAE
FEARTE o

1l #R 77 A% SR F R b 7+ 25 18 E B (2019
F 5 EER)  MABEMBEER
N BT RIEBBRNFAEERD
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44 2R T B (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) BIEREEEERBE (&)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BT ()
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARBT T
Decrease in loss for the year FANEER D 88 85
In directors’ opinion, the sensitivity analysis is B REROE BRI T RRFEAR L -
unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as the WEEREBRESNEFERER
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure I AERRME -

during the year.

The Group also exposes to fair value interest rate 7N £ [ 71 B o 2 B R A B & RE R R
risk, which primarily relates to the Group's fixed RHERRPEEBESFBHENQFER
rate short-term borrowings and corporate bonds. KR o 7RSS Bl 51 & R BT E ER A9
After reviewing the Group's exposure for the time [RL B 1% - 7N £ B0 4 o 5 A ) 2 B A
being, the Group did not enter into any PHERZFIRRERR - EHEEFIXER
arrangements to minimise this interest rate risk. WG 7 Z W E R HlE# S 8 EH
Directors monitor interest rate exposure and will R e

consider entering into appropriate hedging
transactions should the need arise.
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

44, EL T B (&)

(b) HBEMEEBFRERBER(E)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group arising from the carrying amount
of the respect recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties.

The credit risk of the Group is concentrated on
trade receivables and contract assets from the
Group's five largest customers at 31 December
2020 amounting to RMB462,218,000 (2019:
RMB349,338,000) and accounted for 63.3% (2019:
60.8%) of the Group's total trade receivables and
contract assets before impairment losses. These
five largest customers include state-owned
enterprises and private limited companies
registered and operated in the PRC. They are
mainly the main contractors of construction
projects. In order to minimise the credit risk,
directors continuously monitor the level of
exposure by frequent review of the credit
evaluation of the financial condition and credit
quality of its customers to ensure that prompt
actions will be taken to lower exposure. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model of HKFRS 9 on trade
balances based on provision matrix. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In order to minimise the credit risk of liquid fund,
the Group reviews regularly the credit rating of the
banks which they placed bank deposits in and
performs impairment assessment under ECL
model of HKFRS 9 on bank balances individually.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk of liquid fund
is significantly reduced.

TR (&)
1= B iz KB E AP

2020 12 A31 H » AEBFTEEH
A EERR (AR SGEFRERBTE
IR EHRAEBELENEER) JIRE
REMBRARMBNEERESHE
ERREE °

AEBMEERRSEF R 2020512 8
SNEKBAEBRAARTLHEKRE S
HIE KA R EEAR462,2180007T
(20194F © A R #3493380007T ) ' {h
AEERNBRBERBENNEKRE S
KN A REEBRER 633%(2019F :
608%) c ZERAAXFEBIEE+RREE
MREENREEERABRAR -
BEFTEREEBENEEREE -
ABEERBRREREK E2FERAE
ERNERFNTBERAREEESR
K5 B E R FEERATHEEER R R
IKFE - ERENEEERENATE - RUEFTE
R R o N NREBRIEE B
HREERIE oA EEBIBERY
ERBEERE 2 8 5 & ETRER
HoHMEME  ARAEERAELE
B EERR D ARMRE -

AEERERDESNERERR K
SETEHEZEFRRITERNIRT
EEFME  UYREBEEBHBREEL
FORFAMEEEBREAKRRITEHRE
TTERRERE - Bt E - A8
EERR/AEERPESNEERR
EAIERE -
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44 2R T B (&)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) MEREKREEEBEREEK(Z)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEE (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1=EE R EE (&)
(Continued)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment AEBEZ AR EERRFARFHEEE
comprises the following categories: AT A -

Bank balances/other receivables/

Internal credit Trade receivables/ amounts due from associates
rating Description contract assets RITE/ HiEREE/
REEETR R EKES7E/ AREE R E A RRE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired ~ 12-month ECL
EER past-due amounts SHRHCERE—ECERE NEABRHEESE
RGHFMENRRERFECMBHRTE
Watch list Debror frequently repays after due dates but usually settle after due ~ Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired ~ 12-month ECL
EAEE date 2ERBCEFE—EEERE  EARBEERE
BERASERIHABREN  BRRRISBRRLEE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
R recognition through information developed internally or external cHBHEEEE—REEAE 2HESCEEE - BEEHE
resources
BEARAR  BENDRENERIONDER - FERRAKE
in
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
B AREBTAELTREENE 2HEBESEE —GENE SHERESEE — GENE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off Amount is written off
fiisH difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery SEB M BOTRE 2
ARERTNERARNREHFRERASETEERKE AR
Ke
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44 @ T E (&)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) MEEREEAEREE (&)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEE (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1=EE R EE (&)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRAM@IHAEESHEERER
the Group's financial assets and contract assets, BEMNEERRBRHO ZEeRmEE
which are subject to ECL assessment:; R&REERETRREEEENE

External Internal 12-month Gross carrying
credit rating credit rating or lifetime ECL amount

HBEETE RBEEFR NEARRARAEEEE AR

RMB'000
ARBTR

Financial assets at amortised costs

NEERASIR 2 EHER
Bank balances 28 Aa2/BBB (Notea) 12-month ECL 43,282
R (M&ka) NEARSEERR
Other receivables 26 N/A (Note b, c) 12-month ECL 41,356
HthpElsE TER (M&Eb ¢ NEARBEERE
Lifetime ECL 1,967,965
2HRAEERSE
Amounts due from associates 33 N/A (Noteb, c) 12-month ECL 3,053
JElE e R RIFIR THEA (M&b- ¢ NEARSEERR
Trade receivables 24 N/A (Note ¢) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 618,022
N 5508 TER GiEN) SHEREERE (REERE)
Other items
HitER
Contract assets 25 N/A (Note¢) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 112,616
AREE TER (M) SHEREEEE (REER)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44. R T B (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) BIEEMEREEERBEK (&)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) SRR (E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= BE b R a1 ()
(Continued)

External Internal 12-month Gross carrying
credit ratin credit rating or lifetime ECL amount

nEAZEHEBEEER HHEE
1000
ARETT

Financial assets at amortised costs

DEHERARZERER
Bank balances 28 Aa2/BBB (Note a) 12-month ECL 40,741
R (Mizka) NEARSEEER
Other receivables 26 NA (Note b, ¢) 12-month ECL 4877
Hit R TEA (MizEb- ) REABHEEEE
Lifetime ECL 1,981,895
2HEREERR
Trade receivables 24 N/A (Note ) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 517,270
W E 53008 TER (HizEc) 2HBHEERHE (HEER)
Other items
HitE R
Contract assets 25 NA (Note ¢) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 56,883
AREE TR (HizEC) 2HEREERHE (REER)
Notes: Mk
a. The Group has applied 12-month ECL approach to a. AEBERANBABHEEEBES
assess the impairment loss on bank balances and ERHERITEBRRERK - WREKER
determines the credit rating of this local bank based THRIE - 2Bl REEERREE L
on the scale, the operation risk and the supervision i IFITRE ETR ©

risk of the bank.

b. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, b. RABEERREREMS @ A5EEA
the Group uses past due information, historical MEER  BELAHLS  BAELRE
settlement records, past experience and also BEIERABEZHOREEEREE
quantitative and qualitative information that is EREMERTEE B REREEER
reasonable and supportive forward-looking IR BAREIE N -

information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44 2R T B (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) BIEEMEREEERBEK (&)
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) TR EE (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment 1=E R R E S (&

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : (48)

C. The following table provides information about the C. TREHBHARKESRE GREE
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables, contract REMEBUKRIBEREERR 2 EX -
assets and other receivables.

Gross carrying amount SR A8 2R

2020

Grade 1: Low risk F1H - ERER 1.36% 25,799 112,616 1,037

Grade 2: Watch list oM ESRIZE 1.56% 5,509 - 40,320

Grade 3: Doubtful F38% - RER 5.65% 38,845 - 85

Grade 4: Loss F48% BB 63.39% 547,869 - 1,967,879

618,022 112,616 2,009,321

Average Trade Contract Other

loss rate receivables assets receivables

THEEE RERESHIEA EREE HfbEUWRIE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT

Grade 1: Low risk FAR KRR 121% 38,760 56,383 946

Grade 2: Watch list FEoA  ESRRE 1.26% 26,149 - 3,931

Grade 3: Doubtful F3R: RER 4.15% 65271 - 978

Grade 4: Loss FAR BB 60.58% 387,090 - 1,980,917

517,270 56,883 1,986,772

For bank balances, the Group assessed the ECL on
the carrying amount of RMB41,607,000 at the loss
rate of 0.19%, as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB40,310,000 at the loss rate of 0.19%).

RBIOTEHRT S - AEEE R 202045
12 A31 HLA0.19% K BB X HIREE
A R #41,6070007C (20196 : A R %
40,310,000 7 * /&5 18 & & 0.19%) &) 78 HA
EE/BA -
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

224

(Continued)

For amounts due from associates, the Group
regularly monitors the business performance of the
associates. The Group's credit risks in these balances
are mitigated through the value of the assets held by
these entities and the power to participate in the
financial and operating policies decisions. The
management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12-month ECL. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group assessed the ECL for
amounts due from associates are insignificant and
thus no loss allowance is recognised.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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i

(&)
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables and contract assets under the
simplified approach, 12-month or lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for other receivables and

bank balances under the general approach.

44, EL T B (&)

(b) MBEMEREBRERBER(E)

wiEmE (&)

EEmER LR E S ()

TRHFIREBE T AR S EWE
SRERGRAEBENEZHEMREES
BRIRE—RITARER R H B R
RERITERN12EAABREERERE

Lifetime ECL (credit- 12-month ECL (not
Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) impaired) credit-impaired)
EHRLEERR EHRSBEEER REARREERR
(BEERE) (EERE) (BEERE)
Trade Other Contract Trade Other Other Bank
receivables  receivables assets receivables receivables receivables balances
el Hl iR Aty H
g5%8 EWRR AR&EE E5ANE EHER  BT4%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT
Asat 1 January 2019 1201961818 96,445 - 47,762 - - - 18723 162930
Increase/(decrease) EREN/(RD)
during the year (92,907) 4 (47,083) 1747478 4344608 37 (18646) 5933528
Amount written off FRESEKE
during the year as MmN eE
uncollectible - - - (1428655  (3,228780) - - (465743
As at 31 December 2019 120196128318 3538 4 679 318823 1,115828 37 77 1439023
Asat 1 January 2020 120201818 3,538 | 679 318,823 1,115,828 37 77 1,439,023
Increase/(decrease) EREN/(RD)
during the year (1,425) (37) 846 138,733 43,990 615 54 182,776
Amount written off FRESEKE
during the year as [ E: Tk
uncollectible - - - - (22,694) - - (22,694)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020E12A31R 2,113 4 1,525 457,556 1,137,124 652 131 1,599,105

Changes in the loss allowance are mainly due to
the change of gross amounts with different credit
ratings at 1 January 2019, 1 January 2020 and 31
December 2020.

EIEREEE T EZHMNMN2019F 1
H1B8 20206118 K&2020%F12 8
31H AR BB BT -
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

226

(b) Financial risk management

©

objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the directors to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As disclosed in Note 3, on the basis that the
relevant books and records are incomplete, no
disclosure is made by the Company as to the
weighted-average interest rate, contractual
maturity and undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform

Where Level 1

the valuation.

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A

(b)

©

MHEREEERREE(E)

RBESER

ERRBESEARIE  AEEER
REBBRERBSEBYERESR
RITBHIKT - ARRHAREE LR
FEe  WHLREMERIHFTLE o

SANMIRE 3 FTEE - R MERRRE KAD
HBTEE  ARRBMEEREER
2020 € }% 201945 12 A 31 B hnkEF 15 F|
X -ARHARSBREBENRTERS
MEMHE

EMTANDFEHFE

SEXDERMTANMBEEHRE W
BRAFEE -
EREFAFER  AREEAEER

AEEMSEE - EVES
BBEZBEAT  AKERES
BIRGEMETHE -
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

(i)  Fairvalue of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are

measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about the fair values of these

investments.

Fair value as at

RT5AHzA¥E

Financial assets

LREE

Private equity investment ~ 20% equity
at FvTodl investment in

BRI ANREAT an unlisted
52 L ERAR entity of
& RMB4,000,000
(“Entity B”) and

11.7% equity
investment in
an unlisted
entity engaging
ininvestment
holding of
RMB22,230,000
(“Entity A")
RELTER(E
BBl 2 20% %
TREARY
4,000,000 7T &
RtEREER
ZELHER
(E8AD2Z
11.7% RARE
AR¥
22,230,000 T

31
20195128318

20% equity
investmentin an
unlisted entity of
RMB4,000,000
(“Entity B") and
11.7% equity
investment in an
unlisted entity
engaging in
investment
holding of
RMB22,230,000
(“Entity A")

WNELTER(E
#881) 2 20%
TREARE
400000070 R
eFREAERZ
FITER(E
BAlZ11.7%
BARE AR
22230,0007T

44,

Fair value
hierarchy
AFE
ER

Level3

F=R

SR TR #E)

(c) EMTANDFEHE(E)

(i) FEEREEHEEUQATPEFT

BrsMEEZAVE
AEEBLEREENTHREH

RERAFEE- T%hf A
REZRFEZER -

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

HERTREERAYE

Income approach — in this approach,

the discounted cash flow method
was used capture the present
value of the expected future
economic benefits to be derived
from the ownership of this
investee, based on an appropriate
discount rate.
WNE—EARES  FTRRS
REARE S BHREARK
GREUSERRBELLR
%%XW*W SHBE -

Annual Report 2020

—TTFFR

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EXTUBERALE

Long-term revenue growth rate at 2.5%,
taking into account management's
experience and knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industries.
(Note a)

REWGERE5%  ERGTRER
B BRREHRETETRL
TH# - (fitea)

Long-term pre-tax operating margin,
taking into account management's
experience and knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industries,
ranging from 344% 1040.0%.

REBAEETEENF44%E
400% EF ﬁ& EEEZERR
EURETETRLT# -

Discount rate, taking into account of
weighted average cost of capital
determined using a Capital Asset
Pricing Model, ranging from 20.0% to
28.1%. (Note b).

RAEAEEEBEABENNR
ENF200%Z281% - EFETK
BANMETERA © (FiEb) o

Discount for lack of marketability at 35%.
R TR TR 35% o
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44.

228

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group's financial (i)
assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

a. A slight increase in the long-term revenue
growth rates used in isolation would result in
an increase in the fair value measurement of
the private equity investment, and vice versa.
A 1% increase in the long-term revenue
growth rates holding all other variables
constant would increase the carrying amount
of the shares by RMB179,000.

b. A slight increase in the discount rate used in
isolation would result in a decrease in the fair
value measurement of the private equity
investments, and vice versa. A 1% increase in
the discount rate holding all other variables
constant would decrease the carrying
amount of the private equity investments by

44. R T B (&)

(c) EMTANDFEHE(E)

AEBMREEMEEU AT E
ESREEZATE(E)

Wi

a. BB AR RE RS 1 R RE
BEGERFLEBRAZE Z N F
BEEF 28 R2ZINA - FTE
Hib S E g REkSE
REERI1%KEHRMEARE
# A REE 179,000 7T °

b. BB AT RS G RiGE
BAERATE 2 A FEFER
D RZINER o IAFTE E B E
BIHFTE - TR R 1%EE
BAERAFEREERD AR
#1,755,000 7T °

RMB1,755,000.
(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) F=RAFEFEHER
measurements
Equity
instruments
at FVTOC|
FEREMEE
/N ]
PR ZIRAT A
2019
20194F
RMB'000
AREETIT
Opening balance HRW) 4564 26,230 22,230
Addition INE - 4,000
Loss in other comprehensive income  H fih 2 W 5 E5 18 - =
Closing balance BSR4 4 26,230 26,230

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
costs in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their corresponding fair values.

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A
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45 RELATED PARTY 45. BB AN THBEE R
DISCLOSURES
(a) Balances with related parties (a) BEAEALLEER
The following balances were outstanding at the TR REHREAREER
end of the reporting period:
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETIT
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIE (527,215) (446,232)
Amounts due from/(to) associates U (f5) Bt &N T 308 3,053 (2,477)
Amount due to the ultimate AR UNCIE L]
holding company (230,853) (229,568)
(b) Compensation of key management (b) FEEEASNHH
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members RWEFERN EFERTEEEAE
of key management for both years were as follows: Hip EHHMOT
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
Short-term benefits 52 HA R A 3,294 3,375
Contributions to retirement RN ETEI 5K
benefit scheme 32 44
3,326 3,419

Annual Report 2020 —ZT - THEFRH 229



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

m e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES OF

46. RN B Z BN R Kl

THE COMPANY

2019
20194
RMB'000
AREETIT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB R AR E - —
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments . fth FE U R IE K2 T8 15T 70E - 832
Bank balances RITAEER 32,332 34,397
32,332 35,229
Current liabilities RBAEE
Other payables and accruals H A JETRRIE K e sT & 43,631 182,489
Amounts due to subsidiaries R PNGIE = 276,140 18,689
Corporate bonds TERS
— due within one year —R—F R 230,028 244,894
Financial guarantee contracts MISERER 4,345 4314
554,144 450,386
Net current liabilities REAEFE (521,812) (415,157)
Total asset less current liabilities AEERAEBEE (521,812) (415,157)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Corporate bonds BEES
— due after one year — R —FREIH 208,937 246,960
208,937 246,960
Net liabilities BEFHA (730,749) (662,117)
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital [N 39 249,103 249,103
Reserves & (979,852) (911,220)
Total deficit B AR R (730,749) (662,117)

AKRBZH BTN 2022F 4 18 HEE

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2022 and
was signed on its behalf.

EEHE YA TIEZAREE -

Shan Hu Zhang Tianbo
BR (PN ]

Director Director
BF BE
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

46. RN B Z BN R K feé s (4

Movement of capital and reserves of the ARTERNR FEET
Company
Share Share Capital  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
EN RAERE BXmwE RAER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1 818 187410 511,515 464,556 (161,361) 1,002,120
Issue of share (Note 39) TR (P 39) 61,693 200567 - = 262,260
Loss and total comprehensive ERNERLERRGREE
income for the year - - - (1,926,497) (1,926,497)
At 31 December 2019 and 201912431 B R
1 January 2020 2020661 A1H 249,103 712,082 464,556 (2,087,858) (662,117)
Loss and total comprehensive ERNERLERRGEEE
income for the year - - - (68,632) (68632)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H 249,103 712,082 464,556 (2,156,490) (730,749)

47 . PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. KRR EEMBRAIFS
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY
Equity interest
Place of attributable to the Company Issued and fully
incorporation/ FRARERRE paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Principal activities
WEARER ML/ RIS ERARMERE/HRER IEXH
Moder Day Holdings Limited HK 100% 100%  Ordinary shares HK$1,000000 Investment holding
RERBRAR &% LBk 100000 87 REER
China Saite (Overseas) Company Limited The Britsh Virgin Islands (BVI') 100% 100%  Ordinary share USS1 Investment holding
HEER (BN ERAR ABRAHS TakiEn REBR
([EBERES )

(hina Saite (HK) Company Limited HK 100% 100%  Ordinary share HKS1 Investment holding
HEER (B BRAA & LR IET RERK
Yixing City Zhicheng Consultation PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB16,667,000 Investment holding

Company Limited (note ) & Paid-up capital RMB16,667,000 RERR
ERATEIHABRAR (Hia) AR AR 166670007

EWARARE 1666700070
Annual Report 2020 —ZT - THEFRH 231
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

47. KAvIFEME A BIFIS (&)

Equity interest
Place of attributable to the Company

Issued and fully
ARAEERE

232

Name of subsidiary

HELREHE

incorporation/
establishment

B ANE AR

paid share capital/
registered capital

BRORMERS/ HRER

Principal activities

IERH

Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co, Ltd. (note b) PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB502,860,000 Construction of steel structure
THRERRERARA (Mib) # Paic-up capital RMB341 367,000 and prefabricated construction
&R AR 5028600007 projects
ERABRARS 341367007 RERReRLRRRRE
BRHEERT
Jiangsu Qifeng New Bulding Materials PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB197,000,000 Prefabricated construction
Company Limited (note ) H Paid-up capital RMB137,000,000 projects
TERREHEEMARAR (i) HEERARE 197000007 SRIRREIREER
BUERARE 1370000007
Anhui Saite New Building Materials PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB60,000,000 Prefabricated construction
Company Limited (note ¢) i Paid-up capital RMB22,000000 projects
RHRTERNERAR (Mo AMERAR% 600000007 SRIRRENEERR
EWERARS 20000007
Shenzhen Saite Construction Consulting PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital HKS50,000,000 Construction consulting
Company Limited (note 2) i Paic-up capital RMB2,000,000 BE#H
MIEFRETERAERAR (M) AR 00000003
EWERARB 20000007
Shanghai Saite Supply Chain Company Limited PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB50,000,000 Construction consulting
note) # Paic-up capital Ni EERH
LEENHERERAR (i) AR AR 500000007
Elgre

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE 2020912 A31 HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@ The entity is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established
in the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

(b) The entity is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established
in the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

(©) The entity is a wholly sino-owned enterprise established in
the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

LITIGATION

As described in details in the announcements of the
Company dated 8 September 2020, 23 October 2020, 16
November 2020, 2 December 2020, 11 December 2020,
22 January 2021, 30 March 2021 and 22 June 2021, there
were certain winding-up petitions filed by the creditors
of the Company. Apart from petitioners of 5 winding-up
petitions which joined the proceedings of another
petition filed against the Company as supporting
creditors as disclosed in the announcement dated 22
June 2021, the Company settled with other petitioners.

Upon the date of this report, the hearing of Petition did
not reach the conclusion yet and the Company was
unable to assess the effect towards the consolidated
financial statements.

47.

48.

AAREBHBATRE

=
#)

BaE

@ ZERBANPEKIMNIIEEERE  HEXH
TEFRHERS -

ZERBABNF @EXiEﬁEFQI\Aﬁm% g
(£

EERERE

© ZERBANTEKIMNTEBERE - HXH
TEFRHERS -

ERIEARRBPEERREIEXELAEEE
EREENARAMBAR - EERH 1=
f/\,\ﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘% AINFIREERREENITR -

RER - BB QR ETEMNERE

AT AA

AR A B B HA202059 A8 H - 20204
10H23H 2020511 168 ~ 202012 A
28 2020128118 202141 H22H8
202193 A30H K2021F6 A 22 H 2 A &EFT
il - AARIERAREE T ERES KB
BHEIA2021F6 A2 H 2 AEFTIEERSHD
BREFNEBAUEAZFEEAN)MAS
—IHEHE AR FIREMN 2B EEZEFIN -
AAREHEEMEFE ANEKFILE -

RAHE B - 2FNRMEARE Gim LA
RARBEFHEERAMBEREOTE
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RAF5 R Y 5E

49 . EVENTS AFTER THE END OF
THE REPORTING PERIOD

234

(a)

On 13 September 2021, the Company entered
into the note purchase agreements with certain
investors, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to issue, and the investors agreed to purchase
senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HKS160 million (the “Note Purchase Agreements”).
Details of the Note Purchase Agreements are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated
5 October 2021 and 11 October 2021. As at the
date of this announcement, the transaction was
not yet completed.

On 10 December 2021, the Company entered into
subscription agreements with certain subscribers,
pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed
to allot and issue, an aggregate of 3,120,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of
HKS0.10 per subscription share (the “2021
Subscription”). Subscriber | agreed to subscribe for
300,000,000 subscription shares, whereas
Subscriber Il and Subscriber Il agreed to subscribe
for 1,360,000,000 subscription shares and
1,460,000,000 subscription shares, respectively.
Details of the 2021 Subscription are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 10
December 2021. As at the date of this
announcement, the 2021 Subscription was not yet
completed.

As described in details in the announcement of
the Company dated 24 December 2021, Modern
Day Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company resolved that it be wound up
voluntarily as part of the reorganisation of the
Group structure.

China Saite Group Company Limited HFEIEFEEFR A A
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R2021F9H13H * AARIEETIK
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%A 160,000,000 78 7T K 18 5L = ﬁHTF
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49 . EVENTS AFTER THE END OF
THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(d)

On 14 January 2022, the Company received a
letter from the Stock Exchange stating that the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has
decided to cancel the Company’s listing under
Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules as the Company
failed to satisfy all the resumption guidance and
additional resumption guidance issued by the
Stock Exchange (the “Resumption Guidance”) by
21 December 2021.

The Scheme of Arrangement as described in note
3(b) was sanctioned by the High Court at the
sanction hearing on 11 April 2022. The Scheme of
Arrangement shall become effective when an
office copy of the order of the High Court
sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement is
registered by the Registrar of Companies in Hong
Kong under Part 2 of the Companies Ordinance
and the other conditions precedent set out in the
Scheme of Arrangement are duly fulfilled. As of
the date of this report, there is one outstanding
petition that has yet to be withdrawn or dismissed.
The High Court has adjourned the winding-up
hearing against the Company to 16 May 2022. No
winding-up order has been made against the
Company.

Upon the date of this report, the hearing of
Petition did not reach the conclusion yet and the
Company was unable to assess the effect towards
the consolidated financial statements.

49. EHREFE @)

d) M202F1 8148 KRB ZEEHL
BT 8 B4 - 38 H AR A A Al R BER
20214F 12 A 21 HAERKEE R P e 2
FRB B8 RaEIMEETE S| ([1E1E
al)) BRI EMEZESEARATIR
B ET AR RIS 6.01A0) RBUB AN A R AY
T o

() MIFE3(b) Tt M & HERT 21 E 7L 2022 FF 4
B11 8 Z iR S S ARALE
ERE Akt E R gl m S/ IE
NBABEEB AR EMEERBE(R
AHEDI B2 B B ML B BT E 2
Hh R EEXBITE L5k
STEIBNE £ - RARERE - DA
—HEARBERBEE ZFRAEF =
LR B BT E AR B A BRI
BE202%58168 ° WAREHAR
AENERS -

RAREBY  2FNRARKRE S
i R AR AR E R A B IR
HEE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEHHRE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION T ERHTEE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and AN 6= B4R DA TS B s P B 2E 4R B &3l R A B B
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years prepared FEZEAMEEREERBEMENT :

on the basis set out in the note below is as follows:

Results E4

Year Ended 31 December
BENANBLEEFE
2019 2018 2017 2016

20194 2018 4F 2017 4F 2016 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AREBTTT ARETFT ARETrT ARETR

Revenue Uz 387,515 515,447 1,501,311 1,411,745 1,650,760
Cost of sales SHERAR (295,387) (425,033) (1,147,488) (1,051,837) (1,222,468)
Gross profit EF 92,128 90,414 353,823 359,908 428292
Other income HEalA 4,522 1,953 12,890 9,985 9,737
Other gains and losses Hiplam k&S 22,497 (76,433) (24,708) (7,399) (6,608)
Impairment losses on financial & &l A& BEE

and contract assets REEE (182,776) (5933,528) (28,519) = =
Selling and marketing expenses  $H8& K 4 #5512 (5,355) (8411) (4,027) (4,093) (2,107)
Administrative expenses TBRFAX (51,498) (55,975) (57,744) (37,233) (31,585)
Finance costs BI TSR AR (68,364) (99,642) (36,744) (7,356) (6,554)
Share of (loss)/profit of a PME—HEELE

joint venture (E538) /B - (1351) 332 409 502
Share of loss of associates DB N R EIE (870) (6,781) (1,13) = -
Remeasurement of M ERER

financial guarantee EHEE

contracts (24,697) (53,045) 1,200 - -
(Loss)/profit before taxation KRR (B518) /BF (214,413) (6,142,799) 215,390 314,221 391,677
Income tax (expense)/credit  FrfSH (Fisx), 1% (47) 51,254 (76,378) (87,021) (103,408)
(Loss)/profit for the year ¢ W (&), B (214,460) (6,091,545) 139,012 227,200 288,269
(Losses)/earnings per share % (&518) /&7
Basic (RMB cents) %K (NRED) (7.10) (224.58) 596 977 14.13
Diluted (RMB cents) BARES) NATER  NATER NATER  NATER NATER
Assets and Liabilities BENEAE

Year Ended 31 December
HENANBLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016

20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000
ARETTE ARETT ARETT ARETT

Non-current assets FERBEE 303,186 313,201 542,501 484,998 378447
Current assets RBEE 1,240,612 1,227,422 2,770,810 2572692 2,313,889
Current liabilities TEAE (4,746,135) (4,489,240) (426,561) (269,566) (264,571)
Non-current liabilities 3&;,"%@)% f& (208,937) (248,197) (254,279) (179,551) (92,116)
Total (deficit)/equity B4t S eE (3,411,274) (3,196,814) 2,632,471 2,608,573 2,335,649

236 China Saite Group Company Limited EEFEEAER AR
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